
 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Phil Garnett (0113 
39 51632) 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 
 
 
 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Monday, 18th July, 2011 
at 2.00 pm 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
 

G Driver (Chair) 
P Grahame 
N Taggart 
A Lowe 
T Hanley 
G Hussain 
 

C Campbell 
G Kirkland 
 

W Hyde 
C Fox 
 

J Elliott 
 

 
 

 Co-opted Member 
 
  G Tollefson 
 (Chair of Standards Committee) 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded).  
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration  
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81(3) if the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence from the 
meeting. 
 
 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 15th June 2011. 
 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  KPMG INTERIM AUDIT REPORT 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
identifying the findings from KPMG’s interim audit 
work in relation to the 2010/11 financial statements 
and the initial work undertaken to support their 
2010/11 Value for Money conclusion. 
 

7 - 44 

8   
 

  2010/11 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources to 
present to the Committee the 2010/11 Statement 
of Accounts for Leeds City Council prior to them 
being made available for public inspection. 
 

45 - 
56 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
providing The Committee with an overview of the 
risk management work conducted by the Risk 
Management Unit (RMU) in the last year. 
 

57 - 
62 

10   
 

  ANNUAL MONITORING OF KEY AND MAJOR 
DECISIONS 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
providing an annual review in respect of the 
monitoring of Key and Major decisions notified to 
Democratic Services during the financial year 
2010/11. 
 

63 - 
92 

11   
 

  LOCALISM BILL - OUTCOME OF INITIAL 
CONSULTATION 
 
To receive a report of the City Solicitor providing 
an update on the proposals in the Localism Bill 
about ethical governance issues, and to outline the 
results of the first round of consultation with 
various stakeholders on the future of the ethical 
framework in Leeds. 
 
 

93 - 
106 

12   
 

  COUNCIL HOUSING ASSURANCE 
FRAMEWORK 
 
To receive a report of the Chief Officer for 
Statutory Housing informing The Committee on  
the outturn of the 2010/11 Council Housing 
Management Assurance Framework. 
 

107 - 
112 

13   
 

  PROCUREMENT & COMMISSIONING 
EFFICIENCY SAVINGS 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
informing the Committee of the actions and 
measures in place within the Council to achieve 
the required budget savings during 2011/12. 
 

113 - 
118 



 

E 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

14   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
notifying and inviting comment from the Committee 
upon the work programme. 
 

119 - 
124 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18th July, 2011 

 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Wednesday, 15th June, 2011 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor G Driver in the Chair 

 Councillors P Grahame, N Taggart, 
C Campbell, G Kirkland, J Elliott, W Hyde, 
T Hanley, C Fox and G Hussain 
 

 Co-optee  G Tollefson 
 

 
Apologies Councillors A Lowe 

 
 
 
 

1 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents  
 

There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents. 
 

2 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

There were no resolutions to exclude the public. 
 

3 Late Items  
 

There were no late items submitted to the agenda for consideration. 
 

4 Declaration of Interests  
 

Councillors Campbell and Driver declared a personal interest in Agenda item 
11 (Minute 11. refers) as Members of Plans Panel. 
 

5 Apologies For Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Lowe. 
 

6 Minutes Of The Previous Meeting  
 

The minutes of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee meeting held 
on 18th April 2011 were approved as a correct record. 
 

7 Future of Local Public Audit; Consultation Response  
 

The Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) presented a report of the Director of 
Resources which informed the Committee on some fundamental changes 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) are consulting on in relation to the 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18th July, 2011 

 

local public audit regime. The paper allowed Members the opportunity to 
shape and influence the Council’s response to the consultation exercise. 
 
The Committee discussed the report in detail. Initially Members considered 
the merits of an annual Council report on the key business activities and 
targeted at the public.  
 
The consultation document proposes that with the abolition of the Audit 
Commission, Council’s will appoint their own external auditors. In order for 
them to do so, CLG suggest that Councils’ audit committee should be made 
up of a majority of independent members (i.e. not councillors) to help ensure 
the independence of the external auditors. Members felt that the Committee 
was already independent as it operated as a separate body to the Executive 
Board and that, as democratically elected representatives, they were the 
appropriate body to recommend the appointment of external auditors to 
Council. Furthermore comparisons were made with the private sector and that 
they do not use independent members but non-executive Directors. 
 
Members also considered the extent to which the size of the Council might 
limit the number of audit firms with the capacity, experience and skills to 
tender for this work and the scope that there may be for encouraging other 
firms to be able to tender for such work.  The Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
indicated that there was a reasonable likelihood of elements of the Audit 
Commission’s operation becoming a ‘Mutual’ organisation which might be 
capable of tendering for this scale of work. 
 
The scope of audit  work was also considered, Members concluded that that 
the current scope of the audit should be extended to include an audit of the 
proposed annual report, should there be a new requirement to produce such a 
report. 
 
In discussion Members also confirmed that the Council would not wish to take 
on the function of appointing auditors or independent examiners to smaller 
bodies (such as town councils or large parish councils) within the Council’s 
boundary. 
 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to: 
 

• agree the consultation response subject to the additional comments 
made by the Committee; and  

• request further updates on this matter.  
 
 
(Councillor Taggart entered the meeting at 2.10pm during the discussion of 
this item) 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18th July, 2011 

 

8 Risk Management and the Budget Process  
 

 The Principal Risk Manager presented a report of the Director of Resources 
the report provided an assessment on the robustness of the 2011/12 budget 
risk assessments included in the Director of Resources’ report, ‘Revenue 
Budget and Council Tax 2011/12’ presented to Executive Board on 11 
February 2011. 
 
Members discussed the report in light of the current financial climate. 
Members raised the importance of risks being flagged up to the Council in a 
timely manner giving opportunity for Members to react and noted that budget 
monitoring reports that include a projection of spend to the year end, are 
received by Executive Board on a monthly basis, rather than quarterly as was 
previously the case. Members questioned officers in relation to the financial 
reporting process and received confirmation that budget holders are required 
to review budget spend on a monthly basis and provide a projection for the 
year and that appropriate action is taken if this is not completed. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee Resolved to note the contents of the report.  
 

9 The accurate recognition of assets on the Council's balance sheet  
 

The Principal Finance Manager presented a report of the Director of 
Resources which detailed the new procedures which will minimise the risk 
that sold or demolished assets will still be recognised on the Council’s 
Balance Sheet. 
 
Members discussed the report and questioned officers on how the valuations 
of Council owned property was calculated. In particular highways 
infrastructure assets, and their subsequent depreciation, were considered. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee Resolved to note the improvements in the 
process for minimising the risk that sold or demolished assets are recognised 
on the Council’s Balance Sheet. 
 
 

10 Annual Internal Audit Report  
 

The Head of Internal Audit presented a report of the Director of Resources 
which provided the annual audit opinion on the internal control environment. 
The opinion is that ‘the internal control environment, including key financial 
systems, is well established and continues to operate well in practice. At the 
time of writing, there are no outstanding significant issues arising from the 
work undertaken by internal audit. However, no system of control can provide 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, nor can Internal 
Audit give that assurance.’ 
 
Members discussed the report. Concerns were raised about the monitoring of 
financial arrangements of partnerships particularly those of adult social care. 
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18th July, 2011 

 

Members also reviewed the reporting process for when an audit report results 
in no or limited assurance being provided by Internal Audit and noted the 
escalation process, including reporting to the Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee.  
 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee Resolved to: 
 

• note the assurance given in the Annual Internal Audit report; and 

• approve the Internal Audit Operational Plan; 
 
 

11 Planning Decisions Process  
 

The Head of Planning Services presented a report of the Chief Planning 
Officer. The report provided assurance on the process by which planning 
decisions are taken at the Council. 
 
Members discussed the report in detail, noting that there had been less 
complaints received in relation to planning decisions but an increase in the 
number of complaints being referred to the Ombudsman. 
 
As part of this consideration Members had regard to correspondence received 
from a member of the public and an elected member.  The Head of Planning 
Services addressed all the points made in the correspondence to the 
satisfaction of Members.   
 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee Resolved to:  
 

• note the contents of the report and the assurance that it provides in 
terms of the methodology used in taking planning decisions at the 
Council; and 

• receive a report on planning decision making on an annual basis. 
 
 
 

12 Standards Committee - Annual Report 2010/11  
 

The Head of Governance Services and The Chair of the Standards 
Committee presented a report of the Director of Resources the report 
informed the Committee of the Standards Committee Annual Report 2010/11. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee Resolved to note the Standards Committee 
Annual Report 2010/11. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18th July, 2011 

 

13 Annual report on Community engagement  
 

The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) presented 
a report informing the Committee of the Council’s ability to support residents’ 
involvement in decision making and the development of services. 
 
Members discussed the report and questioned officers on how topics were 
selected.  
 
Members considered that the concept of community engagement was good 
and discussed the positive roles that ‘Facebook’  and ‘Twitter’ could play in 
engaging the community and that the Council should utilise these mediums. 
 
The recruitment process of the citizens panel was also discussed by 
Members.  
 
RESOLVED – The Committee Resolved to: 
 

(a) note that while the Council’s engagement arrangements meet the 
relevant elements of the Code of Corporate Governance, there 
remained scope for the consistency and co-ordination of community 
engagement to be improved; 

(b) recommend that the Code of Corporate governance section 6 should 
be revised to include criteria that address compliance and quality of 
engagement work; 

(c) note the planned improvements to the way we manage community 
engagement; and 

(d) receive regular updates on improvement throughout 2011/12. 
 
 

14 Work Programme  
 

The Director of Resources submitted a report notifying Members of the draft 
work programme. 
 
The Committee reviewed its forthcoming work programme. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee Resolved to note the draft work programme. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Director of Resources 
 
Corporate Governance & Audit Committee 
 
Date: 18th July 2011 
 
Subject: KPMG Interim Audit Report 
 

        
 
 
Executive Summary 

1. KPMG have completed their interim work on the organisational procedures and 
system controls which underpin the Council’s financial statements. They have 
concluded that the procedures and system controls are generally sound.   

2. KPMG have identified two controls on financial systems which require strengthening. 
The main weakness identified was in respect of the authorisation of overtime 
payments for processing via the payroll system. As in previous years, officers 
continue to implement audit recommendations in a timely manner. Appropriate 
improvements to the control environment are being implemented for issues raised in 
the current year in order to mitigate against any potential risks. 

3. Full reliance can and has been placed on the work of Internal Audit.  

4. In respect of the VFM conclusion, KPMG are satisfied that the Authority understands 
the scale of the financial challenge and has responded appropriately to the risks 
contained in its savings plans. 

Recommendations 

5. It is recommended that Members note the positive assurances provide by KPMG  on 
the organisational procedures and system controls which underpin the Council’s 
financial statements.   

1.0 Purpose of this Report 

1.1 This report identifies the findings from KPMG’s interim audit work in relation to the 
2010/11 financial statements and the initial work undertaken to support their 
2010/11 Value for Money conclusion. 

 

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

 

 

Originator: Chris Blythe  
 
Tel: 74287 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



2.0   Background Information 

2.1 A significant proportion of the accounts audit is completed before KPMG receive the 
Council’s financial statements. This initial audit work is designed to gain assurances 
on the Council’s controls and procedures in order to minimise the audit coverage 
required at the final audit stage. The main procedures and controls assessed at this 
interim audit stage are as follows: 

§ review of the Authority’s accounts production process, including work to address 
prior year audit recommendations and the specific risk areas identified for this 
year; 

§ review of the Authority’s work to restate the 2009/10 financial statements under 
International Financial Reporting Standards; 

§ review of the Authority’s general control environment, including the Authority’s IT 
systems; 

§ testing of certain controls over the Authority’s key financial systems with the help 
of internal audit; 

§ review of the internal audit function to determine if we could place reliance upon 
their work. 

2.2 In addition to the interim work on the audit of the final accounts, KPMG also have 
undertaken the initial work on the 2010/11 Value for Money conclusion. 

2.3 This covering report highlights the main findings of this audit work with the detailed 
results shown in the attached KPMG report. 

3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 The key findings of KPMG’s interim audit on the Council’s financial statements are 
as follows: 

Ø The accounts process: There are no issues identified in respect of the progress 
towards completing the IFRS based 2010/11 accounts.  Any issues identified in 
the main audit work in August will be reported back to members of this 
Committee in the External Auditors ISA 260 report in September. 

Ø IT controls: Overall the Council has effective IT controls and they have been 
further strengthened in 2010/11. KPMG made only two low priority 
recommendations (see Appendix 3 in the attached report) for improving access 
monitoring on the Financial Management System and Orchard. These are 
currently being actioned by officers. 

Ø Financial systems: Two control weaknesses have been identified, only one of 
which could potentially lead to further audit testing at KPMG’s final audit visit. 
Officers have considered the current mitigating controls and accepted that 
some further strengthening of the payroll control environment is required.   

3.1 In respect of the Value for Money conclusion, KPMG interim audit work has 
concentrated on: 

Ø Actions used by the Authority to secure the necessary savings in the 2011/12 
budget; 

Ø The capacity of the Authority’s 2011/12 budget to secure financial stability. 

Page 8



This early work was specifically completed to support the Audit Commission study 
on the impact of the 2011/12 local government settlement on the Authorities’ 
finance.   

4 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 

4.1 KPMG’s report provides the Committee with independent assurance on the 
Council’s organisational procedures and system controls which underpin the 
Council’s financial statements. These independent assurances will form part of the 
evidence which underpins the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.   

4.2 The report also shows the initial findings in respect of the Council’s Value for money 
conclusion.  

5 Legal and Resource Implications 

5.1 There are no specific legal or resource issues associated with this report. 

6  Conclusions 

6.1 A summary of the main conclusions made by KPMG in their Interim report are as 
follows: 

§§§§ The Council’s organisational controls are effective overall and there are no 
weaknesses that will have an impact on KPMG’s audit strategy. 

§§§§ Full reliance could be placed on the work of Internal Audit and they are 
compliant with the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government. 

§§§§ The process for completing the Council’s financial statements is adequate and 
there are no key issues identified to date on the convergence to IFRS based 
accounts. 

§§§§ The controls over the Council’s key financial systems are generally sound, 
although further audit work maybe required in respect of the payroll system. 
Officers continue to respond to audit recommendations made and actions from 
previous years have been implemented where appropriate. 

§§§§ In respect of the VFM conclusion, initial findings are that the Authority is on 
target to deliver its planned 2010/11 savings. In respect of the 2011/12 budget, 
KPMG are satisfied that the Authority understands the scale of the financial 
challenge and has responded appropriately to the risks contained in its savings 
plans.   

    
7 Recommendations 

7.1 It is recommended that Members note the positive assurances provide by KPMG  
on the organisational procedures and system controls which underpin the Council’s 
financial statements.    

Background Documents 

KPMG Interim Report 2010/11 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

L
e

e
d

s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c

il

J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
1

a
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

Page 11



1
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

T
h

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 a
t 

K
P

M
G

 

in
 c

o
n

n
e
c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 

re
p

o
rt

 a
re

:

M
ik

e
 M

c
D

o
n

a
g

h

P
a
rt

n
e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
1
 3

3
5
 2

4
4
0

M
o
b
ile

  
0
7
7
4
7
 7

 5
7
1
7
3

m
ic

h
a
e
l.
a
.m

c
d
o
n
a
g
h
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

S
te

v
e
 C

la
rk

D
ir
e
c
to

r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:
 0

1
1
3
 2

5
4
 2

9
1
0

M
o
b
ile

: 
0
7
8
7
6
3
9
0

5
2

4

s
te

p
h
e
n
.c

la
rk

@
k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

A
li

s
o

n
 O

rm
s
to

n

S
e
n
io

r
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:

0
1
1
3
 2

3
1
 3

4
4
4

M
o
b
:l
e

0
7
8
3
3
 4

0
0
8
8
7

a
lis

o
n
.o

rm
s
to

n
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

S
a
m

 B
ra

d
fo

rd

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:
 0

1
1
3
  

2
3
1
 3

6
2
4

s
a
m

.b
ra

d
fo

rd
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

P
a
g

e

R
e
p

o
rt

 s
e
c
ti

o
n

s

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

2

H
e
a
d
lin

e
s

3

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

6

V
F

M
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
1
4

A
p

p
e
n

d
ic

e
s

1
. 

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 (

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

)
2
0

2
. 

F
o
llo

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p
ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

(a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

)
2
3

3
. 

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 (

IT
)

2
4

4
.

F
o
llo

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p
ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 (

IT
)

2
6

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

o
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

W
e
 t

a
k
e
 n

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 t

o
 a

n
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

c
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
a
p

a
c
it

ie
s

, 
o

r 
to

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a
rt

ie
s
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 i

s
s
u

e
d

 a
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it

e
d

 B
o

d
ie

s
. 

T
h

is
 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
a
u

d
it

o
rs

 b
e
g

in
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
o

d
y
. 

W
e
 d

ra
w

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 w
e
b

s
it

e
 a

t 
w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
.

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
u

d
it

o
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t 
a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 s
u

b
s
ti

tu
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
o

d
y
’s

 o
w

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
li
c
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i

s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l

a
w

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
li
c
 m

o
n

e
y
 i

s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r,
 a

n
d

 u
s
e
d

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
a
ll

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

.

If
 y

o
u

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 o

r 
a
re

 d
is

s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

, 
in

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
 y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

M
ik

e
 M

c
D

o
n

a
g

h
,

th
e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
le

a
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
w

h
o

 w
il
l 

tr
y
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

lv
e
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t.
 I

f 
y
o

u
 a

re
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

T
re

v
o

r 
R

e
e
s
 o

n
 0

1
6
1

2
4
6
 4

0
0
0
, 

o
r 

b
y
 e

m
a
il
 t

o
 

tr
e
v
o

r.
re

e
s
@

k
p

m
g

.c
o

.u
k

, 
w

h
o

 i
s
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
’s

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

A
ft

e
r 

th
is

, 
if

 y
o

u
 a

re
 s

ti
ll
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 h

o
w

 y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 h
a
n

d
le

d
 y

o
u

 c
a
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

. 
P

u
t 

y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
in

 w
ri

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 U
n

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 A
u

d
it

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
, 

W
e
s
tw

a
rd

 H
o

u
s
e
, 

L
im

e
 K

il
n

 C
lo

s
e
, 

S
to

k
e
 G

if
fo

rd
, 

B
ri

s
to

l,
 B

S
3
4
 8

S
R

 o
r 

b
y
 e

m
a
il
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

@
a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

.g
o

v
.u

k
.

T
h

e
ir

 t
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

is
 0

8
4
4
 

7
9
8
 3

1
3
1
, 

te
x
tp

h
o

n
e
 (

m
in

ic
o

m
) 

0
2
0
 7

6
3
0
 0

4
2
1
.

Page 12



2
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
e

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

S
c

o
p

e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
:

o
u

r 
in

te
ri

m
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 a
t 

L
e

e
d

s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

(t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
) 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
; 
a

n
d

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 (

V
F

M
) 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

u
p

to
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

O
u

r 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

, 
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 i
n

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

, 
s
e

t 
o

u
t 
th

e
 f
o

u
r 

s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 t
o

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

1
 w

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
u

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
is

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 o
u

r:

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
;

te
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
c
e

rt
a

in
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 k
e

y
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
y
s
te

m
s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
; 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
; 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

w
o

rk
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

a
u

d
it
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 

ri
s
k
 a

re
a

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

is
 y

e
a

r;
 a

n
d

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 r

e
s
ta

te
 t
h

e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l F
in

a
n

c
ia

l R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

(I
F

R
S

).

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 A
u

d
it
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 in

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

1
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 t
h

e
 

n
e

w
 V

F
M

 a
u

d
it
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 U

s
e

 o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 s

c
o

re
d

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
g

im
e

. 
It

a
ls

o
 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
o

u
r 

re
v
is

e
d

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
o

u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 e

a
rl

y
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 V

F
M

 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
:

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 p
re

lim
in

a
ry

 V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t;
 a

n
d

in
it
ia

l w
o

rk
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

1
-1

3
.

S
tr

u
c

tu
re

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

rt

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
d

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
:

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
w

o
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 h

e
a

d
lin

e
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
.

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
o

u
r 

k
e

y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

o
u

tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 V

F
M

 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
.

O
u

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 o

n
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

re
e

. 
W

e
 

h
a

v
e

 a
ls

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 p

ri
o

r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 in
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ic

e
s
 t
w

o
 a

n
d

 f
o

u
r.

A
c

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

W
e
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t
o

 t
h

a
n

k
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 h

e
lp

 a
n

d
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

.

T
h

is
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

t 
s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 

th
e

 k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

ri
s

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
a

te
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
.

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
la

n
n

in
g

Page 13



3
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
d

li
n

e
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s
 o

n
 

e
a

c
h

 a
re

a
.

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 I
T

 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

Y
o

u
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l a
n

d
 I
T

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
  
th

e
 p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

is
s
u

e
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
it
h

e
r 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 o

r 
d

e
e

m
e

d
  
to

 b
e

 s
o

 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

 t
a

k
in

g
 n

o
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
.

S
o

m
e

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
 d

o
e

s
 s

ti
ll 

re
m

a
in

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

ig
h

ts
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
o

k
e

d
 i
n

 a
 t

im
e

ly
 m

a
n

n
e

r 
w

h
e

n
 a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 

le
a

v
e

s
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 in
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
h

re
e

.

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e

r 
k

e
y
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

y
s

te
m

s

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 s

o
u

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e

r 
it
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l s
y
s
te

m
s
. 
 

In
 p

a
y
ro

ll,
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
n

te
rn

a
l a

u
d

it
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
o

v
e

rt
im

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 r

e
la

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f
a

c
t 
th

a
t 
te

n
 o

v
e

rt
im

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 t
e

s
te

d
 b

y
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 f
o

r 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t.
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 o

n
 t
h

is
 t
o

 a
s
c
e

rt
a

in
 

if
 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 a

 w
id

e
r 

is
s
u

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 i
f 

th
e

s
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 
d

e
s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 

in
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 1

0
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
id

 c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 2
5

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 f
o

u
n

d
 1

/2
5

 w
h

e
re

 a
n

 o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 r
e

c
la

im
e

d
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
o

n
 o

n
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 O
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
R

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
in

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
ta

il 
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
. 
O

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
a

g
re

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

u
n

d
e

rl
y
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 a
n

 i
s
o

la
te

d
 in

c
id

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
u

e
 t
o

 h
u

m
a

n
 e

rr
o

r.

M
o

re
 d

e
ta

il 
o

n
 t
h

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 i
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 o

n
e

.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 y
e

t 
to

 f
in

a
lis

e
 a

ll 
o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 w
o

rk
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 f
ix

e
d

 a
s
s
e

ts
, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
  
a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 o

n
ly

 a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
.

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
u

d
it

W
e
 w

e
re

 a
b

le
 t
o

 p
la

c
e

 f
u

ll 
re

lia
n

c
e

 o
n

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
’s

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 

a
re

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
 r

is
k

 

a
re

a
s

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 m

e
t 
k
e

y
 c

lo
s
e

d
o

w
n

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l w
o

rk
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

s
ta

te
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

u
n

d
e

r 
IF

R
S

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
 a

re
a

s
:

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
n

d
in

g
 -

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

u
r 

in
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

1
-2

0
1

3
. 

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

s
s

e
ts

 –
W

e
 w

ill
 f

o
llo

w
 t
h

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 u

p
 a

t 
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
l 
v
is

it
 a

s
 p

e
r 

o
u

r 
o

ri
g

in
a

l t
im

e
ta

b
le

.

IF
R

S
 R

e
s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

-
T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 m

a
d

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 in

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
it
s
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

IF
R

S
. 
T

h
e

 m
a

in
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
le

a
s
e

s
.

Page 14



4
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
d

li
n

e
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s
 o

n
 

e
a

c
h

 a
re

a
.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

O
u

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 d

u
ri

n
g

 o
u

r 
in

te
ri

m
 v

is
it
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

a
s
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
it
s
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

te
rm

s
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 b

a
c
k
d

ro
p

 o
f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 i
n

 a
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
’s

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 i
n

 e
x
te

rn
a

lly
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l c
a

re
 a

n
d

 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
a

n
d

 t
h

e
to

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

a
re

 p
a

c
k
a

g
e

s
 

e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

lly
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

s
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

O
v
e

ra
ll 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 f
o

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

r-
s
p

e
n

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

llo
w

in
g

  
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

c
a

p
it
a

l r
e

c
e

ip
ts

 t
o

 

re
d

u
c
e

 P
F

I 
lia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
e

rv
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 w

e
re

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 b

e
lie

v
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

p
la

c
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 e
n

o
rm

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 u

n
d

e
re

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 g

iv
e

n
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 A
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 f
a

c
t 
th

a
t 
s
o

m
e

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 s

ti
ll 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 w
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t
o

 c
lo

s
in

g
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 in

 L
e

e
d

s
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
s
 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 in

 i
ts

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
.

Page 15



5
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
d

li
n

e
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s
 o

n
 

e
a

c
h

 a
re

a
.

IF
R

S
 r

e
s

ta
te

m
e

n
t

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 u
s
 w

it
h

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

. 
 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

in
it
ia

l r
e

v
ie

w
, 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 in

 

th
e

 U
n

it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 (

‘t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
’)

fo
r 

th
e

 m
a

jo
r 

a
re

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
:

•
E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 –

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 a
 1

0
%

 s
a

m
p

le
  
o

f 
a

ll 
n

o
n

-t
e

a
c
h

in
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 f
o

r 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 a

n
d

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
s
 a

 b
a

s
is

 f
o

r 
c
a

lc
u

la
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 h

o
lid

a
y
 p

a
y
 a

c
c
ru

a
l,
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 r
a

te
s
 w

e
re

 7
9

%
 a

n
d

 7
3

%
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 
T

h
e

 

s
a

m
p

le
 w

a
s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

p
le

 w
a

s
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 b
a

s
is

 t
o

  

c
a

lc
u

la
te

 t
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 
a

c
c
ru

a
l.
 T

h
e

 t
e

a
c
h

e
rs

 a
c
c
ru

a
l h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
 p

ro
-f

o
rm

a
 in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 C
IP

F
A

 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

. 

•
G

ro
u

p
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

–
A

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
g

ro
u

p
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ri

e
s
 w

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
IF

R
S

. 
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

. 
 

•
N

o
n

-c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
s

s
e

ts
 –

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 n
o

n
-c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

ts
 a

re
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d

 h
e

ld
 f
o

r 

s
a

le
 a

s
s
e

ts
. 
W

e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
  
th

e
ir

 a
s
s
e

ts
 in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
. 

•
C

a
p

it
a

l 
g

ra
n

ts
 –

C
a

p
it
a

l 
g

ra
n

ts
 n

o
w

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 u
n

le
s
s
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 m

e
t.

 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

ll 
c
a

p
it
a

l g
ra

n
ts

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

.

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 it
e

m
s

T
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 i
te

m
s
 a

re
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
l 
v
is

it
. 

•
L

e
a

s
e

s
 –

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e

 I
F

R
S

 r
e

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

w
e

 a
re

 

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
  
a

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 l
e

a
s
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
a

s
 l
o

n
g

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

n
o

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

re
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

•
F

u
ll 

s
e

t 
o

f 
IF

R
S

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 n
o

te
s
 -

W
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 

re
s
ta

ti
n

g
 b

u
t 
w

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 a
u

d
it
 t
h

e
 f
u

ll 
s
e

t 
o

f 
IF

R
S

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
c
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

•
G

ro
u

p
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 –

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 r

e
a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 I
F

R
S

 b
u

t 
s
ti
ll 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 

a
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 o

f 
e

n
ti
ti
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 if

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
n

y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 I
F

R
S

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

•
F

ix
e

d
 a

s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

-
T

h
e

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

s
s
e

ts
 in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 I
F

R
S

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 

n
o

w
 n

e
e

d
 u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 f
ix

e
d

 a
s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r.

 

Page 16



6
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 I

T
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
p

e
ra

te
d

 a
t 
a

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l l
e

v
e

l 
o

ft
e

n
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
t 

a
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 i
f 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 t
h

is
 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
. 

In
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 w

e
 u

s
e

d
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 U

s
e

 o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 i
n

fo
rm

 o
u

r 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
. 
D

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 

s
c
o

p
e

 o
f 
th

e
 V

F
M

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 m
o

re
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 

w
o

rk
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

p
in

io
n

.

W
e
 o

b
ta

in
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 if
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 
W

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 r

e
lie

s
 o

n
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 (

IT
) 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

o
th

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
ly

 o
n

 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
IT

, 
w

e
 o

b
ta

in
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 if
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

T
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 w

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

o
s
e

 o
v
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 

d
a

ta
, 
s
y
s
te

m
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
, 
s
y
s
te

m
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
.

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

W
e
 f
o

u
n

d
 y

o
u

r 
IT

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
is

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

a
n

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 in
 y

e
a

r.
 W

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
w

o
 a

re
a

s
 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t.

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
a

is
e

d
 t
w

o
 l
o

w
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 I
T

 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
t 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 h

e
lp

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 n

o
te

d
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 k
e

y
 I

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

Y
o

u
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

is
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 

o
v
e

ra
ll

. 

Y
o

u
r 

IT
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

is
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll

 a
n

d
 h

a
s

 

b
e

e
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 i
n

 

y
e

a
r.

 

W
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
w

o
 a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

 

A
s

p
e

c
t

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
(g

re
e

n
)

P
h

il
o

s
o

p
h

y
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 s

ty
le

(g
re

e
n

)

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

o
s

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
 w

it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
(g

re
e

n
)

H
u

m
a

n
 r

e
s

o
u

rc
e

 p
o

li
c

ie
s

 a
n

d
 p

ra
c

ti
c

e
s

(g
re

e
n

)

R
is

k
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c

e
s

s
(g

re
e

n
)

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 s
y
s

te
m

s
(g

re
e

n
)

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

(g
re

e
n

)

A
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 s
y
s

te
m

s
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 (

IT
)

(a
m

b
e

r)

S
y
s

te
m

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 (

IT
)

(g
re

e
n

)

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 s

y
s

te
m

s
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 (
IT

)
(g

re
e

n
)

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
, 
in

c
l.

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

in
g

 a
n

d
 b

a
c

k
u

p
  

(I
T

)

(g
re

e
n

)

E
n

d
-u

s
e

r 
c

o
m

p
u

ti
n

g
 (

IT
)

(g
re

e
n

)

K
e
y:

(r
e

d
)

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

(a
m

b
e
r)

M
in

o
r 

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

.

(g
re

e
n
)

G
e
n
e
ra

lly
 s

o
u
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

Page 17



7
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

k
e
y
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 y
o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 k

e
y
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
to

 o
u

r 

fi
n

a
l a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
. 
W

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 o
u

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 

w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

W
e
 t
h

e
n

 t
e

s
t 
s
e

le
c
te

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 t
h

a
t 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
s
e

 

s
y
s
te

m
s
. 
T

h
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n

fo
rm

s
 t
h

e
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 w

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 d

u
ri

n
g

 o
u

r 
fi
n

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 v

is
it
. 

O
u

r 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 k
e

y
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 b

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

in
te

rn
a

l a
u

d
it
o

rs
’ o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

a
t 
s
y
s
te

m
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 w
e

 a
re

 s
o

le
ly

 

in
te

re
s
te

d
 in

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

, 
i.
e

. 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 m
a

te
ri

a
lly

 r
e

lia
b

le
 

fi
g

u
re

s
 f
o

r 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 in

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

T
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
y
s
te

m
 a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 

s
o

u
n

d
 b

u
t 
w

e
 n

o
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
th

e
s
e

 w
e

re
:

W
e
a

k
n
e

s
s
 1

: 
O

v
e

rt
im

e
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n
;

W
e
a

k
n
e

s
s
 2

: 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 O
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
R

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 –

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
e

n
a

n
ts

 (
H

R
A

).

In
te

rn
a

l a
u

d
it
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 o

n
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 1

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 in

 t
h

e
ir

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
.

O
u

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
ils

 a
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 y
e

t 
to

 f
in

a
lis

e
 a

ll 
o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 w
o

rk
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 f
ix

e
d

 a
s
s
e

ts
, 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

o
p

e
ra

te
 o

n
ly

 a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r
th

e
 k

e
y
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

y
s

te
m

 a
re

 

g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 s

o
u

n
d

.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 s

o
m

e
 

w
e

a
k

n
e

s
s

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c

t 
o

f 

P
a

y
ro

ll
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
.

W
e

 m
a

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti

v
e

 w
o

rk
 

in
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

a
s

 a
t 

y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
, 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
o

rk
 t

h
a

t 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 i

s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
.

S
y
s

te
m

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
(g

re
e

n
)

G
ra

n
t 

in
c

o
m

e
(g

re
e

n
)

H
o

u
s

in
g

 r
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
o

m
e

(g
re

e
n

)

C
o

u
n

c
il

 t
a

x
 i
n

c
o

m
e

(g
re

e
n

)

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 r

a
te

s
 i
n

c
o

m
e

(g
re

e
n

)

S
u

n
d

ry
 i

n
c

o
m

e
(g

re
e

n
)

P
a

y
ro

ll
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(a
m

b
e

r)

N
o

n
-p

a
y
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(g
re

e
n

)

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 e
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
(g

re
e

n
)

C
a

s
h

(g
re

e
n

)

T
re

a
s

u
ry

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

(g
re

e
n

)

C
a

p
it

a
l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(g
re

e
n

)

A
s

s
e

t 
d

is
p

o
s

a
ls

(g
re

e
n

)

A
s

s
e

t 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s

(g
re

e
n

)

K
e
y:

(r
e

d
)

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

(a
m

b
e
r)

M
in

o
r 

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

.

(g
re

e
n
) 

G
e
n
e
ra

lly
 s

o
u
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

Page 18



8
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
u

d
it

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 y
o

u
r 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

fo
r 

k
e

y
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
k
 t
o

 r
e

ly
 o

n
 a

n
y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
w

o
rk

 t
h

e
y
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 u

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 d

u
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

.

W
h
e

re
 w

e
 i
n

te
n

d
 t
o

 r
e

ly
 o

n
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
’s

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 k

e
y
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
a

u
d

it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 u

s
 t
o

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 

e
v
a

lu
a

te
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
t 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
ir

 w
o

rk
. 

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
’s

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

-

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
te

s
ts

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

m
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 h
e

ld
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 I
n

te
rn

a
l A

u
d

it
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

s
 t
h

e
y
 a

ri
s
e

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

w
h

e
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 b
e

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 in

to
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 p

la
n

n
in

g
.

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
’s

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
.

T
h

is
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 s

e
lf
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 

A
u

d
it
, 
o

u
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 f
ile

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

l 

lia
is

o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
, 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 a
t 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

In
te

rn
a

l A
u

d
it
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 o
u

r 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 

p
ro

to
c
o

l t
o

 a
 g

o
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
, 
a

n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 a
g

a
in

 a
b

le
 t
o

 p
la

c
e

 f
u

ll 

re
lia

n
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

a
t 
w

o
rk

.

In
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 c

o
m

p
li

e
s

 w
it

h
 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 f
o

r 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

W
e

 e
n

c
o

u
n

te
re

d
 o

n
e

 i
s

s
u

e
 i
n

 

re
s

p
e

c
t 

o
f 

a
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

e
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
  
re

c
o

n
c

il
ia

ti
o

n
 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 f
u

ll
y
 r

e
-

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
. 
W

h
e

n
 w

e
 r

e
-

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c

il
ia

ti
o

n
 

w
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 f

ig
u

re
s

 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 i
t 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 c
o

rr
e

c
tl

y
. 

K
e
y:

(r
e
d
)

N
o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

.

(a
m

b
e
r)

M
in

o
r 

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
.

(g
re

e
n
)

F
u
ll 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

.

A
s

p
e

c
t

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

S
c

o
p

e
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
(g

re
e

n
)

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
(g

re
e

n
)

E
th

ic
s

 f
o

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
(g

re
e

n
)

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
(g

re
e

n
)

S
ta

ff
in

g
, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

(g
re

e
n

)

A
u

d
it

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

(g
re

e
n

)

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

(g
re

e
n

)

A
u

d
it

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

(g
re

e
n

)

D
u

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s

io
n

a
l 
c

a
re

(g
re

e
n

)

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
(g

re
e

n
)

Page 19



9
©

 2
0

1
1

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e
 is

s
u

e
d

 o
u

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 P

ro
to

c
o

l 
o

n
 1

4
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
.

T
h

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

. 
It

 

a
ls

o
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 w
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

.

W
e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
w

it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
m

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 c

lo
s
e

d
o

w
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
in

te
ri

m
 w

o
rk

 w
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 in

 a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 in

 o
u

r 
IS

A
 2

6
0

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

.

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

W
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
a

t 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 is

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
. 

K
e

y
 c

lo
s
e

d
o

w
n

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
e

t 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

w
o

rk
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 I
F

R
S

 r
e

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 m
o

re
 

d
e

ta
il 

o
n

 p
a

g
e

 1
0

 &
 1

1
.

T
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 is

 o
n

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o

 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 w
e

 c
a

n
n

o
t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

t 

th
is

 t
im

e
 b

u
t 
w

ill
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1

0
-1

1
 I
S

A
 2

6
0

 

re
p

o
rt

.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 o
v
e

ra
ll

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 i
s

 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 

ra
is

e
d

 i
n

 o
u

r 
2

0
0

9
-1

0
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

a
re

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
d

u
e

 f
o

r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
s

 t
h

e
y
 

re
la

te
 t

o
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

Is
s

u
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

F
ix

e
d

A
s

s
e

t
D

is
p

o
s

a
ls

O
u

r
re

v
ie

w
o

f
F

ix
e

d
A

s
s
e
t

re
v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n

s
fo

u
n

d
th

e
re

w
e

re
s
ix

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
w

h
ic

h
w

e
re

re
v
a
lu

e
d

in
th

e
y
e

a
r

w
h

ic
h

w
e

re

in
c
lu

d
e

d
o

n
th

e
fi
x
e

d
a

s
s
e

t
re

g
is

te
r

w
h

ic
h

s
h

o
u

ld
n

o
t
h

a
v
e

b
e

e
n

.

O
f

th
e
s
e

,
fi
v
e

o
f

th
e

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
h

a
d

b
e

e
n

d
is

p
o
s
e
d

o
f

in
p

ri
o

r
y
e

a
rs

a
n

d
o

n
e

a
s
s
e

t
h

a
d

b
e
e
n

d
u
p

lic
a

te
d

o
n

th
e

fi
x
e

d

a
s
s
e

t
re

g
is

te
r.

T
h

e
v
a

lu
e

o
f

th
e

s
e

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
w

a
s

£
3

.2
m

,
th

is
h

a
d

a
lr

e
a

d
y

b
e

e
n

a
d

ju
s
te

d
b

y
th

e
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

in
th

e
a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d

b
y

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a

t
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
re

v
ie

w
s

a
ll

it
e

m
s

w
it
h

in
th

e
F

ix
e

d
A

s
s
e

t
re

g
is

te
r

w
h

ic
h

h
a

v
e

n
o

t
b

e
e

n
re

v
a

lu
e

d

re
c
e
n

tl
y

to
e

n
s
u

re
th

a
t

th
e

s
e

a
s
s
e

ts
a

re
s
ti
ll

o
w

n
e

d
b

y
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
.

T
h

is
in

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
o

f
c
o

n
tr

o
l

w
e

a
k
n
e

s
s

is

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
s
e

ri
o

u
s

b
u

t
m

it
ig

a
te

d
a

s
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
w

e
re

a
w

a
re

o
f
th

is
p

ri
o

r
to

o
u

r
a

u
d

it
.

N
o

t
y
e

t
d

u
e

.

O
ff

ic
e

rs
e

x
p

e
c
t

to

im
p
le

m
e

n
t

th
is

d
u

ri
n
g

th
e

c
lo

s
e

-d
o

w
n

p
ro

c
e

s
s
.

T
h

is
is

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t
w

it
h

o
u

r
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
a

n
d

w
e

w
ill

re
p

o
rt

o
u

r
fi
n
d

in
g

in
th

e
IS

A
2

6
0

re
p

o
rt

.

F
ix

e
d

A
s

s
e

t
V

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

s

D
u

ri
n

g
o

u
r

w
o

rk
w

e
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
th

re
e

a
s
s
e

ts
w

h
ic

h
h

a
d

b
e
e

n
re

v
a

lu
e

d
d

u
ri
n

g
th

e
y
e
a

r,
h
o
w

e
v
e

r
th

e
s
e

re
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

s

(u
p

w
a

rd
s
)

h
a

d
n

o
t
b

e
e

n
re

fl
e

c
te

d
in

th
e

fi
x
e

d
a

s
s
e

t
re

g
is

te
r.

(T
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
)

fu
rt

h
e

r
re

v
ie

w
fo

u
n

d
tw

o
m

o
re

a
s
s
e

ts
w

h
e

re
th

e
s
a

m
e

s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
o

c
c
u

rr
e
d

.
T

h
is

h
a
s

re
s
u

lt
e

d
a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

to
th

e
F

ix
e

d
A

s
s
e

t
b

a
la

n
c
e

in
th

e
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
o

f
£

1
.9

4
2

m
.

T
h

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
s
h

o
u

ld
e

n
s
u

re
th

a
t
a

ll
fi
x
e

d
a

s
s
e

t
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s

a
re

u
p

d
a

te
d

to
th

e
F

ix
e

d
A

s
s
e

t
R

e
g

is
te

r
e

a
c
h

y
e

a
r.

N
o

t
y
e

t
d

u
e

.

O
ff

ic
e

rs
e

x
p

e
c
t

to

im
p
le

m
e

n
t

th
is

d
u

ri
n
g

th
e

c
lo

s
e

-d
o

w
n

p
ro

c
e

s
s
.

T
h

is
is

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t
w

it
h

o
u

r
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
a

n
d

w
e

w
ill

re
p

o
rt

o
u

r
fi
n
d

in
g

in
th

e
IS

A
2

6
0

re
p

o
rt

.

Page 20



1
0

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

IF
R

S
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

F
ro

m
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 t
h

e
ir

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 I
F

R
S

 b
a

s
e

d
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 in

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

re
g

im
e

.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 r
e

s
ta

te
 i
ts

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

IF
R

S
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 in

 i
ts

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

IF
R

S
. 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 in

 r
e

s
ta

ti
n

g
 i
ts

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l F
in

a
n

c
ia

l R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

(I
F

R
S

).

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 m
a

te
ri

a
l a

re
a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

in
 o

u
r 

in
it
ia

l 
IF

R
S

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

w
e

re
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 e
a

s
y
 t

o
 f
o

llo
w

. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 a

re
a

s
 a

s
 n

o
te

d
 i
n

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 

p
la

n
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 in
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
u

ra
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

in
it
ia

l r
e

v
ie

w
, 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 i
n

 

lin
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
. 
W

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 is
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
e

re
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 a
g

re
e

in
g

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 

p
re

v
e

n
te

d
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 o

c
c
u

rr
in

g
. 
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 W
o

rk

W
o
rk

 is
 s

ti
ll 

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 in
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
re

a
s
:

•
L

e
a

s
e

s
 –

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 t
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s
 o

f 
le

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 I
F

R
S

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 is
 a

n
 

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

ie
c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
v
ie

w
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 a
g

re
e

d
, 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

fi
g

u
re

s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b

e
 r

e
a

d
y
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 v

is
it
. 
 T

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 

w
it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
  
a

 

ri
g

o
ro

u
s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 in
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 le

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

th
e

re
fo

re
 n

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

re
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

s
 l
o

n
g

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
.

•
U

p
d

a
te

 o
f 

F
ix

e
d

 A
s

s
e

t 
R

e
g

is
te

r 
–

T
h

e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 

a
s
s
e

ts
 in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 I
F

R
S

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 n
o

w
 

n
e

e
d

 u
p

d
a

ti
n

g
  
o

n
 t
h

e
 f
ix

e
d

 a
s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r.

 W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 f
ix

e
d

 

a
s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

to
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
le

d
g

e
r 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 v

is
it
.

•
G

ro
u

p
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 –
A

 r
e

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
g

ro
u

p
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ri

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
IF

R
S

. 
T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
ill

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 

e
n

ti
ti
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ri
e

s
 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 i
f 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
n

y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
A

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
 i
t 
is

 n
o

t 
th

o
u

g
h

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 

a
n

y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
g

ro
u

p
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

•
F

u
ll

 s
e

t 
o

f 
IF

R
S

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 n

o
te

s
–

W
o
rk

 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 r
e

s
ta

ti
n

g
 in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

IF
R

S
 a

n
d

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 

n
e

e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
in

 a
 f
u

ll 
s
e

t 
o

f 
IF

R
S

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 n
o

te
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

c
lo

s
e

d
o

w
n

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
. 
 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s

 m
a

d
e

 

c
o

n
s

id
e

ra
b

le
 p

ro
g

re
s

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

re
s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

it
s

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 u
n

d
e

r 

IF
R

S
.

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
re

a
 i
s

 

le
a

s
e

s
. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 o

th
e

r 

a
re

a
s

 w
h

ic
h

 a
ls

o
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
, 
th

e
 

fi
x

e
d

 a
s

s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 f

u
ll

 s
e

t 
o

f 

IF
R

S
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

t 
fi

n
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
,

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 

re
s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 a
re

 

s
a

ti
s

fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
re

s
s

e
d

. 

Page 21



1
1

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

IF
R

S
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

•
C

o
m

p
o

n
e

n
t 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
  
–

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 
th

e
 I
F

R
S

 r
e

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

th
a

t 
is

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
o

 r
e

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

 c
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
l 
v
is

it
 a

s
 o

ri
g

in
a

lly
 p

la
n

n
e

d
.

Im
p

a
c
t 
o

f 
IF

R
S

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts

T
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t:

•
IA

S
 2

0
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ts
 –

U
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 S

o
R

P
, 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ts
 D

e
fe

rr
e

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 in

c
o

m
e

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 c
a

p
it
a

l e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
. 
T

h
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 in
 t
h

is
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 

w
a

s
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 u

s
e

fu
l 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 li
fe

 o
f 

th
e

 a
s
s
e

t.

U
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 C
o

d
e

 (
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 I
F

R
S

) 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 u
n

le
s
s
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 

n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 m

e
t.

 T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

ra
n

ts
 

d
e

fe
rr

e
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t.
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
d

e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

ra
n

t 
d

e
fe

rr
e

d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

  
(w

it
h

in
 c

re
d

it
o

rs
) 

fr
o

m
 £

4
2

7
m

 t
o

 

z
e

ro
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t
h

is
 t
o

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(w

it
h

in
 

re
s
e

rv
e

s
).

F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

, 
a

ll 
c
a

p
it
a

l g
ra

n
ts

 c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 ‘
c
a

p
it
a

l g
ra

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 

a
d

v
a

n
c
e

’ i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 (
£

7
3

m
) 

a
n

d
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 (

£
8

6
m

) 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
. 

W
h
e

re
 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 b
u

t 
th

e
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 h

a
s
 

n
o

t 
y
e

t 
b

e
e

n
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 t
h

is
 n

o
w

 n
e

e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 

u
s
a

b
le

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

 ‘
C

a
p

it
a

l 
G

ra
n

ts
 U

n
a

p
p

lie
d

’.
 

Page 22



1
2

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

In
 o

u
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

, 
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 o

n

2
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

 w
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 r

e
m

a
in

 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

s
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 T

o
 d

a
te

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 n
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 t
o

 y
o

u

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 w

it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

re
g

u
la

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 
w

e
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 r
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

s
 

a
n

d
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 w
o

rk
. 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 r

is
k
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
a

is
e

d
 i
n

 

o
u

r 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 a
n

d
 i
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
m

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 s

ti
ll 

e
x
is

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 

c
a

re
fu

l m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
is

it
 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 o
u

r 

fi
n

a
l a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
.

T
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t
o

 d
a

te
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
s
e

 r
is

k
s

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

h
e

 

k
e

y
 r

is
k

 a
re

a
s

 w
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

s
e

ri
o

u
s

ly
 a

n
d

 m
a

d
e

 g
o

o
d

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 i
n

 a
d

d
re

s
s

in
g

 

th
e

m
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

s
e

 s
ti

ll
 p

re
s

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
 t

h
a

t 

re
q

u
ir

e
 c

a
re

fu
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 f

o
c

u
s

. 
W

e
 w

il
l 
re

v
is

it
 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

a
s

 d
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

fi
n

a
l 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
.

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s

u
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
s

ta
n

d
in

g
/

m
e
d

iu
m

te
rm

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l

p
la

n
n

in
g

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
it
 w

a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 

£
9

0
 m

ill
io

n
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l y
e

a
r 

 t
o

 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 t
w

in
 c

o
n

s
tr

a
in

ts
 o

f 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 a
n

d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
. 
T

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 
h

a
s
 s

in
c
e

 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
 f
ig

u
re

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

.

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
, 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

W
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 e
a

rl
y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 in

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

o
f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 /
 

M
T

F
P

Page 23



1
3

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

h
e

 

k
e

y
 r

is
k

 a
re

a
s

 w
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

s
e

ri
o

u
s

ly
 a

n
d

 m
a

d
e

 g
o

o
d

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 i
n

 a
d

d
re

s
s

in
g

 

th
e

m
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

s
e

 s
ti

ll
 p

re
s

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
 t

h
a

t 

re
q

u
ir

e
 c

a
re

fu
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 f

o
c

u
s

. 
W

e
 w

il
l 
re

v
is

it
 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

a
s

 d
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

fi
n

a
l 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
.

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s

u
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
o

f
C

o
u

n
c

il
A

s
s

e
ts

V
a

lu
a
ti
o
n

o
f

C
o

u
n

c
il

A
s
s
e

ts
is

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
to

b
e

a

k
e

y
a

u
d

it
ri

s
k

fo
r

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

a
s
o

n
s
:

D
u

ri
n

g
2
0

0
9

/1
0

a
u
d

it
w

e
fo

u
n
d

a
s
m

a
ll

n
u
m

b
e

r

o
f
e

rr
o

rs
re

la
ti
n

g
to

fi
x
e

d
a

s
s
e

t
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

e
re

is
a

c
h

a
n
g

e
in

th
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
p

ro
c
e
s
s

d
u

ri
n
g

2
0
1

0
/1

1
a
s

th
e

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

a
re

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
th

e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

V
a
lu

e
rs

fr
o
m

fi
v
e

to
o

n
e

,
b

ri
n

g
in

g
a

ll

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s

in
h

o
u

s
e

.

T
h

e
re

a
re

a
d
d

e
d

c
o

m
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
in

th
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n

o
f

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

a
s
s
e

ts
d

u
ri
n

g
2

0
1
0

/1
1

d
u

e
to

c
o

m
p

o
n
e

n
ti
s
a
ti
o
n

a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

th
e

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
to

IF
R

S
.

W
e

h
a

v
e

re
v
ie

w
e

d
th

e
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
b

y
w

h
ic

h
th

e
in

te
rn

a
l

v
a

lu
e

r'
s

h
a

v
e

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
th

e
ir

w
o

rk
a

n
d

d
o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
o

u
r

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
o

f
th

e
c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
e

,
in

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e

a
n

d

o
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y

o
f
th

e
in

te
rn

a
l
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
e

rv
ic

e
.

T
h

e
re

m
a

in
d

e
r

o
f

o
u

r
w

o
rk

w
ill

b
e

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
a

t
y
e

a
r

e
n

d
a

n
d

re
p

o
rt

e
d

to
y
o

u
in

th
e

IS
A

2
6
0

.
T

h
is

w
ill

in
c
lu

d
e

:

A
re

v
ie

w
o

f
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s

o
b

ta
in

e
d

b
y

th
e

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

fr
o

m
th

e
in

-h
o
u

s
e

te
a
m

to
e

n
s
u

re
th

a
t

a
s
s
e

t
v
a

lu
e

s

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y

re
c
o

rd
e

d
in

a
s
s
e

t
re

g
is

te
rs

a
n
d

th
e

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

ls
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

A
n

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
o

f
v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
s

fo
r

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

n
e
s
s
.

A
re

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
fo

r
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

a
s
s
e

ts
w

h
ic

h
m

a
y

re
q

u
ir

e
im

p
a

ir
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

c
o
n

s
id

e
r

w
h

e
th

e
r

th
e
s
e

im
p

a
ir

m
e
n

ts
h

a
v
e

b
e

e
n

a
c
c
o
u

n
te

d
fo

r

c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y

w
it
h

in
th

e
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

ls
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

IF
R

S
c

o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
p

ro
c

e
s

s

T
h

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
w

ill
re

q
u
ir

e
a

lo
t

o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s

to
e

n
s
u

re
a

s
m

o
o
th

a
n
d

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
to

IF
R

S
.

T
h

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a

v
e

a
n

IF
R

S
W

o
rk

P
la

n
in

p
la

c
e

w
it
h

le
a

d
o

ff
ic

e
rs

b
e

in
g

a
llo

c
a

te
d

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

fo
r

in
d
iv

id
u

a
l
w

o
rk

a
re

a
s
.

T
h

e
fi
n

a
n

c
e

te
a

m
h

a
v
e

in
v
o

lv
e

d
u
s

a
t

a
n

e
a

rl
y

s
ta

g
e

in
th

e
c
o
n

v
e

rs
io

n

p
ro

c
e

s
s

a
n
d

a
re

k
e

e
p
in

g
u

s
u

p
to

d
a
te

w
it
h

p
ro

g
re

s
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

th
e

W
o
rk

P
la

n
a
s

w
e

ll
a

s

s
e

e
k
in

g
c
la

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
o

n
s
p

e
c
if
ic

is
s
u

e
s
.

W
e

h
a

v
e

re
p

o
rt

e
d

e
a

rl
y

fi
n
d

in
g

s
o
n

p
a
g

e
n
in

e
a

n
d

te
n

o
f
th

is
re

p
o

rt
.

W
e

h
a

v
e

a
u

d
it
e
d

th
e

re
-s

ta
te

d
2
0

0
9
/1

0
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t
fi
g

u
re

s
,

w
h

e
re

a
v
a

ila
b

le
.

D
u

ri
n
g

th
is

ti
m

e
w

e

h
a

v
e

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
th

e
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s

b
e
in

g
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

b
y

th
e

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

a
n

d
p

ro
v
id

e
d

a
d

v
ic

e
o

n
th

is
to

e
n
s
u

re
th

e
fi
n

a
l

y
e

a
r

fi
g

u
re

s
a

re
c
o

m
p

lia
n

t
w

it
h

th
e

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
.

W
e

h
a

v
e

k
e
p

t
in

re
g
u

la
r

c
o
n

ta
c
t

w
it
h

th
e

fi
n

a
n
c
e

te
a
m

d
u

ri
n
g

th
is

p
e

ri
o
d

,
d
is

c
u

s
s
in

g
e

m
e

rg
in

g
is

s
u

e
s

a
n
d

c
u

rr
e

n
t
g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
.

IF
R

S
 

c
o

n
v

e
rs

io
n

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 

A
s
s
e

ts

Page 24



1
4

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 f
o
u

r 
–

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n

N
e
w

 V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d

F
o

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
, 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 t
h

e
ir

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 V

F
M

 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
w

o
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.

T
h

e
s
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 in
 

p
la

c
e

 f
o

r:

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

: 
lo

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
; 
a

n
d

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 h
o

w
 i
t 

s
e

c
u

re
s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
: 

lo
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
it
y
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 s
c
o

re
d

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 is

 t
h

e
 o

n
ly

 o
u

tp
u

t.
 T

h
is

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 a

 ‘
p

a
s
s
 /
 f

a
il’

 s
ty

le
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.

W
e
 f
o

llo
w

 a
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

u
d

it
 e

ff
o

rt
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 

g
re

a
te

s
t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
. 
W

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 a
u

d
it
 d

ra
w

s
 h

e
a

v
ily

 o
n

 o
th

e
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 

o
u

r 
V

F
M

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
la

s
t 
y
e

a
r’

s
 V

F
M

 a
u

d
it
. 
W

e
 

th
e

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 if

 m
o

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 i
n

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
u

d
it
 t
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 

re
v
ie

w
 g

u
id

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

a
n

 d
ra

w
 u

p
o

n
 w

h
e

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t.

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

T
h

e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 V

F
M

 a
u

d
it
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
re

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
 i
n

 

th
e

 d
ia

g
ra

m
 b

e
lo

w
:

W
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

’s
 n

e
w

 V
F

M
 

a
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

 w
il

l 

c
o

n
s

id
e

r 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

s
e

c
u

re
s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 h

o
w

 i
t 

s
e

c
u

re
s

 e
c

o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

.

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

d
e

s
c

ri
b

e
s

 i
n

 m
o

re
 d

e
ta

il
 h

o
w

 

th
e

 n
e

w
 V

F
M

 a
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 

o
p

e
ra

te
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 o

u
r 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
is

k
s

 

im
p

a
c

ti
n

g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

V
F

M
 

c
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

. 

W
e

 w
il

l 
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 

o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 o
u

r 
IS

A
 2

6
0

 

R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
o

f 

re
s
id

u
a

l a
u

d
it
 r

is
k

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 

w
o

rk
 (

if
 a

n
y
)

C
o

n
c
lu

d
e

 o
n

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

to
 s

e
c
u

re
 

V
F

M

N
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
y
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 &

 o
th

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 lo
c
a

l 
ri

s
k
 b

a
s
e

d
 w

o
rk

VFM conclusion

Page 25



1
5

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 B
u

d
g

e
t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e

rm
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l P
la

n
 2

0
1

1
-1

5
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 
to

 a
rr

iv
e

 a
t 
th

e
s
e

.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
:

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 t
h

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

in
 i
ts

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 d
ra

ft
 b

u
d

g
e

t;
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
to

 s
e

c
u

re
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

b
ili

ty
.

T
h

is
 e

a
rl

y
 w

o
rk

 w
a

s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 s

tu
d

y
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 lo

c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
' f

in
a

n
c
e

s
. 
It

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 c
ri

te
ri

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
.

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
‘C

o
re

 
C

it
ie

s
’ w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 N

e
w

c
a

s
tl
e

, 
B

ri
s
to

l,
 M

a
n

c
h

e
s
te

r,
 L

iv
e

rp
o

o
l,
 

N
o

tt
in

g
h

a
m

, 
B

ir
m

in
g

h
a

m
 a

n
d

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

. 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 m
o

n
th

s
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
.

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

In
 i
ts

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l R
e

p
o

rt
 a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

, 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
fo

re
c
a

s
t 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

£
5

.2
 m

ill
io

n
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 in

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 A
d

u
lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
  
in

 e
x
te

rn
a

lly
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
, 
fo

s
te

ri
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

a
re

 p
a

c
k
a

g
e

s
. 
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 
th

is
, 
a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
s
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

A
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 c
e

n
tr

a
lly

 t
o

 o
ff

s
e

t 
th

is
.

T
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
s
e

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
f 
P

F
I 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
R

e
c
e

n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

u
le

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 
o

f 
P

F
I 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 m

e
a

n
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 n
o

w
 b

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 a

s
 

c
a

p
it
a

l s
p

e
n

d
 a

n
d

c
a

n
 b

e
 f
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 in

 a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
o

f 
£

8
.4

m
ill

io
n

. 

O
th

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 m

a
d

e
 w

e
re

 i
n

te
re

s
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£

3
.4

m
ill

io
n

, 
£

3
.2

m
ill

io
n

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 c
a

p
it
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl

y
 L

e
a

v
e

rs
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

, 
£

2
m

ill
io

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 u
s
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 f
u

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 £
3

.2
m

ill
io

n
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
.

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 f
o
u

r 
–

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il
ie

n
c
e

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

u
r 

in
it

ia
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 a
s

s
e

s
s

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

's
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

re
s

il
ie

n
c

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

1
-

2
0

1
3

.

W
h

e
re

a
s

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
o

m
e

 s
li

p
p

a
g

e
 w

it
h

in
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
, 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 i
ts

 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 i
n

 

o
v
e

ra
ll

 t
e

rm
s

, 
a

n
d

 h
a

s
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

t
a

g
a

in
s

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

T
o

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

 t
h

is
, 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 h

a
d

 t
o

 r
e

ly
 o

n
 

s
o

m
e

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
fi

n
a

n
c

ia
l 

m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

. 
M

o
s

tl
y
 t

h
e

s
e

 r
e

la
te

 

to
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s

, 

c
a

p
it

a
li

s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
y
 

c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

F
I 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t.

-1
7
.5

-1
.02

.0

1
.0

5
.5

4
.8

-2
0

-1
5

-1
0

-5
0

5
1
0

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
&

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

a
v
in

g
s

C
e
n
tr

a
l,
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

E
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
s
 a

t 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
 b

y
 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 (
£

m
)

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

, 
1
1
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

Page 26



1
6

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 L

o
c

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
F

in
a

n
c

e
 S

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 a

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 u

s
e

d
 a

n
 

it
e

ra
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

m
e

n
ta

l a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

h
e

re
b

y
  

a
 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

lly
 
a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
k
n

o
w

n
 

is
s
u

e
s
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
n

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
e

d
 t
o

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
m

 t
o

 

m
e

e
t 
a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
(s

e
t)

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
, 
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

lie
s
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l c
ri

s
is

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 in

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0

1
0

 w
h

e
n

 i
t 

s
e

t 
th

e
 2

0
1

0
-1

1
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

n
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 w

a
s
 c

le
a

re
r.

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s
 p

u
t 
b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 w
h

ic
h

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 im

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 S

p
e

n
d

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

. 
In

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 

in
 t
h

e
 l
ig

h
t 
o

f 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 a
 1

0
.6

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
.

T
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

a
t 
a

 £
8

9
.8

m
 o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
1

1
/1

2
 (

m
a

d
e

 u
p

 o
f 
a

1
0

.6
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 in

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

o
f 
5

1
.1

m
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
3

8
.7

m
).

 A
s
 s

u
c
h

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 in

 f
u

n
d

in
g

.

T
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 b
o

a
rd

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

.

T
h

e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
e

t 
in

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
*

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

/ 
in

c
re

a
s

e
d

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
£

3
8

.7
m

il
li

o
n

 –
m

a
in

ly
 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 a
t 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

£
1

1
.2

 m
ill

io
n

) 
a

n
d

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

£
1

6
.3

 m
ill

io
n

) 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
P

lu
s
 d

e
b

t 
c
o

s
ts

 

(£
1

0
m

) 
a

n
d

 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
/o

th
e

r 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 
£

1
.2

m
;

L
o

s
s

 o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 £

5
1

.1
m

–
m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
a

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
£

6
1

.9
m

 o
f 

fo
rm

u
la

/s
p

e
c
if
ic

 g
ra

n
t 
a

n
d

  
in

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 a

n
d

  

N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n

u
s
 o

f 
£

6
.6

m
a

n
d

  
£

4
.2

m
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s

,
d

is
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 &

in
c

o
m

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

8
9

.8
 

m
il

li
o

n
.

*(
fi
g
u
re

s
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 1
1
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

re
p
o
rt

):

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 f
o

rm
u

la
 g

ra
n

t,
 ‘
re

v
e

n
u

e
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 p
o

w
e

r’
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 g

ra
n

ts
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 N
H

S
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
s
o

c
ia

l c
a

re
.

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 f
o
u

r 
–

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il
ie

n
c
e

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 c

u
ts

 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

m
e

n
t.

W
e

 a
re

 s
a

ti
s

fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

le
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 t

e
a

m
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

s
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
 

fa
c

in
g

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

It
 i

s
 

re
s

p
o

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

is
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

in
c

re
a

s
e

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 b

e
li

e
v
e

s
 t

h
a

t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 w

e
ll

 p
la

c
e

d
 t

o
 

d
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 

e
n

o
rm

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 

a
h

e
a

d
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 

u
n

d
e

re
s

ti
m

a
te

d
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
a

u
d

it
e

d
 t

h
e

 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 

s
a

v
in

g
s

 p
la

n
s

.

G
ro

s
s
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 p

la
n

s
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

re
v

e
n

u
e

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 

p
o

w
e

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 –

c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
o

re
 C

it
ie

s

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
L
G

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

d
a
ta

, 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
u
d
g
e
ts

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

L
C

C

0
%

2
%

4
%

6
%

8
%

1
0
%

1
2
%

1
4
%

1
6
%

1
8
%

Page 27



1
7

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 t
o

ta
l 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 e

q
u

a
te

 t
o

 1
3

.2
 

p
e

rc
e

n
t 
o

f 
it
s
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 p
o

w
e

r 
fo

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 

m
id

 p
o

in
t 
o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
im

ila
rl

y
 h

a
rd

 h
it
 b

y
 

th
e

 C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 S

p
e

n
d

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
.

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 s
a

v
in

g
s
. 
A

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
m

a
n

d
a

te
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

lly
 (

e
.g

. 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

, 
p

ri
n

ti
n

g
 

c
o

s
ts

 e
tc

).
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
in

it
ia

lly
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

  
a

s
 s

u
c
h

 w
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

ro
u

n
d

s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
. 

T
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 m

o
n

th
ly

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

y
 

e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 b
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 a

 K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
‘d

a
s
h

b
o

a
rd

’ t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e

v
e

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
re

s
s
u

re
 (

e
.g

. 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

/r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

).

U
s

a
b

le
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

A
s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
d

 a
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 

£
1

6
.1

 m
ill

io
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

q
u

a
te

s
 t
o

 2
.4

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 
o

f 
it
s
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 

s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 p

o
w

e
r.

 T
h

e
 m

e
a

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 c
it
ie

s
 is

 o
n

ly
 m

a
rg

in
a

lly
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
a

t 
2

.7
 p

e
rc

e
n

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 L

e
e

d
s
 d

o
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 

s
m

a
lle

s
t 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
to

ta
l 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

o
f 
a

ll 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
.

T
o

ta
l 
u

s
a

b
le

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
, 
b

u
t 
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h

o
o

l b
a

s
e

d
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
) 

s
to

o
d

 a
t 
£

2
9

 m
ill

io
n

 a
s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

£
7

m
ill

io
n

 (
u

n
d

e
r 

S
in

g
le

 S
ta

tu
s
) 

a
n

d
 P

F
I 

re
s
e

rv
e

s
 o

f 
£

6
 m

ill
io

n
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 f
o

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 t
o

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

 t
h

e
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 w
ill

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 £
1

9
m

ill
io

n
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 a

 r
is

k
 b

a
s
e

d
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

a
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 £
1

6
 m

ill
io

n
 a

n
d

 £
1

9
 m

ill
io

n
 is

 

p
ru

d
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
a

c
e

s
. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 f
o
u

r 
–

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il
ie

n
c
e

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 r

e
c

o
g

n
is

e
s

 

th
a

t 
it

s
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 p
la

n
s

 f
o

r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 a
re

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

. 
It

 i
s

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 

th
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

e
s

.

R
e

s
e

rv
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
o

 

in
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
s

e
 r

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 a
s

 

a
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

d
e

li
v
e

re
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
s

p
e

n
d

.

U
s
e

a
b

le
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 P

o
w

e
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 –
c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
o

re
 C

it
ie

s

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
R

a
ti
o
 t

o
o
l 
-

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

e
b
s
it
e
, 
L
G

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

d
a
ta

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
fu

n
d

 b
a

la
n

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 2

0
0

7
 t

o
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
(£

m
)

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
M

T
F

P
 2

0
1
1
-1

5

L
C

C

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

O
th

e
r 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

L
A

T
S

 r
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

P
F

I 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

Page 28



1
8

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 f
o
u

r 
–

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 r
e

p
o

rt
  
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 o

n
 1

8
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 

o
u

r 
in

it
ia

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
s
 i
m

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
. 

F
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 r
is

k
, 
w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
K

L
o

E
s
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

-c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

ll 
ri

s
k
 a

re
a

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
a

t 
a

ll 
if
 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 o
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

T
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 c
o

v
e

rs
 o

u
r 

p
re

lim
in

a
ry

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 ‘
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 w
it
h

 l
e

s
s
’ 
ri

s
k
 a

n
d

 b
e

lo
w

 w
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
tw

o
 r

is
k
s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 

fi
n

a
l c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
s
 in

 o
u

r 
IS

A
 2

6
0

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

 V
F

M
 r

is
k

s
 w

e
 f

ir
s

t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 o

u
r 

V
F

M
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 

re
p

o
rt

.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

y
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
ri

s
k

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 

u
p

d
a

te
 o

n
 o

u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

 

d
a

te
 i
n

 f
o

rm
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t.

K
e

y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
F

o
c

u
s

 o
f 

w
o

rk
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 t

a
k

e

F
o

llo
w

in
g

th
e

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
c
u

ts
, 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

b
y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 l
o

s
t 
o

v
e

r 
1

,5
0

0
 

jo
b

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l y
e

a
r.

  

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

  
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 e

n
s
u

re
d

 

th
a

t 
it
s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 c

o
s
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

c
u

ts
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
lo

c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 l
o

n
g

 

te
rm

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
s
. 
 

T
o

 d
a

te
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 i
n

it
ia

l c
o

n
v
e

rs
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

v
e

  
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
it
s
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 c

o
s
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

u
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

lo
c
a

l p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

In
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 m
o

n
th

s
 w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
.

E
a

rl
y
 

L
e

a
v
e

rs
 

In
it

ia
ti

v
e

Page 29



1
9

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 f
o
u

r 
–

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

 V
F

M
 r

is
k

s
 w

e
 f

ir
s

t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 o

u
r 

V
F

M
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 

re
p

o
rt

.

K
e

y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
F

o
c

u
s

 o
f 

w
o

rk
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 t

a
k

e

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
w

a
s
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 

L
e

e
d

s
, 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
in

g
 t
o

 b
u

ild
 a

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t 
fa

c
ili

ty
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 w
a

s
te

 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
n

o
t 

b
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
v
e

 n
a

rr
o

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
e

ig
h

t 

b
id

d
e

rs
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 t
w

o
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l b
id

d
e

r 

w
ill

 b
e

 c
h

o
s
e

n
 i
n

 S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
1

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
p

u
b

lic
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 t
h

e
n

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 la
te

r 
in

 2
0

1
1

, 

w
it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 in
 2

0
1

3
. 
  

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 a
n

 e
x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
a

 l
a

rg
e

 s
c
a

le
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

  

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

fo
llo

w
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

is
 m

a
y
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
s
 t
h

a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 le
a

d
 t
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l V
F

M
 w

o
rk

 b
e

in
g

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
.

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 c

ri
te

ri
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 V

F
M

 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
o

u
r

fi
n

a
l

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
v
is

it
w

e
a

re
p

ro
p

o
s
in

g
to

in
v
o

lv
e

o
u

r
P

F
I

&
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

fi
n

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
ts

,
w

h
o

h
a

v
e

a
b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
in

m
a
n

a
g
in

g
,

re
v
ie

w
in

g
a

n
d

a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
w

a
s
te

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

,
to

re
v
ie

w
th

e

p
ro

g
re

s
s

a
n

d
p

ro
c
e
s
s

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
s
o

fa
r

in
th

e

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

W
e

w
ill

u
s
e

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
fr

o
m

th
e

s
e

re
v
ie

w
s

to
a

s
s
e

s
s

h
o

w
th

is
la

rg
e

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
p

ro
c
e
s
s

a
t

th
e

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

h
a
s

d
e

liv
e

re
d

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
,
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y

a
n

d
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
.

W
a

s
te

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Page 30



2
0

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 1

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 g
iv

e
n

 e
a

c
h

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 a
 r

is
k

 

ra
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 i
n

 

a
d

d
re

s
s

in
g

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 r
is

k
s

 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
.

W
e

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
a

ll
y
 f

o
ll

o
w

 u
p

 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
r 

e
a

rl
ie

r 
a

s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 r

a
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

n
e

:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 

fu
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

l a
n

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
to

 y
o

u
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

l.
 W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 
th

a
t 
th

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 m

ig
h

t 
m

e
a

n
 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
 

d
o

 n
o

t 
m

e
e

t 
a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
te

) 
a

 r
is

k
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

w
o

:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
e

ff
e

c
t 
o

n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

b
u

t 
d

o
 n

o
t 
n

e
e

d
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
. 

Y
o

u
 m

a
y
 s

ti
ll 

m
e

e
t 
a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 
in

 f
u

ll 
o

r 
in

 p
a

rt
 o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
te

) 
a

 
ri

s
k
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 b

u
t 
th

e
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 

re
m

a
in

s
 in

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

h
re

e
:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
w

o
u

ld
, 

if
 

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
, 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

l 
in

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
b

u
t 
a

re
 n

o
t 
v
it
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
y
s
te

m
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 
is

s
u

e
s
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 f

e
e

l 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
y
o

u
 i
f 
y
o

u
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 

th
e

m
.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
/ 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r/

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

1

(t
w

o
)

O
v
e

rt
im

e
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n

In
te

rn
a

l A
u

d
it
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 1

0
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

u
t 
o

f 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 
3

0
 w

h
e

re
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 p
a

y
ro

ll 
d

a
ta

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
. 
 A

ll 
1

0
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 o
v
e

rt
im

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
.

In
te

rn
a

l A
u

d
it
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 o

n
 t
h

is
 t
o

 

a
s
c
e

rt
a

in
:

a
) 

If
 t

h
is

 i
s
 w

a
s
 w

id
e

r 
is

s
u

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
; 
a

n
d

b
) 

If
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 
d

e
s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 in

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
.

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 1

0
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 

m
e

n
ti
o

n
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
id

 c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 2
5

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 f
o

u
n

d
 1

/2
5

 

w
h

e
re

 a
n

 o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 

re
c
la

im
e

d
.

T
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
o

v
e

rt
im

e
 p

a
id

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

 w
a

s
 l
e

s
s
 

th
a

n
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 f
o

r 
a

u
th

o
ri

s
in

g
 o

v
e

rt
im

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

a
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 s
o

u
n

d
, 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
:

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o
n

 li
s
ts

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f
th

e
 S

e
lf
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 f
a

c
ili

ty
.

A
u

th
o

ri
s
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

m
in

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
v
e

rt
im

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

re
ta

in
e

d
 in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 

R
u

le
s
.

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 o
v
e

rt
im

e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
e

c
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 I
n

te
rn

a
l a

u
d

it
 a

re
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
ic

 s
a

m
p

le
 

c
h

e
c
k
s
 w

it
h

in
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 s
p

e
n

d
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

rt
im

e
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
n

 a
re

a
 s

c
ru

ti
n

is
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

: 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

D
u

e
 d

a
te

: 
O

c
t 
2

0
1

1
 

Page 31



2
1

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 1

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
/ 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r/

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

2

(t
h

re
e

)

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 O
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 R

e
c

o
n

c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 –
C

o
u

n
c

il
 

T
e

n
a

n
ts

T
h

is
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 t
a

k
e

s
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 d

e
b

to
r 

fi
g

u
re

 in
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

to
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
a

n
ts

 is
 c

o
rr

e
c
t.

 B
e

n
e

a
th

 t
h

is
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p

o
rt

io
n

s
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
h

e
a

d
in

g
s
/b

e
n

e
fi
t 
ty

p
e

s
. 

W
e
 r

e
-p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 O
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 

fo
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
n

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

u
n

d
:

T
h

e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
to

ta
l 
b

e
n

e
fi
t 
o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
e

n
a

n
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 £

3
,8

6
7

,8
1

3
.6

7
. 
W

e
 

fo
u

n
d

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
g

re
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
b

e
n

e
fi
t 
o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
e

n
a

n
ts

 w
a

s
 £

8
5

1
,6

5
0

.2
6

. 
 T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 e

n
te

re
d

 c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 a
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 b
a

s
is

. 
T

h
is

 

m
e

a
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
a

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
tw

o
 a

n
d

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 

q
u

a
rt

e
rs

, 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 a
g

a
in

. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h

 

a
n

y
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 e

rr
o

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

ra
d

ic
a

te
d

.

W
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t
h

a
t,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
h

o
ro

u
g

h
ly

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
is

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 a
t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 

e
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 u

s
e

d
 a

re
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 f
u

lly
 

a
g

re
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

o
u

rc
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
.

If
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
e

e
l 
it
 i
s
 i
n

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 v
e

ri
fy

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 b

y
 t

y
p

e
 o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 b

a
s
is

, 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 t
o

 r
e

-d
e

s
ig

n
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 

th
is

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 o

n
ly

.

T
h

is
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 n

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 

c
la

im
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 f
o

rm
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 

a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
in

g
 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

e
b

to
r 

o
v
e

r 
a

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
C

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
ly

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
l 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 

a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
m

e
n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 d

e
b

to
r,

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

, 
is

 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 f
u

ll 
a

n
d

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
. 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 

a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
m

e
n
t 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

c
c
u

ra
c
y
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r:

 S
e

n
io

r 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
(C

e
n

tr
a

l 
&

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

) 

D
u

e
 d

a
te

: 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

1
.

Page 32



2
2

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 2

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

T
h

is
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 in

 o
u

r 
In

te
ri

m
 A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
n

d
 r

e
-

it
e

ra
te

s
 a

n
y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s

 n
o

t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 o
u

r 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

: 

In
c

lu
d

e
d

 i
n

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 

1

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

o
r 

s
u

p
e

rs
e

d
e

d
 

0

R
e

m
a

in
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
.

1

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s

 a
s

 a
t 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

1

(t
w

o
)

R
e

c
o

n
c

il
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 p
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 

s
y
s

te
m

 t
o

 t
h

e
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 S

y
s

te
m

.

O
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d

it
’s

 

w
o

rk
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 o

n
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 f
u

lly
 

re
c
o

n
c
ile

d
 in

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

th
 c

h
o

s
e

n
 

fo
r 

s
a

m
p

lin
g

. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 

A
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 w
e

 w
ill

 r
e

v
is

it
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 

e
n

d
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
l v

is
it
 l
a

te
r 

in
 2

0
1

0
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 

w
a

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 t

im
in

g
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 t
w

o
 s

y
s
te

m
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

th
a

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
s
in

c
e

 

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 w

a
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
. 
 A

t 
th

e
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 
ti
m

e
 w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
e

n
v
is

a
g

e
 

th
a

t 
th

is
 w

ill
 a

ff
e

c
t 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

T
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 h
e

lp
 

m
in

im
iz

e
 t
h

e
 t
im

in
g

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 in

 t
h

e
 

re
p

o
rt

s
. 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
th

e
 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

ti
m

in
g

 is
s
u

e
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 £

3
,3

9
6

, 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 n

e
t 
b

e
n

e
fi
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

a
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o

f 

o
v
e

r 
£

4
9

m
. 
T

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 
c
la

im
 a

re
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 t
o

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 

th
e

s
e

 m
in

o
r 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 t
im

in
g

 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
.

T
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 m
in

im
iz

e
 t
h

e
 t
im

in
g

 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
. 

Page 33



2
3

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 3

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

IT
 s

y
s

te
m

s
’ 

a
c

c
e

s
s

 f
o

r 
s

o
m

e
 

s
ta

ff
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 l
e

ft
 t

h
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

re
v
o

k
e

d
 i
n

 

a
 t

im
e

ly
 m

a
n

n
e

r.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 

th
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l

e
a

v
e

r’
s

 

n
o

ti
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
c

c
e

s
s

 

re
m

o
v
a

l 
b

e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
y
s

te
m

s
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 i
n

 

a
d

d
re

s
s

in
g

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 r
is

k
s

 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
.

W
e

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
a

ll
y
 f

o
ll

o
w

 u
p

 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
/ 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r/

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

1

(t
h

re
e

)

F
M

S
 a

n
d

 O
rc

h
a

rd
 L

e
a

v
e

rs
' 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 R

e
v
o

c
a

ti
o

n

W
h
e

n
 s

ta
ff

 l
e

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 
th

e
ir

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

IT
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 i
n

 a
 t
im

e
ly

 m
a

n
n

e
r 

to
 a

v
o

id
 

s
u

c
h

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 u

n
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 t
o

 v
ie

w
, 

a
lt
e

r 
o

r 
d

e
le

te
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l d
a

ta
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 3

0
 a

c
ti
v
e

 F
M

S
 u

s
e

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

1
4

 a
c
ti
v
e

 O
rc

h
a

rd
 u

s
e

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
s
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 

s
ta

ff
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 l
e

ft
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 h

a
d

 

n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 d

e
a

c
ti
v
a

te
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

W
h
e

re
 s

u
c
h

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 l
e

ft
 a

c
ti
v
e

, 
th

e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 c

o
u

ld
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 

e
rr

o
rs

 i
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

r 
in

c
o

rr
e

c
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
.

W
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 le
a

v
e

rs
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

tl
y
 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
le

a
v
e

rs
' a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 i
s
 r

e
v
o

k
e

d
 i
n

 

a
 t
im

e
ly

 m
a

n
n

e
r.

A
d

e
q

u
a

te
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

n
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ll 
le

a
v
e

rs
 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 c

a
n

 

b
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

.

A
g

re
e

d
. 

L
e

a
v
e

rs
 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 F
M

S
 &

 O
rc

h
a

rd
 n

o
w

 d
e

le
te

d
.

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
d

e
le

ti
n

g
 le

a
v
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 o

n
ly

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
 t
h

o
s
e

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 F

M
S

 v
ia

 a
 d

e
s
k
to

p
 

ic
o

n
. 
A

 n
e

w
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

a
re

 

th
e

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f
ro

m
 S

A
P

 (
P

a
y
ro

ll)
 a

n
d

 F
M

S
 u

s
e

r 
ID

s
 

(F
M

S
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 g

a
in

e
d

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
a

 u
s
e

r 
ID

).

A
 s

im
ila

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
O

rc
h

a
rd

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

: 
P

ri
n

c
ip

le
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

t 
(C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t)

 &
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r.

D
u

e
 d

a
te

: 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
1

.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 r

a
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

n
e

:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 

fu
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

l a
n

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
to

 y
o

u
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

l.
 W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 
th

a
t 
th

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 m

ig
h

t 
m

e
a

n
 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
 

d
o

 n
o

t 
m

e
e

t 
a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
te

) 
a

 r
is

k
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

w
o

:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
e

ff
e

c
t 
o

n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

b
u

t 
d

o
 n

o
t 
n

e
e

d
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
. 

Y
o

u
 m

a
y
 s

ti
ll 

m
e

e
t 
a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 
in

 f
u

ll 
o

r 
in

 p
a

rt
 o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
te

) 
a

 
ri

s
k
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 b

u
t 
th

e
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 

re
m

a
in

s
 in

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

h
re

e
:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
w

o
u

ld
, 

if
 

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
, 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

l 
in

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
b

u
t 
a

re
 n

o
t 
v
it
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
y
s
te

m
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 
is

s
u

e
s
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 f

e
e

l 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
y
o

u
 i
f 
y
o

u
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 

th
e

m
.

Page 34



2
4

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 3

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
s

 a
re

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
  
to

 

v
e

ri
fy

 t
h

a
t 

u
s

e
r 

a
c

c
e

s
s

 

p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
s

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

A
c

a
d

e
m

y
 a

n
d

 O
rc

h
a

rd
 

s
y
s

te
m

s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll

 v
a

li
d

.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 

p
e

ri
o

d
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
s

 a
re

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
u

s
e

r 
a

c
c

e
s

s
 

a
n

d
 u

n
u

s
e

d
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 i
n

 

a
d

d
re

s
s

in
g

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 r
is

k
s

 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
.

W
e

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
a

ll
y
 f

o
ll

o
w

 u
p

 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
/ 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r/

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

2

(t
h

re
e

)

A
c

a
d

e
m

y
 a

n
d

 O
rc

h
a

rd
 U

s
e

r 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

P
e

rm
is

s
io

n
s
 g

ra
n

te
d

 t
o

 u
s
e

rs
, 
to

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 d
a

ta
 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 I
T

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

ic
a

lly
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

v
a

lid
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
ir

 j
o

b
 

ro
le

s
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 n

o
 f
o

rm
a

l 
p

e
ri

o
d

ic
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 

to
 v

a
lid

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
u

s
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

ig
h

ts
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 O
rc

h
a

rd
 a

n
d

 

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 .
 A

ls
o

, 
n

o
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

a
re

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 t
o

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 u
n

u
s
e

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

.

W
h
e

re
 p

e
ri

o
d

ic
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 

a
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
in

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 o
r 

u
n

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 r

ig
h

ts
 f
o

r 
u

s
e

rs
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

u
ld

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 u
s
e

rs
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 o

r 
m

a
k
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 d
a

ta
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
jo

b
 r

o
le

s
. 

W
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
p

e
ri

o
d

ic
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
u

s
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

ig
h

ts
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

s
ti
tu

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 O

rc
h

a
rd

 a
n

d
 A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 f
o

r 
u

s
e

rs
 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 h
ig

h
ly

 

p
ri

v
ile

g
e

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
a

u
th

o
ri

s
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 v
e

ri
fy

in
g

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 l
is

t 
o

f 

a
c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
ir

 t
e

a
m

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 g

ra
n

te
d

 a
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

to
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

e
ri

o
d

ic
a

lly
 

re
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 f
o

r 
u

s
e

rs
 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

 p
e

ri
o

d
s
. 
S

u
c
h

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
c
ti
v
a

te
d

 i
f 
n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

.

A
g

re
e

d
.

A
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
k
e

y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

ig
h

ts
 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 k
e

y
 r

is
k
 a

re
a

s
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 

p
e

ri
o

d
ic

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

ts
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
 

to
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
 j
o

b
 r

o
le

s
. 
T

h
is

 f
o

llo
w

s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 f
o

r 
F

M
S

.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

: 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

&
 A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r.

D
u

e
 d

a
te

:

R
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
1

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 A

u
g

 2
0

1
1

. 

Page 35



2
5

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

T
h

is
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 in

 o
u

r 
In

te
ri

m
 A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
n

d
 r

e
-

it
e

ra
te

s
 a

n
y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s

 m
a

d
e

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 o
n

 a
ll

 o
f 

th
e

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 

o
u

r 
In

te
ri

m
 A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 

T
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v

e
 

b
e

e
n

 p
a

rt
ia

ll
y

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 

W
e

 o
b

s
e

rv
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

 i
s

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 f
u

ll
y

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

 

th
e

m
.

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

: 

In
c

lu
d

e
d

 i
n

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 

1
0

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

o
r 

s
u

p
e

rs
e

d
e

d
 

8

R
e

m
a

in
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 (

re
-i

te
ra

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

)
2

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 

d
a

te

S
ta

tu
s

 a
s

 a
t 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

1

(o
n

e
)

S
A

P
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 C
o

n
tr

o
ls

It
is

g
o

o
d

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

th
a

t
th

o
s
e

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
fo

r
th

e

im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

s
y
s
te

m
c
h
a

n
g

e
s

to
th

e
S

A
P

P
a

y
ro

ll
p

ro
d
u

c
ti
o

n
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

(i
.e

.
th

e
S

A
P

B
A

S
IS

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
T

e
a

m
)

a
re

a
ls

o

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
fo

r
v
e

ri
fy

in
g

th
a
t

u
s
e

r
te

s
ti
n

g
h
a

s

b
e

e
n

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
a

t
th

e

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

th
is

ta
s
k

is
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

th
o
s
e

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
fo

r
d
e

v
e

lo
p
in

g
c
h

a
n

g
e
s

(i
.e

.
th

e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t
T

e
a

m
).

W
e

a
ls

o
n

o
te

d
th

a
t

s
o
m

e
m

e
m

b
e

rs
o
f

th
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t
T

e
a

m
h
a

v
e

a
c
c
e

s
s

to
th

e
g

ro
u
p

(e
.g

.
Z

L
C

C
B

A
S

IS
)

u
s
e

d
fo

r
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n
g

th
e

s
y
s
te

m
c
h

a
n

g
e
s

to
th

e
S

A
P

P
a

y
ro

ll
p

ro
d
u

c
ti
o
n

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t,

th
u

s
re

d
u
c
in

g
s
e
g

re
g

a
ti
o
n

b
e

tw
e

e
n

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t
a

n
d

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
.

W
e

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

th
a

t
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t
re

v
ie

w
th

e

c
u

rr
e
n

t
S

A
P

c
h

a
n
g

e
c
o

n
tr

o
l

p
ro

c
e
s
s

a
n
d

e
n
s
u

re

th
a

t
th

e
S

A
P

B
A

S
IS

te
a
m

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

tl
y

v
e

ri
fy

th
e

u
s
e

r
a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

te
s
ti
n
g

p
ri
o

r
to

m
ig

ra
ti
n
g

th
e

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
to

liv
e

.

W
e

a
ls

o
re

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a

t
a

c
c
e

s
s

to
‘Z

L
C

C

B
A

S
IS

’
g

ro
u
p

is
re

v
ie

w
e

d
a

n
d

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

,
lim

it
e
d

to
th

o
s
e

w
h

o
re

q
u

ir
e

s
u

c
h

a
c
c
e

s
s
.

R
is

k
 a

c
c

e
p

te
d

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

 

ta
k

e
n

U
A

T
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
a

n
d

s
ig

n
-o

ff
n
o

w

in
c
lu

d
e

d
a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
v
a

lid
a

ti
o

n

b
y

th
e

im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

te
a
m

p
ri

o
r

to
liv

e
m

ig
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

S
A

P
c
h

a
n
g

e
s

in
to

liv
e

.
A

ll
e

v
id

e
n
c
e

n
o

w
s
e

n
t

th
ro

u
g

h
v
ia

a
d

e
d
ic

a
te

d

m
a

ilb
o

x
.

C
h
a

n
g
e

s
o

n
ly

m
a

d
e

liv
e

w
h

e
n

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

h
a

s

b
e

e
n

re
c
e

iv
e

d
.

A
c
c
e
s
s

ri
g
h

ts
to

Z
L

C
C

_
B

A
S

IS

g
ro

u
p

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

re
v
ie

w
e

d
a

n
d

a
ll

u
n

n
e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
a
c
c
e
s
s

h
a

s
b
e

e
n

re
m

o
v
e

d
a

s
o

f
1

2
th

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
0

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

.

O
u

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 h

a
s
 

n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
.

Page 36



2
6

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

R
is

k
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
O

ff
ic

e
r 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 a
n

d
 d

u
e

 d
a

te
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1

2

(t
w

o
)

N
e

tw
o

rk
 p

a
s

s
w

o
rd

 r
e

s
e

ts

If
a

u
s
e

r
re

q
u

ir
e

s
th

e
ir

N
o
v
e

ll
N

e
tw

o
rk

p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

re
s
e

tt
in

g
w

h
ic

h
a

llo
w

s
th

e
m

a
c
c
e

s
s

to
a

c
o
m

p
u
te

r,
th

e
y

m
u

s
t

c
o

n
ta

c
t

th
e

IT
H

e
lp

d
e

s
k

a
n
d

a
n

s
w

e
r

a
s
e

ri
e

s
o

f

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

e
q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

s
re

la
te

to
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
th

a
t

is

e
a

s
ily

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
to

a
n

y
o

ff
ic

e
r

in
th

e

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a

t
th

e
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

o
v
e

r

n
e

tw
o

rk
p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

re
s
e

ts
a

re
s
tr

e
n
g

th
e

n
e
d

to
a

v
o
id

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

e
a

s
ily

o
b

ta
in

a
b

le

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
fo

r
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
.

R
is

k
 a

c
c

e
p

te
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
 a

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d

IC
T

b
e

lie
v
e

s
th

a
t

th
e

ri
s
k

o
f

s
o
m

e
o
n

e

p
o

s
in

g
a
s

a
n

o
th

e
r

u
s
e

r
in

o
rd

e
r

to
a
c
c
e
s
s

th
e

ir
a

c
c
o

u
n

t
is

v
e

ry
lo

w
,

a
n

d
th

e
re

is
n

o

re
c
o

rd
e

d
in

s
ta

n
c
e

o
f

th
is

h
a

p
p
e

n
in

g
.

T
h

e
re

fo
re

IC
T

a
c
c
e

p
t

th
e

ri
s
k

a
n

d
d

o
n

o
t

in
te

n
d

to
c
h

a
n

g
e

th
e

p
ro

c
e

s
s

a
t

th
is

ti
m

e
.

N
o

t
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

.

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 

a
n

d
 n

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
b

y

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

3

(t
w

o
)

A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 p

a
s

s
w

o
rd

 r
e

s
e

ts

If
a

u
s
e

r
re

q
u

ir
e

s
th

e
ir

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n

p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

re
s
e

tt
in

g
,

th
e

y
m

u
s
t

c
o

n
ta

c
t

th
e

IT
H

e
lp

d
e
s
k

fo
r

O
rc

h
a

rd
(t

h
e

H
o

u
s
in

g

s
y
s
te

m
)

a
n

d
S

A
P

a
n
d

th
e

A
c
a

d
e

m
y

S
u

p
p

o
rt

T
e

a
m

fo
r

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
.

W
e

n
o

te
d

th
a

t
th

e
p

ro
c
e
s
s

fo
r

v
a

lid
a

ti
o

n
o

f

u
s
e

r
a

u
th

e
n

ti
c
it
y

is
w

e
a

k
.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a

t
th

e
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

o
v
e

r

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

re
s
e

ts
a

re

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d
.

R
is

k
 a

c
c

e
p

te
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
 a

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d

O
rc

h
a

rd
a

n
d

S
A

P
:

B
o

th
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

re
q

u
ir

e
th

e
re

q
u

e
s
to

r
to

s
u

p
p

ly
a

n
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
id

e
n

ti
ty

,
a

n
d

b
o
th

IC
T

a
n

d
th

e
b
u

s
in

e
s
s

b
e
lie

v
e

s
th

a
t

th
e

ri
s
k

o
f

s
o
m

e
o

n
e

p
o

s
in

g
a

s
a
n

o
th

e
r

u
s
e

r
in

o
rd

e
r

to
a

c
c
e
s
s

th
e

ir
a

c
c
o

u
n

t
is

v
e

ry
lo

w
.

In
a
d

d
it
io

n
,

th
e

re
is

n
o

re
c
o

rd
e

d
in

s
ta

n
c
e

o
f

th
is

h
a

p
p
e

n
in

g
.

T
h

e
re

fo
re

IC
T

a
c
c
e
p

t

th
e

ri
s
k

a
n

d
d

o
n
o

t
in

te
n

d
to

c
h

a
n

g
e

th
e

p
ro

c
e

s
s

a
t

th
is

ti
m

e
.

A
c
a

d
e

m
y

a
n

d
F

M
S

:

T
h

is
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
a

ls
o

a
p

p
lie

s
w

it
h

a
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

id
re

q
u
ir

e
d

to
b

e
p

ro
v
id

e
d

b
y

th
e

re
q

u
e

s
to

r.
A

g
a

in
,

th
e

re
is

n
o

re
c
o

rd
e

d

in
s
ta

n
c
e

o
f

s
o
m

e
o

n
e

p
o

s
in

g
a

s
a
n

o
th

e
r

u
s
e

r
to

g
a

in
a

c
c
e

s
s

to
th

e
ir

a
c
c
o

u
n

t.

N
o

t
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

.

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 

a
n

d
 n

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
b

y

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

Page 37



2
7

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s

 a
s

 a
t 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

4

(t
w

o
)

A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

T
h

e
re

a
re

n
o

c
e
n

tr
a
lly

in
it
ia

te
d

re
v
ie

w
s

o
f

u
s
e

r
a
c
c
e

s
s

fo
r

th
e

in
-s

c
o
p

e

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
(e

.g
.

F
M

S
,

S
A

P
,

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
,

O
rc

h
a

rd
).

T
h

e
re

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

fo
r

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

u
s
e

r
a

c
c
e

s
s

is

w
it
h

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
b

u
t

n
o

c
e

n
tr

a
l

c
o

-

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
o
c
c
u

rs
to

e
n

s
u

re
th

e
re

v
ie

w
s

a
re

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

F
o

r
A

c
a

d
e
m

y
,

re
v
ie

w
s

o
f

u
s
e

r
a

c
c
e
s
s

a
re

c
o

m
p
le

te
d

e
v
e

ry
tw

o
y
e

a
rs

,

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
w

e
w

e
re

u
n

a
b

le
to

v
e

ri
fy

th
is

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

n
o

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

o
f

th
e

re
v
ie

w
s

is

re
ta

in
e

d
.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a

t
re

v
ie

w
s

o
f

u
s
e

r

a
c
c
e

s
s

a
re

c
e

n
tr

a
lly

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

a
n

d

m
o

n
it
o

re
d

fo
r

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

.
T

h
e

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

re
v
ie

w
s

s
h

o
u

ld
a
ls

o

b
e

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
a

n
d

re
ta

in
e

d
.

R
is

k
 a

c
c

e
p

te
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
 a

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s

b
e

tw
e

e
n

th
e

o
ff

ic
e

rs
w

h
o

a
re

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
fo

r
th

e
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
a

n
d

IC
T

,

h
a

v
e

c
o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
th

a
t

th
e

re
a

re
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t

m
it
ig

a
ti
n

g
c
o
n

tr
o

ls
to

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y

re
d
u

c
e

a
n

y
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l
ri
s
k

fr
o

m
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

a
c
c
e

s
s
.

It
is

th
e

re
fo

re
th

e
v
ie

w
o

f
th

e

o
ff

ic
e

rs
in

v
o

lv
e

d
th

a
t

th
e

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

c
o

s
t

o
f

a
c
e
n

tr
a
lis

e
d

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
fo

r

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
u
s
e

r
a

c
c
e
s
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
c
a
n

n
o
t

b
e

ju
s
ti
fi
e
d

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

th
e

ri
s
k
s

in
v
o

lv
e

d
.

N
o

t
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

.

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 

a
n

d
 n

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
b

y

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

Page 38



2
8

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

R
is

k
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
O

ff
ic

e
r 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 a
n

d
 d

u
e

 d
a

te
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1

5

(t
w

o
)

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
P

o
li

c
y

a
n

d

U
s

e
r

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

U
s
e

r
a

w
a

re
n
e

s
s

o
f

th
e

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

p
o

lic
ie

s
h

a
s

n
o

t
b

e
e
n

ro
lle

d
o

u
t

y
e

t.
H

o
w

e
v
e

r

th
e

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
K

n
o

w
le

d
g

e

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

te
a

m
a

re
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

a
s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
s
h

a
ri
n

g
a

n
d

u
s
e

r

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
.

U
s
e

r
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s

w
ill

b
e

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

v
ia

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
a
s

w
e

ll
a

s

p
o

lic
ie

s
a
n

d
p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
in

lin
e

w
it
h

th
e

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
C

o
n

n
e

c
t

a
n

d

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
R

is
k

M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t

p
o

lic
y

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a

t
u

s
e

r

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

o
f

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

p
o

lic
ie

s
is

ro
lle

d
o

u
t

a
s

s
o

o
n

a
s

is
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

b
le

.

S
ta

tu
s

–
A

g
re

e
d

a
n

d
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d

T
h

e
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 M
a

tu
ri

ty
 M

o
d

e
l 
(I

A
M

M
) 

is
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 t
o

 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 m

a
tu

ri
ty

 i
n

 k
e

y
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 L

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
; 
T

ra
in

in
g

 &
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
; 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t;
 T

h
ro

u
g

h
-L

if
e

 

M
e

a
s
u

re
s
 (

te
c
h

n
ic

a
l)

; 
a

n
d

, 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 &

 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

.

T
h

e
 I
A

M
M

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
n

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 

u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
e

d
 b

y
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
k
e

y
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
v
e

 m
a

rk
in

g
, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
. 
It

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

o
f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 P
o

lic
y
. 
A

n
 i
n

it
ia

l a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 a

n
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 g
a

p
s
 i
n

 

a
ll 

a
re

a
s
, 
b

u
t 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 &

 

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

ill
 e

n
c
o

m
p

a
s
s
 t
h

e
s
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

 d
ra

ft
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
a

d
y
 b

y
 A

u
g

u
s
t 
2

0
1

0
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

2
0

1
0

, 
th

o
u

g
h

 s
o

m
e

 a
re

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
.

F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

, 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

it
 c

a
n

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
. 

O
ff

ic
e

r:
 L

e
e

 H
e

m
s
w

o
rt

h

D
u

e
 D

a
te

: 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 D
ra

ft
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
1

0
, 
A

ll 
p

o
lic

ie
s
  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1

R
e

m
a

in
s
 O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
.

O
u

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

re
v
ie

w
 i
s
 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 a

n
d

 

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

te
 t
h

e
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f
fo

rm
a

l 
 u

s
e

r 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 b

a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 p
o

li
c

ie
s

. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 f

o
rm

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

is
 

fo
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

fo
rm

a
l 
s

e
c

u
ri

ty
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

.

Page 39



2
9

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

R
is

k
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
O

ff
ic

e
r 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 a
n

d
 d

u
e

 d
a

te
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 

2
0

1
1

6

(t
w

o
)

D
is

a
s

te
r

R
e

c
o

v
e

ry
(D

R
)

W
e

n
o
te

d
th

a
t

th
e

la
s
t

D
R

te
s
t

fo
r

S
A

P
(t

h
e

H
R

/P
a

y
ro

ll
s
y
s
te

m
)

w
a

s

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
in

J
u

ly
2

0
0

8
a
n

d
w

a
s

n
o

t
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
T

h
e

D
R

te
s
t

w
a

s

u
n

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l
b

e
c
a

u
s
e

o
f

a

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

is
s
u

e
s

th
a

t
w

e
re

e
n

c
o

u
n

te
re

d
in

p
re

p
a

ri
n
g

a
n

d

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n
g

th
e

te
s
t,

w
h

ic
h

le
d

to

th
e

re
c
o

v
e

ry
te

a
m

ru
n

n
in

g
o
u

t
o
f

ti
m

e
.

W
e

n
o
te

d
th

a
t

n
o

fu
rt

h
e

r
fo

rm
a

l

D
R

te
s
ts

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

o
n

S
A

P
s
in

c
e

th
e

u
n
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l
te

s
t

in

J
u

ly
2
0

0
8
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
it

is

a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
th

a
t

a
re

c
o
v
e

ry

fr
o

m
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o
n

to
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

te
s
t

h
a

s
s
in

c
e

b
e

e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n

d
th

e
s
e

w
e

re
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
th

a
t

a
ll

k
e
y

in
-

s
c
o
p

e
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s

a
re

s
u

b
je

c
t

to

a
n

n
u

a
lD

R
te

s
ts

a
s

a
m

in
im

u
m

.

R
is

k
a

c
c

e
p

te
d

a
n

d
a

c
ti

o
n

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d

S
e

v
e

ra
l

is
s
u

e
s
,

w
h

ic
h

c
a

u
s
e
d

d
e

la
y
s
,

w
e

re
e

n
c
o

u
n

te
re

d

d
u

ri
n
g

th
e

te
s
t

a
n

d
th

e
s
e

w
e

re
d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e

tr
ia

l.
T

h
o

u
g
h

n
o

n
e

o
f

th
e

s
e

is
s
u

e
s

w
e

re
‘s

h
o

w
s
to

p
p

e
rs

’,
th

e

ti
m

e
a
llo

c
a

te
d

fo
r

th
e

tr
ia

l
w

a
s

e
x
h

a
u

s
te

d
,

a
n

d
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

h
a

d
to

b
e

re
a

s
s
ig

n
e

d
to

o
th

e
r

w
o

rk
.

T
h

e
is

s
u

e
s

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

h
a

v
e

s
in

c
e

b
e

e
n

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
,

a
n

d
th

e
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

h
a

s

n
o

w
b

e
e

n
re

v
is

e
d

a
n

d
u

p
d
a

te
d

,
to

e
n

a
b
le

c
le

a
re

r
re

c
o

rd
in

g

o
f

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
s
ta

tu
s
.

S
in

c
e

th
e

tr
ia

l,
s
e

v
e

ra
l

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
s

o
f

liv
e

d
a

ta
in

to
th

e
te

s
t/
D

R

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

h
a

v
e

ta
k
e

n
p

la
c
e
.

T
h

o
u

g
h

n
o

t
o

ff
ic

ia
l
D

R
tr

ia
ls

,

th
e

s
e

re
c
o

v
e

ri
e
s

h
a

v
e

g
iv

e
n

h
ig

h
le

v
e

ls
o

f
c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

in

IC
T

s
a

b
ili

ty
to

re
c
o

v
e

r
in

a
D

R
s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
.

A
D

R
s
c
h

e
d

u
le

is
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

fo
r

a
ll

k
e

y
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
,

d
e

ta
ili

n
g

p
re

v
io

u
s

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l/
u

n
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l
tr

ia
ls

a
n
d

th
o

s
e

p
la

n
n

e
d

fo
r

th
e

c
o

m
in

g
y
e
a
r.

S
e

rv
ic

e
re

v
ie

w
s

w
it
h

th
e

b
u

s
in

e
s
s

o
w

n
e

rs
in

c
lu

d
e

,
a
s

a
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

a
g

e
n

d
a

it
e
m

,

D
is

a
s
te

r
R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
a

n
d

th
e

m
o

s
t

re
c
e
n

t
S

A
P

re
v
ie

w

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
o

n
1

8
/1

1
/2

0
0

9
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
a

n
e

e
d

to
s
c
h

e
d

u
le

a

D
R

tr
ia

l.
T

h
is

re
s
u
lt
e
d

in
a

S
A

P
D

R
tr

ia
l
b

e
in

g
s
c
h
e

d
u
le

d
fo

r

3
1

/0
5

/2
0
1

0
,

a
n

d
th

e
ti
m

e
a

llo
c
a

te
d

h
a
s

b
e

e
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
to

e
n

a
b

le
a

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lt
ri

a
l
to

o
c
c
u

r.

A
ls

o
,

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

v
is

ib
ili

ty
o

f
th

e
s
c
h
e

d
u
le

,
a
n

d
to

e
n
s
u

re

tr
ia

ls
a

re
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
n

n
u
a

lly
,

a
re

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
D

R
s
c
h

e
d

u
le

h
a

s
n
o

w
b

e
e

n
in

c
lu

d
e

d
a

s
a

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

a
g

e
n

d
a

it
e

m
o

n
th

e

m
o

n
th

ly
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
R

e
v
ie

w
m

e
e

ti
n

g
.

D
R

fa
il

u
re

in
v
e

s
ti

g
a

ti
o

n
-

c
o

m
p

le
te

D
R

te
s

ti
n

g
-

M
a

y
2

0
1

0

D
R

s
c

h
e

d
u

le
re

v
ie

w
-

o
n

g
o

in
g

C
o

m
p

le
te

.

O
u

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1

fi
e

ld
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 

is
s
u

e
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 

re
s
o

lv
e

d
.

Page 40



3
0

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s

 a
s

 a
t 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

7

(t
w

o
)

A
c

a
d

e
m

y
U

s
e

r
A

c
c

e
s

s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

A
c
a

d
e

m
y

(t
h

e
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s

&
B

e
n
e

fi
ts

s
y
s
te

m
)

s
y
s
te

m
’s

p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

p
a

ra
m

e
te

rs

d
o

n
o

t
m

e
e

t
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
,

in

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r
in

re
la

ti
o

n
to

th
e

e
n

fo
rc

in
g

o
f

a
lp

h
a

n
u

m
e

ri
c

c
h

a
ra

c
te

rs
.

W
e

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

th
a

t
A

c
a

d
e
m

y

p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

p
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
a

re
b

ro
u
g

h
t

in
lin

e

w
it
h

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
.

W
e

a
ls

o
n

o
te

d
th

a
t

w
h

e
n

a
n
e

w

A
c
a

d
e

m
y

u
s
e

r
is

c
re

a
te

d
,

th
e

a
c
c
o

u
n
t

is

s
e

t
w

it
h

o
u

t
a

p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

a
n

d
th

e
u

s
e

r

m
u

s
t

c
re

a
te

a
p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

u
p
o
n

fi
rs

t
lo

g

o
n

.
T

h
e

re
a

re
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

n
o

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

o
p

e
ra

ti
n
g

to
e

n
s
u

re
th

e
u
s
e

r
lo

g
s

in
a
n

d

c
re

a
te

s
a

p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

o
n

a
ti
m

e
ly

b
a
s
is

.

W
e

n
o

te
d

th
e

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

o
w

n
e

rs
a

re

a
w

a
re

o
f

th
e

ri
s
k

a
n
d

a
re

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

s
e

e
k
in

g
to

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
a

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

th
a

t

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
im

p
a

c
t
o

n
s
e

rv
ic

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a

t
a

p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

is

a
s
s
ig

n
e

d
to

n
e

w
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
u

s
e

r

a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

w
h

ic
h

a
re

o
n

ly
k
n

o
w

n
b

y
th

e

A
c
a

d
e

m
y

S
u
p

p
o

rt
T

e
a

m
.

T
h

e
u

s
e

r

s
h

o
u

ld
th

e
n

b
e

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
to

lo
g

o
n

a
n

d

c
h

a
n

g
e

th
e

p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

o
n

a
ti
m

e
ly

b
a

s
is

.

R
is

k
a

c
c

e
p

te
d

a
n

d
a

c
ti

o
n

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d

T
h

e
A

c
a

d
e
m

y
s
u
p

p
o

rt
te

a
m

a
re

to

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

a
n

e
w

p
ro

c
e
s
s

o
f

c
re

a
ti
n

g
u
s
e

rs

w
it
h

a
p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

b
e

in
g

a
llo

c
a

te
d

a
t

th
e

ti
m

e
th

e
u

s
e

r
is

c
re

a
te

d
.

A
s

A
c
a

d
e

m
y

is

o
n

e
o

f
th

e
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
th

a
t

w
o

rk
s

w
it
h

S
in

g
le

S
ig

n
o

n
(N

o
v
e

ll
S

e
c
u

re
L
o

g
in

)

th
e

n
in

it
ia

l
te

s
ti
n

g
w

ill
b
e

re
q
u

ir
e

d
,

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

a
m

e
n

d
e
d

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
n
o

te
s

a
n

d
th

e

s
in

g
le

s
ig

n
o
n

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

n
o

te
s

fo
r

A
c
a

d
e

m
y

u
s
e

rs
.

A
c
a

d
e

m
y

w
ill

n
o

t,
a

s
y
e

t,
p

ro
m

p
t

u
s
e

rs
to

c
h

a
n

g
e

th
e
ir

p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

o
n

in
it
ia

l
lo

g
in

a
n

d
w

h
ils

t
w

e
c
a

n
te

ll
th

e
m

th
e

p
ro

c
e
s
s

to

fo
llo

w
w

e
c
a

n
n

o
t

fo
rc

e
a

u
s
e

r
to

c
h

a
n

g
e

th
e

ir
p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

a
lt
h
o

u
g
h

o
f

c
o

u
rs

e
th

e
y

w
ill

b
e

p
ro

m
p

te
d

to
d

o
s
o

a
ft

e
r

4
0

d
a

y
s
.

A
n

a
m

e
n
d

m
e

n
t

to
th

e
s
y
s
te

m
to

fo
rc

e

s
tr

o
n
g

p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

s
(i
n

c
l.

th
e

n
e

e
d

to
u
s
e

a
n

a
lp

h
a

n
u

m
e

ri
c

p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

)
is

c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y

b
e

in
g

te
s
te

d
.

O
ff

ic
e

r:
 K

a
th

ry
n

 G
la

s
b

y
 -

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 &

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

D
u

e
 D

a
te

: 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

.

O
u

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 h

a
s
 

n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
te

d
.

T
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a

re
c
e

n
t 

u
p

g
ra

d
e

 o
f 
th

e
 A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 

s
y
s
te

m
 in

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

.

Page 41



3
1

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s

 a
s

 a
t 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

8

(t
w

o
)

F
M

S
P

ro
g

ra
m

C
h

a
n

g
e

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

W
e

n
o

te
d

th
a

t
re

lia
n
c
e

is
p
la

c
e
d

o
n

th
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t
T

e
a

m
to

h
a

v
e

v
e

ri
fi
e

d
th

a
t

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

u
s
e

r
a
c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

te
s
ti
n
g

h
a

s

b
e

e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

p
ri
o

r
to

a
c
h

a
n

g
e

b
e

in
g

im
p
le

m
e

n
te

d
o

n
th

e
liv

e
F

M
S

(t
h

e
F

in
a

n
c
e

s
y
s
te

m
)

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
G

o
o

d
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
s

th
a

t
v
e

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

u
s
e

r

a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

te
s
ti
n
g

a
n

d
o

th
e

r
a

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

c
ri

te
ri
a

fo
r

a
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
h

o
u

ld
b
e

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

b
y

th
o

s
e

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
fo

r
th

e

im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

c
h

a
n
g
e

to
th

e
liv

e

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

(i
n

th
is

c
a
s
e

th
e

F
M

S

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
te

a
m

).

W
e

n
o

te
d

th
a

t
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

s
in

g
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

in

th
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t
te

a
m

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
v
e

ri
fy

th
a

t

th
e

u
s
e

r
a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

te
s
ti
n

g
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l
a

n
d

s
ig

n
e
d

o
ff

b
y

th
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t
b

e
fo

re
s
ig

n
in

g
th

e
n

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

fo
rm

fo
r

m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
to

liv
e

.

W
e

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

th
a

t
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
re

v
ie

w

th
e

c
u

rr
e

n
t

F
M

S
c
h

a
n
g

e
c
o
n
tr

o
l

p
ro

c
e

s
s

a
n

d
e

n
s
u

re
th

a
t
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t
v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
o

f

th
e

u
s
e

r
a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

te
s
ti
n
g

p
ri

o
r

to

m
ig

ra
ti
n

g
th

e
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
to

liv
e

o
c
c
u

rs
.

R
is

k
a

c
c

e
p

te
d

a
n

d
a

c
ti

o
n

ta
k

e
n

F
M

S
p

ro
g

ra
m

c
h

a
n
g

e
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s

h
a

v
e

b
e
e

n
a

m
e
n

d
e
d

to
in

c
lu

d
e

th
e

c
h
a

n
g
e

re
c
o

rd
n

u
m

b
e

r,
a

p
la

in
E

n
g
lis

h
d
e

s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

c
h
a

n
g
e

a
n
d

U
A

T
/t

e
s
ti
n
g

s
ig

n
-o

ff

n
e

e
d
s

to
b
e

a
tt

a
c
h

e
d

to
th

e
re

q
u

e
s
t

b
e
fo

re

th
e

c
h

a
n
g

e
is

s
ig

n
e

d
-o

ff
b

y
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t

a
n

d
p

a
s
s
e
d

to
th

e
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n

te
a

m
.

T
h

is
u

p
d

a
te

d
p

ro
c
e

s
s

is
a
lr

e
a

d
y

in

p
la

c
e

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

.

O
u

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 h

a
s
 

n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
.

Page 42



3
2

©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s

 a
s

 a
t 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

9

(t
h

re
e

)

A
c

a
d

e
m

y
U

s
e

r
A

c
c

e
s

s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

A
n

‘a
p

p
ro

v
e

rs
lis

t’
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

th
o

s
e

s
ta

ff

w
h

o
a

re
a
b

le
to

a
p
p

ro
v
e

a
n

e
w

u
s
e

r

a
c
c
e

s
s

re
q

u
e

s
t

fo
r

A
c
a

d
e
m

y
is

n
o

t

d
o

c
u

m
e
n

te
d

.
A

s
a

re
s
u

lt
,

re
lia

n
c
e

is

p
la

c
e

d
o

n
p
e

rs
o

n
a
l

k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

th
a

t
th

e

‘a
p

p
ro

v
e

r’
is

a
n

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

m
e

m
b

e
r

o
f

s
ta

ff
.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
th

a
t

a
d
e

fi
n
e

d
lis

t
o

f

a
p

p
ro

v
e

rs
fo

r
n

e
w

u
s
e

r
a
c
c
e

s
s

re
q
u

e
s
ts

is
d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

,
re

v
ie

w
e

d
p
e

ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

a
n
d

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

u
p

d
a

te
d

to
re

fl
e

c
t

a
n

y
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
.

R
is

k
A

c
c

e
p

te
d

a
n

d
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d

A
g

re
e

d
-

a
d

e
fi
n

e
d

lis
t

o
f

a
p
p

ro
v
e

rs
fo

r

n
e

w
u

s
e

r
a
c
c
e
s
s

re
q

u
e

s
ts

w
ill

b
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

,
re

v
ie

w
e

d
p

e
ri
o
d

ic
a

lly
a

n
d

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

u
p
d

a
te

d
to

re
fl
e
c
t

a
n

y

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
.

O
ff

ic
e

r:
 K

a
th

ry
n

 G
la

s
b

y
 -

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 &

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

D
u

e
 D

a
te

: 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

R
e

m
a

in
s
 O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
.

O
u

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

lis
t 
o

f 
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

fo
r 

th
e

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

, 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 L
e

e
d

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
a

s
.

W
o
rk

 is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 t
o

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
im

ila
r 

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

rs
 l
is

ts
 

fo
r 

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 

s
y
s
te

m
 is

 u
s
e

d
.

1
0

(t
h

re
e

)

S
e

rv
e

r
ro

o
m

a
c

c
e

s
s

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

a
s
ix

m
o

n
th

ly
re

v
ie

w
o

f
a

c
c
e
s
s

lis
ts

fo
r

th
e

s
e

rv
e

r
ro

o
m

is
o
p
e

ra
te

d
,

th
e

re

is
n

o
e

v
id

e
n
c
e

re
ta

in
e
d

th
a
t

th
is

lis
t

h
a

s

b
e

e
n

re
v
ie

w
e

d
a

n
d

s
ig

n
e

d
a

s
e

v
id

e
n
c
e

o
f

re
v
ie

w
.

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a
t

th
e

N
e

tw
o

rk

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
e

n
tr

e
(N

M
C

)
te

a
m

w
h

o
a

re

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
fo

r
m

a
n

a
g
in

g
s
e

rv
e

r
ro

o
m

a
c
c
e

s
s

s
h

o
u

ld
e

n
s
u

re
th

a
t

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

s
ix

m
o

n
th

ly
re

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
a
c
c
e

s
s

lis
ts

is

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
a

n
d

re
ta

in
e

d
.

R
is

k
a

c
c

e
p

te
d

a
n

d
a

c
ti

o
n

ta
k

e
n

N
M

C
s
ta

ff
h

a
v
e

n
o

w
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
a

s
ix

m
o

n
th

ly
re

v
ie

w
s
c
h
e

d
u
le

a
n

d
a

c
h
e

c
k
lis

t
fo

r

th
is

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

T
h

is
c
h
e

c
k
lis

t
w

ill
b

e
s
ig

n
e
d

o
ff

w
h

e
n

th
e

s
ix

m
o

n
th

ly
re

v
ie

w
o

f
a

c
c
e
s
s

h
a

s
ta

k
e

n
p

la
c
e

A
c

ti
o

n
c

o
m

p
le

te

C
o

m
p

le
te

.

O
u

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 h

a
s
 

n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 d

e
fi

n
it

iv
e

 l
is

t 
o

f 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e

  
A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 

s
y
s

te
m

 f
o

r 
th

e
 u

s
e

r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
.

Page 43



©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l.
 K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l i
s
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 a
ll 

K
P

M
G

 f
ir

m
s
 a

re
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l p
ro

v
id

e
s
 n

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

to
 c

lie
n

ts
. 
E

a
c
h

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

fi
rm

 i
s
 a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
le

g
a

l 
e

n
ti
ty

 a
n

d
 

e
a

c
h

 d
e

s
c
ri

b
e

s
 it

s
e

lf
 a

s
 s

u
c
h

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
.

T
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

a
m

e
, 
lo

g
o

 a
n

d
 ‘
c
u

tt
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
o

m
p

le
x
it
y
’ 
a

re
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 

tr
a

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

r 
tr

a
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

 (
K

P
M

G
 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l)
.

Page 44



 

 

 
 
Report of the Director of Resources 
 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee    
 

Date: 18th July 2011 
 
Subject: The Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
 

        
 
 
Executive Summary 

1. The Responsible Financial Officer has certified that the 2010/11 accounts for Leeds 
City Council are a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position. The 
accounts are fully IFRS compliant as required by the Accounts & Audit regulations 
2011.    

2. Overall the Council’s net worth has decreased by £127m, primarily due to the 
following factors: 

§ A £733m improvement in the pensions deficit,  due to the move to increasing 
pensions in line with the Consumer Price Index instead of the Retail Price Index 
previously used. This has effectively halved the Council’s pension deficit as 
recognised in the accounts. 

§ A £891m reduction in the value of the Council’s assets (£133m depreciation and 
a £758m impairment charge). This is mainly  due to a reduction in the social 
value of the Authority’s Council houses as determined by the Government. 

3. Whilst financial reporting under IFRS provides an important indication as to the 
financial health of the Council, the amounts actually chargeable to a local 
authority’s council tax and its General Fund reserves are controlled by legislation, 
and include a number of statutory and accounting adjustments. After taking 
account of these statutory adjustments, the Council underspent its approved 
budget of £569m by £5.1m. Consequently the Council’s General Fund reserve has 
increased to £21.2m.   

Recommendations 

4. Members are asked to note the 2010/11 Statement of Accounts as certified by the 
responsible financial officer. 

5. Agree to release the accounts for public inspection.   

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity  
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 
 

 
Ward Members consulted  

 (referred to in report)  

 

 

 

 
Originator: Doug Meeson 
Tel: 74250 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 45



 

  

1.0 Purpose of the Report  

1.1  The purpose of this report is to present to the Committee the 2010/11 Statement of 
Accounts for Leeds City Council prior to them being made available for public 
inspection. The accounts are provisionally timetabled for public inspection on the 
25th July 2011. The Statement of Accounts is included with the agenda as a 
separate booklet for members of the Committee and is published on the Council’s 
intranet site.  Anyone else wishing to obtain a copy of the Statement of Accounts 
should contact the committee clerk named on the front of the agenda.   

1.2 This report provides a summary analysis of the accounts to aid members in their 
understanding of the main financial issues. The report is split into four areas: 

Ø Background information as to the statutory requirements for the accounts 

Ø A summary of both the Council’s in year financial performance and the financial 
health of the Council as at 31st March 2011.  

Ø An update on the accounting issues impacting on the financial statements. 

Ø An update on the Council’s response to external audit issues raised in 2009/10.  

Members should note that the accounts include a foreword by the Director of 
Resources which provides further interpretation of the accounts. 

2.0  Background Information   

2.1   In line with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, the 
Council’s annual accounts have been certified by the responsible financial officer 
as a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position. Whilst it is no longer a 
legal requirement for members to formally approve these unaudited accounts 
before the 30th June, members agreed in April 2011 to receive the accounts prior to 
them being made available for public inspection. The terms of reference of the 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee include dealing with matters relating 
to the accounts. 

2.2 The Council’s accounts are to be made available for public inspection for 20 
working days commencing 25th July 2011. The external audit of the accounts is due 
to commence on the 25th July 2011 and upon completion, the auditors will submit 
their report to this Committee. The audited accounts and the external audit report 
will be presented to this Committee on the 30th September. 

2.3 For the first time, Local Authority Accounts are compiled based on International 
financial reporting standards (IFRS). The main changes required under IFRS are 
explained in section 4.0 of this report. Whilst there are a number of new statements 
and disclosures, one of the main requirements of IFRSs is that the accounts are 
restated as if IFRSs had always been applied. Consequently all comparator data 
has been amended to reflect the new standards. Where this leads to a material 
change from previously reported figures under UK GAAP they separately disclosed 
in the accounts (see page 92 of the accounts).   

Page 46



 

  

 

3.0 A Summary of the Council’s Financial Position 

3.1 The Council’s Overall Financial Performance during 2010/11 

3.1.2 Financial performance for the year 

3.1.2.1  The overall reported outturn to Executive Board on the 22nd June 2011, recognised 
an underspend of £5.1m against an approved budget of £569.3m. However, the 
2010/11 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CI&E a/c) shows a 
deficit for the year of £127.6m (£770.7m in 2009/10). This deficit represents the 
amount the Council’s net worth has fallen over the year. This is shown on the 
Balance Sheet as a reduction in net assets less liabilities between 31st March 2010 
and 31st March 2011. In addition to the in year underspend of £5.1m, there are four 
main factors which have contributed to this reduction in the net worth of the 
Council: 

i) Unlike in previous years, all changes to the pension deficit are now shown in 
the CI&E a/c. For 2010/11 the Council’s pensions deficit has been significantly 
reduced, resulting in a £733m credit to the reported bottom line of the CI&E a/c. 
This mainly reflects the impact of the Government’s decision to move to 
pension increases being in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rather than 
the Retail Price Index (RPI). The actuaries calculation of the Council’s pension 
deficit assumes that the CPI rate is, on average, 0.5% less that the RPI rate 
resulting in a reduction to the predicted value of future pension liabilities. For 
consideration of how this much improved position compares with the latest 
actuarial review of the pension fund see para 3.2.1 below and for full details of 
the changes to the Council’s pension deficit see appendix 1. 

ii) The CI&E a/c incurs a charge for the depreciation of its fixed assets. This 
charge is an indication as to the cost the Council will have to incur, through 
borrowing and repairs and maintenance budgets, in order to maintain the 
standard of our buildings and other assets. For 2010/11 this amounted to a cost 
of £133m. 

The CI&E a/c also, receives an impairment charge if there is any indication that 
an asset is either being used up, or its value is falling, faster than currently 
recognised by the rate of depreciation. For 2010/11 this charge amounted to 
£758m. Normally such impairment charges reflect the reduction in the value of 
an asset from an incident such as a fire or demolition. However, in 2010/11 
there has been a change in the way Council Houses are valued which has 
generated an impairment charge of £631m to the CI&E a/c. This impairment 
charge reflects the impact of the Government’s decision to amend the 
prescribed calculation for assessing the social value of the Council’s housing 
stock (from 47% of their market value to 31%). Any potential loss through 
impairment would only be realised if the assets were sold at their social value 
rather than the actual market value of the properties. The market value of our 
Council house stock is some £4.6bn compared to the new social value of 
£1,5bn. If the Council was to include the full market value of its Council Houses 
this would increase the Council’s net worth by £3.1bn.   

iii) Under IFRS any grants for which any conditions imposed by the granting body 
have been met, or there is a reasonable expectation that the conditions will be 
met, then the grant must be recognised in the CI&E account. Previously all 
unspent grants would have been treated as receipts in advance and carried 
forward as a creditor on the balance sheet. For 2010/11 this amounted to 

Page 47



 

  

£107m (£102m capital and a net £5m revenue grants). These grants are carried 
forward on the balance sheet to meet planned expenditure in future years.  

iv) The CI&E a/c also recognises and gains or losses on disposal of fixed assets. 
For 2010/11 this amounted to a loss of £86m, reflecting the fact that a number 
of schools are now either trusts or academies. The Council has no choice in 
whether to transfer these assets and does not receive any consideration for 
their transfer.  

3.1.2.2 Whilst financial reporting under IFRS provides an important indication as to the 
financial health of the Council, the amounts actually chargeable to a local 
authority’s council tax and its General Fund reserves are controlled by legislation, 
and include a number of statutory and accounting adjustments. Of the above 
factors the pension savings, the depreciation and impairment charges and the 
losses on disposal of fixed assets are reversed under statute. Any grants remaining 
unspent in the year are carried forward as either a capital or revenue earmarked 
reserves.    

3.1.2.3 Whilst recognising that the CI&E a/c provides a number of important indicators as 
to the financial health of the Council, it is the £5.1m surplus which has the 
immediate impact on taxpayers and dictates the level of General fund reserves 
available to the Council. This £5.1m underspend for the year has not been easily 
achieved as the Council has had to deal with in- year pressures in excess of £45m.  
These have included demand pressures of £24.3m, and  declining  income 
especially within City Development. In addition, the new Government announced a 
£1.166bn in-year reduction in grants to Local Authorities as part of its accelerated 
deficit reduction plan; the impact of which was a £15.0m reduction in revenue 
grants to the Council. The scale of these grant reductions and the fact that they 
were notified part way through the year presented the Council with a significant 
difficulty in managing them. However, through careful financial management, the 
delivery of staffing, other savings in directorates and the corporate identification of 
savings, it has been possible to not only deliver a balanced position, but to also to 
make a contribution to reserves in anticipation of the budgeted utilisation of 
reserves planned for 2011/12.  

3.1.2.4 The General Fund reserve now stands at £21.1m. After the use of £2m as agreed 
to support the 2011/12 budget, this would leave an estimated £19.2m at the 31st 
March 2012. This is broadly in line with the minimum reserves as determined by 
the Council’s risk based reserves strategy. 

3.2. Financial Health as at 31st March 2011  

3.2.1 As identified in the CI&E a/c, the Council’s assets net of liabilities has fallen by 
£127.6m and now stands at £710.5m. Whilst para. 3.1.2.1 above identifies the 
main reasons for this fall, the Council’s balance sheet also contains other 
transactions, mainly relating to capital, which impact on the Council’s financial 
standing. The following section analyses the main issues impacting on the 
Council’s balance sheet as at 31st March 2011:  

§ The Council’s overall share of the pension deficit on the fund has fallen to 
£740m and represents the difference between the value of the Authority's 
pension fund assets at 31st March 2011 and the estimated present value of the 
future pension payments to which it was committed at that date. These 
pensions liabilities will be paid out over a period of many years, during which 
time the assets will continue to generate returns towards funding them. The 
extent to which the expected future returns on assets are sufficient to cover the 
estimated net liabilities was considered by the actuaries in their full actuarial 

Page 48



 

  

review of the Pension Fund, carried out as at 31st March 2010. Whilst this is 
done on a different basis to the determination of the deficit in the annual 
accounts, it does provide a good indication of the future standing of the pension 
fund based on the fund’s current position. The actuarial review concluded that 
the Pension fund was 93% funded, with a predicted deficit for Leeds City 
Council of £97m. Based on the actuarial review, the Council has established 
appropriate employer contribution rates in order to move the fund towards a 
fully funded position over a 22 year recovery period. This position excludes any 
potential impact of the recently published Hutton report and the intention of the 
Government to increase employee contributions to public sector pension 
schemes on average by 3%. Employer contribution rates have been agreed on 
the basis that should employee contributions change prior to the next valuation, 
then employer contribution would be reviewed. 

§ Overall the value of the Council’s long term assets have fallen by £741m.  
There are a number of factors affecting the value of our assets but as outlined 
in 3.1.2.1 above the largest impact in 2010/11 is due to the depreciation and 
impairment of the assets. Other factors impacting on the carrying value of our 
assets are: 

Ø Additional capital spend in year of £279m.  

Ø Disposals of £93m, of which £86m was recognised as a loss in the CI&E a/c 
as a number of schools were transferred to trusts or recognised as 
academies. 

Whilst we have seen a drop in the operational value of the Council’s long term 
assets, the overall market value of the Council’s assets is considerably higher. 
In particular the market value of our Housing stock is around £4.6bn (current 
social value £1.5bn) and our infrastructure assets are currently only recognised 
at depreciated historic cost (£708m) when their market value would run into 
billions of pounds.     

§ Overall the Council’s useable reserves have risen from £162m in 2009/10 to 
£191m in 2010/11, an increase of £29m. The majority of these £191m of 
useable reserves are ring fenced (£151m) and are not available to support 
general expenditure. The main ring fenced reserves as at 31st March 2011 are: 

Ø School based reserves £25m; 

Ø Revenue grants received in advance of planned expenditure £12m; 

Ø Capital grants received in advance of planned expenditure £94m (£87m as 
at 31st March 2010, plus a further £102m received in year, less the £96m 
applied to fund capital schemes); 

Ø Housing Revenue Account reserves £20m, statutorily ring fenced to the 
provision of local authority housing. 

The remaining £40m of reserves is made up of the £21m General Fund 
Reserve and £19m of earmarked reserves. Of the £19m earmarked reserves, 
the majority, some £15m, is earmarked to support future PFI or capital liabilities.    

§ Overall debt stands at £1,504m (£1,459m in 2009/10) made up of long term 
borrowing £1,299m (£1,334m in 2009/10) and  borrowing repayable on demand 
or within one year of £205m (£125m in 2009/10).  

The level of overall debt has increased by £45m from 2009/10 reflecting £20m 
of new long term and a net £25m of new short term loans. In addition, whilst not 

Page 49



 

  

impacting on overall debt levels, some loans have now been reclassified as 
short term as they have less than a year to maturity.  

Full details of the Council’s Treasury Management activities for the year will be 
available in the Treasury Management report to Executive Board on the 27th 
July 2011.   

§ The amount owed by the Authority for the financial year but not yet paid (current 
creditors) decreased by £19m. The major reason for the decrease in creditors 
reflects a £10m reduction in the year end payments due to Education Leeds as 
the contract came to an end on the 31st March 2011, and a £2m reduction in the 
amount outstanding to HMRC due to a fall in the tax payable on the actual 
number of equal pay compensation payments made in year. In respect of 
creditor payments to individuals and business it is the Council’s aim to pay such 
creditors within 30 days. For 2010/11 the Council paid 90% of its undisputed 
invoices within the 30 days, an increase in performance of 2% compared to 
2009/10. Overall 94% of the authority’s invoices were paid within 40 days and 
100% of small suppliers were paid within 20 days.  

§ The amount owed to the Authority for the financial year but not yet received 
(current debtors) decreased by £20m. The main reason for this decrease in the 
value of debtors was a £11m reduction in outstanding grants due from 
Government departments following the cessation of some grants and the year 
end timing of when grants are actually paid. In addition there was a £7m 
reduction in the NNDR debtor due the timing and improved estimation used in 
the 2010/11 interim claim which reduced the value of  the outstanding claim at 
year end and. 

§ Provisions have increased by £34m, mainly reflecting additional settlements 
due under the equal pay agreement. 

§ The Council recognises the amounts due under PFI and finance leases as 
deferred liabilities on the Balance Sheet. As at 31st March 2011 the Council’s 
deferred liabilities have increased by £48m, mainly reflecting additional liabilities 
on new PFI schemes in 2010/11.  

3.3 Ring Fenced Accounts: 

3.3.1 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

3.3.1.1 The HRA Income & Expenditure account shows a deficit for the year of £634.3m. 
This deficit is then adjusted to reflect any statutory overrides to accounting 
practice in order to produce a reported financial position which directly impacts on 
Council House rent payers. For 2010/11 the statutory overrides amounted to a 
credit to the HRA of £636.2m, resulting in a financial surplus for the HRA of £1.9m 
(compared to a deficit of £0.7m in 2009/10). The main statutory override impacting 
on the 2010/11 HRA is the reversal of a £631.4m impairment charge made in 
year, reflecting the Government decision to reduce the social value of Council 
Houses recognised on Local Authority balance sheets.  

3.3.1.2 The surplus of £1.9m was transferred to earmarked reserves as approved by the 
Executive Board on the 22nd June 2011. in addition the Executive Board agreed to 
set aside £0.6m of the HRA general reserve as a further earmarked reserve to 
fund the replacement of Care ring equipment.  

3.3.1.3 Overall the HRA reserves stand at £20.1m as at 31st March 2011 (£18.1m as at 
31st March 2010). £4.0m of this sum represents the HRA general reserve; this is 
deemed to be a prudent level based on the Council’s risk based reserves 
strategy. Of the £16.1m earmarked HRA reserves, £11.5m is being held to fund 

Page 50



 

  

the future costs of the Swarcliffe PFI scheme. Full details of the all the HRA 
reserves are shown in the Statement of Accounts.  

3.3.2 Collection Fund 

3.3.2.1 The Collection Fund for 2010/11 generated a deficit of £0.84m (£0.82m deficit 
2009/10). This leaves the collection fund with negative reserves as at 31st March 
2011 (there were no reserves carried forward as at 31st March 2010). There is no 
requirement to hold a balance on the Collection Fund reserve but any positive or 
negative balance must be taken into account when calculating the council tax for 
the following year.  

3.4   Group 

3.4.1 Arms Length Management Organisations (ALMOs) 

3.4.1.1 Collectively the three ALMOs showed a surplus position for 2010/11 of £37.8m 
(£8.7m surplus in 2009/10). The detailed performance figures for each individual 
ALMO are available in the Statement of Accounts under the Group Accounts 
section. 

3.4.1.2 The net assets held by the companies to fund the pensions deficit now stand at 
£46.3m (£31.8m in 2009/10). As at 31st March 2011, the net pension liability for 
the three ALMOs stood at £11.7m (£35.3m in 2009/10), producing net reserves 
for the companies of £34.6m (£3.5m negative reserves in 2009/10). As the 
ALMOs are members of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund, the reasons for this 
improvement in the pension deficits is the same as for the Council.  

3.4.2 Education Leeds 

3.4.2.1 Due to the cessation of the contract with Education Leeds at 31st March 2011, the 
contract was amended before the year-end in order to repay the accumulated 
operating surplus as at 31st March 2010 and the forecast in-year surplus for 
2010/11. This amounted to a reduction in the Education Leeds contract of £3.2m. 
Consequently Education Leeds has a small in year operating deficit, before 
pension adjustments, of  £0.8m for 2010/11 (£0.5m deficit in 2009/10).   

3.4.2.2 The net assets (reserves) held by the company to fund the pensions deficit now 
stands at £1.8m (£2.6m net liabilities in 2009/10). As at 31st March 2011, the net 
pension liability for Education Leeds stood at £30.7m. (£65.1m in 2009/10), 
producing a net liabilities for the company of £28.9m (£62.5m in 2009/10). As 
Education Leeds was a member of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund, the reasons 
for this improvement in the pension deficits is the same as for the Council.. 

3.4.3 Other Group entities 

3.4.3.1 The definition of group entities has changed under IFRS leading to an expansion 
in the number of entities now accounted for under the Council’s Group accounts. 
The following entities are now included and their results consolidated into the 
group accounts: 

Leeds Grand Theatre, Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation,  Leeds 
groundwork trust, Marketing Leeds Ltd, Green Leeds Ltd and the Craft Centre 
and Design Gallery Limited. 

Collectively these entities broke even in year and have reserves of £1.6m as at 
31st March 2011.  

 

 

Page 51



 

  

3.4.4 Impact of the Group entities on the overall financial position 

3.4.4.1 Whilst it should be recognised that the Group entities do not represent a major 
part of the Council’s activities, the Group Accounts do show that they hold a 
significant level of reserves (£52m). The major reason behind these levels of 
reserves is to contribute to the pension deficits of £43m.  

3.4.4.2 It should be noted that whilst the Group Accounts do show the full scale of the 
Council’s financial activities, those that are the  most financially significant are in-
fact limited companies and as such the Council would only be required to 
contribute a nominal sum if any of them are wound up.  

4.0  Accounting Issues Impacting on the Financial Statements: 

4.1 Changes to Accounting Practice 

4.1.1 The accounting practice governing Local Authority accounts has undergone 
significant changes over the last few years with the 2010/11 accounts required to 
move to full compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
Members of this Committee have been updated on the main issues and progress 
towards IFRS compliance in a number of up-date reports over the last few years. 
Some of the IFRS based changes were introduced in 2009/10 i.e. IFRS based 
accounting practice for PFI transactions.  

The main changes are: 

4.1.2 The adoption of IFRS based accounting practice requires the accounts to be 
amended to reflect the position as if IFRS accounting had always been applied. 
Consequently all comparator figures have been amended in line with the new 
requirements of IFRS. 

4.1.3 The new Comprehensive Income & Expenditure account (CI&E a/c) recognises 
the change in the Council’s overall net worth. Previously, under UK (GAAP) any 
unrealised gains and losses were not recognised in the Income & Expenditure 
account but shown in a separate Statement of Total recognised Gains and 
Losses. Unrealised gains and losses such as the revaluation of assets, are now 
charged directly to the CI&E a/c.  

4.1.4 The new Statement of movement in reserves identifies all the movement in 
reserves for the year, analysed between useable and unuseable reserves. 
Unuseable reserves are those based on statutory adjustments to ensure certain 
accounting requirements do not impact disproportionately on current tax payers.   

4.1.5 All the Council’s leases have been reviewed to determine whether they are 
operating or finance leases under IFRS based accounts. Assets funded under 
finance leases are recognised on the balance sheet along with any associated 
deferred liabilities. 

4.1.6 Under IFRS, any grants for which any conditions imposed by the granting body 
have been met, or there is a reasonable expectation that the conditions will be 
met, then the grant must be recognised in the CI&E account. Any unused grants 
are then carried forward as either a useable capital reserve or a revenue 
earmarked reserve. Previously capital grants would have been applied directly to 
appropriate capital schemes and any unspent grant carried forward as a receipt in 
advance.  

4.1.7 Any short term employee benefits such as paid annual leave or paid sick pay 
must be accounted for in the year in which the employee worked for the Council. 
Consequently any outstanding benefits must be accrued to the CI&E a/c. A 
statutory override allows Local Authorities to carry forward such accruals in an 

Page 52



 

  

unuseable statutory revenue reserve. For 2010/11 this accrual amounted to 
£11m, the bulk of which related to teachers due to the timing difference between 
the school year and that of the financial year end.  

4.1.8 Under IFRS the definition of what constitutes the Council’s control and influence 
over entities has changed. This has lead to an increase in the number of 
subsidiary and associate companies now consolidated into the Group accounts.  

5.0  External Audit Issues  

5.1  In September 2010, KPMG reported back to this Committee its main audit findings 
in respect of the 2009/10 accounts. In this report, KPMG informed members of 
just two areas of concern, namely, the need to review all items in the Fixed Asset 
Register to ensure all assets are still owned by the Authority and to ensure that all 
valuations are included in the Fixed Asset Register. 

5.2 The review of the Fixed Asset Register has been undertaken and the findings of 
which was reported to this Committee on the 15th June 2011. The resulting 
amendments have now been incorporated in the Fixed Asset Register. Controls 
have also been tightened to ensure all valuations have been updated into the 
register. 

5.3 As stated in paragraph 2.2 above, any relevant matters arising from the audit of 
the 2010/11 accounts are reported back to this Committee in September.  

6.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 

6.1 The Statement of Accounts is an audited publication which provides all 
stakeholders with the confidence that public money has been properly accounted 
for and that the financial standing of the Council is on a secure basis.  

6.2 As required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, the accounts are to be 
made available for public inspection for twenty working days. Local electors and 
taxpayers have the right to look through the accounts and supporting 
documentation. They also have the right to object to the accounts and question 
the auditors.  

7.0 Legal and Resource Implications  

7.1 The Accounts are required to be certified as a true and fair view of the Council’s 
financial position by the Responsible Financial Officer before the end of June. 
This is a factual report of the Director of Resources on the financial accounts of 
the Council for 2010/11. There are no additional legal or financial implications.  

8.0  Recommendations  

8.1  Members are asked to note the 2010/11 Statement of Accounts as certified by the 
responsible financial officer. 

8.2 Agree to release the accounts for public inspection.   

Background Documents 

2010/11 Statement of Accounts (separately distributed to members at the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee on the 18th July 2011).  

KPMG ISA 260 Report 2009/10 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010 

Corporate Governance and Audit Reports on International Financial Reporting Standards 
(23rd April 2008, 17th March 2010 & 14th February 2011)  

Executive Board report (22nd June 2011): Financial Performance – Outturn 2010/11 

Executive Board report (27th July 2011): Treasury Management report 2010/11 

Page 53



 

  

 

Appendix 1. 

Factors impacting on the Pension deficit in 2010/11 

For 2010/11 one of the most significant areas which has impacted on the Council’s balance 
sheet has been in respect of pension liabilities. As at the 31st March 2011 the net pensions 
liability under IAS 19 stood at £740m, a decrease in the net liability of £734m from last 
year. The main factors which have contributed to this decrease are: 

§ The future pension liabilities held on the balance sheet are discounted back to current 
prices. Every year these pension liabilities become one year closer to being paid and 
the accounts therefore reflect the unravelling of one more year of this discount. 
Consequently the level of pension liabilities rises each year and for 2010/11 this 
increase amounted to £162m.  

§ For 2010/11 there have been a number of changes to the actuarial assumptions, by far 
the biggest of which was the Government’s decision to move to pension increases 
being in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rather than the Retail Price Index 
(RPI). The actuaries have assumed that the CPI rate is, on average, 0.5% less that the 
RPI rate. This and other minor changes to assumptions has lead to a £668m reduction 
in the expected liabilities of the fund.    

§ The value of the council’s pension fund assets has risen by £240m mainly due to the 
steady performance of the stock markets over the last year. 

The main differences between the pensions deficit as calculated in the accounts and 
that calculated in the actuarial review. 

Under the accounting standard  (IAS 19) the Council must determine the future cost of the 
pension liability earned to date by it’s employees. In order to do this, the Council’s 
actuaries estimate the how long they expect the officers in the scheme are expected to live 
and their anticipated rise in salary (pay awards, increments etc.). The level of future 
pensions is then inflated (now based on CPI) to calculate the likely future liabilities the 
Council faces under the scheme. This is broadly the same approach as followed in the 
actuarial review. The only real  difference will be slight changes to some of the 
assumptions used due to the timing of the assessments. 

In order to include this projected future pensions liability in the accounts it needs to be 
discounted back to current prices. The discount rate used is determined by the accounting 
standard. This is currently the yield on corporate and government bonds as at the reporting 
year end. In theory this discount rate is expected to be stable over the long term and 
represents the time value of money. Due to the exceptional economic situation over the 
last few years there has been some fluctuations in this discount rate but it is expected to be 
relatively stable over the long term. The actuarial review also discounts future pension 
liabilities but for this calculation the actuaries are not restricted to the yield on bond rates 
but instead choose a rate which they believe is more applicable for bodies in the West 
Yorkshire Pension Scheme. They therefore apply a higher discount rate based on 
expected returns on the pension fund’s assets and the long term financial standing of the 
Councils in the scheme. Accordingly, the actuarial review produces a lower level of future 
pension liabilities (at current prices) than that used in the accounts. 

 

Page 54



 

  

In respect of the fund’s assets to pay for these liabilities, accounting practice only allows 
the Council’s accounts to include them at their current value. Any expected future growth in 
these assets remains uncertain and the prudent approach in accounting practice is that 
organisations can only included gains on investments when the gains are certain. 
Consequently the accounts are always likely to show the pension fund in deficit as the 
viability of a scheme will always depend on asset growth. In comparison the actuarial 
review assesses the long term viability of the fund and therefore assumes that the assets 
will grow in order to meet future liabilities. Consequently the value of the fund’s assets in 
the actuarial review are much greater than those in the accounts. It is therefore the 
actuarial review which helps determine the employer contribution rates required to meet 
any projected deficit.                

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 6 

 
Report of the Director of Resources 
 
Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Date: 18 July 2011 
 
Subject: Annual Risk Management Report  
 

        
 

Executive Summary 

Under the Council’s Risk Management Policy and the Committee’s own Terms of Reference, 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the ‘adequacy of 
the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements (including matters such as internal 
control and risk management)’.  This annual report helps provide assurance on the strength 
of these risk management arrangements and is therefore an important source of evidence 
for the authority’s Annual Governance Statement. 

Since the previous report presented to the Committee on 12 May 2010, the authority’s Risk 
Management Unit (RMU) has worked with officers and members to enhance the rigour of the 
corporate risk register, facilitated a number of successful risk management workshops and 
training sessions and conducted risk management reviews of such key areas as the 11/12 
budget and workforce planning.  The processes for maintaining and reporting on corporate, 
directorate and budget risk registers as well as risks within our performance indicators are 
now well-established as are the role and functions of the Corporate Risk Management 
Group.  In these areas, the RMU can therefore give assurance to this Committee that the 
arrangements are adequate.   

When considering the adequacy of our risk management arrangements, the Committee is 
also able to place reliance on other update and assurance reports produced in such areas as 
financial risk management, the internal control environment and performance management 
as well as specific reports on the management of corporate risks (for example, safeguarding 
children, burglary and community engagement) drawn up by officers, internal and external 
audit and independent assessment bodies such as Ofsted and the Care Quality 
Commission. 

 

 

 

 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  

Community Cohesion 
 

Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

 

 

Originator: Coral Main 
Tel: 51572 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 57



Page 2 of 6 

 

1.0 Purpose of this Report 

1.1 This report provides Corporate Governance & Audit Committee with an overview of 
the risk management work conducted by the Risk Management Unit (RMU) in the 
last year in support of the Council’s Risk Management Framework.  It also reports 
on the corporate risk register and highlights future areas of work to enhance our risk 
management arrangements.  The report helps provide assurance to the Committee 
on the strength of these risk management arrangements and thus, when taken in 
conjunction with other assurance reports on specific risk areas, provides an 
important source of evidence for the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

2.0 Main Issues 

Corporate Risk Register 

2.1 The corporate risk register continues to be updated quarterly by directorates 
(including Education Leeds) and the 3 housing ALMOs, reviewed and moderated by 
the Corporate Risk Management Group (CRMG) and approved by the Corporate 
Leadership Team (CLT).  During 2010/11, the RMU made several changes to the 
corporate risk register to enhance the contents and reduce duplication and 
bureaucracy for officers who update the individual risk records.  This included the 
incorporation of a ‘RAG’ assessment for all the Council’s programmes and major 
projects as this provides useful data on emerging potential corporate risks.  A target 
risk rating for all risks is now assigned to help indicate where further risk 
management attention and resources can and should be targeted.    

2.2 The corporate register is supported by a range of other risk registers at directorate, 
service, budget and project levels from which the most significant risks are 
escalated to the corporate level.  Executive Board members now review and provide 
input to the corporate risk register on a regular basis.  The RMU extended this 
review to this Committee in January 2011 and intends hereafter to offer such review 
sessions to Corporate Governance & Audit Committee members each year.  Along 
with the RMU’s own horizon scanning exercises (for example, through review of 
external assessment reports and of the media), these processes should provide the 
Committee with a significant source of assurance on the rigour of the Council’s 
corporate risk register and that it accurately reflects both members’ and officers’ 
concerns. 

2.3 The corporate risk register is a live document with risks moving up and down over 
the year, thereby evidencing the maturity of our review and challenge processes.  
The register was last reviewed in May and contains 31 risks of which 10 have been 
given the highest ‘red’ rating.  This rating is a combination of the probability of the 
risk materialising and its impact if it did and so a number of risks are rated as ‘red’ 
as a consequence of their impact score rather than there being a high likelihood of 
the risk actually arising.  The corporate risk register provides assurance to the 
citizens of Leeds, Council staff and elected members that we are aware of our 
biggest risks and that we have taken steps, as far as we can, to manage them.  This 
means they are both less likely to occur and also have less of an impact if they did. 

2.4 The 10 corporate risks currently rated as ‘red’ are: School Places, Medium-Term 
Budget, Universal Credit, City Flooding, Children’s Services’ Budget, Adult Social 
Care Budget, Streetscenes’ Improvements, Equal Pay, Safeguarding Children and 
Emergency and Business Continuity Management.  Work is underway to analyse 
and re-assess the corporate risks on NEET (the number of 16-18 year-olds Not in 
Education, Employment or Training) and industrial action as well as new risks on the 

Page 58



Page 3 of 6 

Council’s changes to the workplace culture and Customer Access Strategy and so 
the ratings for these are not yet known.  ‘RAG’ assessments have been provided for 
158 Council programmes and major projects with 10 flagged as ‘red’.  A high-level 
version of the corporate risk map has been provided at Appendix 1.  Where we are 
awaiting the latest risk evaluations (i.e. NEET and industrial action), the previous 
quarter’s assessments have been used.   

Financial Risk Management 

2.5 At the request of the Chair of this Committee, the RMU undertook a review of the 
robustness of the Council’s 2011/12 budget risk assessments included in the 
Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2011/12 report presented by the Director of 
Resources to Executive Board on 11 February 2011 and subsequently approved by 
Full Council on 23 February.  We reported our findings to the Committee on 15 June 
and concluded that throughout the Council there is an excellent understanding of 
the key budget risks.   Whilst there is a sound risk management framework in place 
for financial management and this puts us in as good a position as possible to 
deliver the 2011/12 budget, there remain significant risks due to the challenging 
targets and assumptions we have had to set and make and continued increases in 
demand-led services.   

Programme and Project Risk Management 

2.6 Under the Council’s Risk Management Policy, all programmes and projects should 
incorporate formal and proportionate risk management arrangements.  Although 
there is no longer capacity to independently assure projects, there are in place 
arrangements for the incorporation of a RAG assessment of all programmes and 
major projects within the corporate risk register.  Also, all programmes and major 
projects are sponsored by senior managers and should have in place 
Programme/Project Boards which are responsible for the management of risks.  
Officers are provided with guidance and templates on applying scaleable risk 
management to their projects through the RMU’s risk management sections of the 
Council’s Delivering Successful Change (DSC) project management methodology 
for which training is available through the Council’s external training provider.  
Finally, in the case of programmes and projects for which the RMU has facilitated 
risk management workshops, a full range of risks has been properly identified and 
draft risk registers established. 

RMU Workshops and Training 

2.7 During 2010/11, the RMU facilitated 4 risk management workshops: one for Aire 
Valley Homes Leeds to help establish a new corporate risk register and three for 
major projects – Eastgate & Harewood Redevelopment; Community Homecare 
Framework Procurement and the Leeds City Region.  In addition, the Unit has 
worked with officers to undertake risk assessments for the Changing the Workplace 
Programme and workforce planning and also reviewed the 2011/12 budget risk 
assessments detailed in section 2.6 above.  It has provided risk management 
training for this Committee and for new (from 2010) Executive members.  Feedback 
from all 4 workshops has been very positive with 100% of respondents finding them 
worthwhile and beneficial. 

Risk Management Policy and Supporting Documentation 

2.8 Last year, the RMU carried out a review to identify whether the Council’s Risk 
Management Framework (Policy, Strategy and Toolkit) remained fit-for-purpose.  
This review included holding 1-2-1 meetings with key internal stakeholders and 
benchmarking the Framework against those of external organisations and the 

Page 59



Page 4 of 6 

International and British Standards on Risk Management.  A revised Policy is 
currently being drawn up and it is proposed that the Risk Management Strategy is 
revised in 2011/12.   

2011/12 Priorities 

2.9 The biggest single improvement to the quality, consistency and ease of maintaining 
and reporting on risk registers will be the implementation of the Council’s risk 
management software system which will be rolled out this year.  We had intended to 
roll this out in 2010/11 but, due to lack of staffing resources and other priorities, this 
was not possible and so it will now be one of the top 2011/12 priorities.  Alongside 
this, work is being undertaken with colleagues in Performance Management to 
develop joint corporate reporting arrangements to CLT to help better align our risk 
and performance information.  As reported to the Committee in February, the 
revised performance management framework incorporates a corporate performance 
dashboard that brings together a broad range of performance and risk data and 
informs senior managers’ one-to-one meetings and appraisals.  This enable 
emerging potential risks and issues to be identified quickly, thereby acting as an 
early warning system.  This feeds into another area of work for the RMU in which it 
will review and propose changes as needed to the corporate and directorate risk 
registers in light of the new Council, City and Directorate priorities.  

2.10 The Unit will also be working with Corporate Financial Management colleagues to 
review the budget risk assessments and registers.  The RMU will revise the 
Council’s Risk Management Strategy and Toolkit, facilitate as many risk 
management workshops as possible, extend risk management training to Area 
Committees, update the Partnership Risk Management documentation and finalise 
a Programme Risk Management guide.   

3.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 

3.1 Under Principle 4 of the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance, the authority 
should take ‘informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny and risk management’ and the risk management framework that supports 
this should ensure that members are actively involved in the risk management 
process.  The terms of reference of this Committee require it to review the adequacy 
of the Council’s risk management arrangements.  This annual report helps provide 
assurance to the Committee on the strength of these arrangements and is an 
important source of evidence for the Annual Governance Statement. 

4.0  Legal and Resource Implications 

4.1 As in other areas, the resources of the RMU have to be prioritised with 2010/11 
seeing us focusing on strengthening the corporate risk register, undertaking risk 
assessments only in high priority areas and maintaining strong quarterly risk 
reporting arrangements.  2011/12 will see us continue to assess our work priorities 
as outlined above in paragraphs 2.9-10 in line with the Unit’s staffing capacity. 

5.0  Conclusions 

5.1 Whilst we can never be complacent in the area of risk management, the RMU has 
identified no issues in the Council’s risk management arrangements that need to be 
drawn to the Board’s attention.  Throughout 2010/11, the RMU has worked with 
officers and members to enhance the rigour of the corporate risk register, facilitated 
a number of successful risk management workshops and training sessions and 
conducted risk management reviews of such key areas as the 2011/12 budget and 
workforce planning.  The processes for maintaining and reporting on corporate, 
directorate and budget risk registers as well as risks within our performance 
indicators are now well-established as are the role and functions of the Corporate 

Page 60



Page 5 of 6 

Risk Management Group.  In these areas, the RMU can therefore give assurance to 
this Board that the arrangements are effective. 

5.2 This assessment is supported by the last Use of Resources assessment carried out 
by KPMG in February 2010 in which the indicative score showed we were on track 
to achieve a ‘3’ for risk management (‘Exceeds minimum requirements – performs 
well’).  When considering the adequacy of our risk management arrangements, the 
Committee is also able to place reliance on other update and assurance reports 
produced on the management of specific corporate risks and projects drawn up by 
officers, internal and external audit and independent assessment bodies such as 
Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission.   

5.3 Having effective risk management arrangements in place provides assurance that 
we are aware of our biggest risks and that we have taken steps, as far as we can, to 
manage them.  It also means that our projects and decision-making are more likely 
to deliver the outcomes and benefits they set out to do and that resources are used 
more effectively.  The RMU will continue to work with members and officers to 
enhance our risk management arrangements.  This will include extending these 
arrangements to key partners with whom the Council shares responsibility for 
delivering the new City Priorities.  

6.0 Recommendations 

6.1 Corporate Governance & Audit Committee is asked to receive the RMU’s annual 
report on the Council’s risk management arrangements and note the assurances 
given on our corporate risk management (notably the enhancements to the contents 
and greater involvement of elected members), financial risk management (for 
example increased monitoring and reporting), project risk management and 
integration of risk into performance management.  These assurances are supported 
by other assurances given by officers and external assessors on the management 
of specific corporate risks. 

7.0 Background Papers 

7.1 Background papers referred to in this report are as follows: 

•••• Leeds City Council Risk Management Policy  
•••• Leeds City Council Code of Corporate Governance 
•••• Audit Commission 2009 Comprehensive Area Assessment – Leeds City Council 
•••• Report of the Director of Resources to Executive Board, ‘Revenue Budget & 
Council Tax 2011/12’, (11 February 2011) 

•••• Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy & Improvement) to 
Corporate Governance & Audit Committee, ‘Corporate Performance 
Management Arrangements’, (14 February 2011) 

Page 61



Page 6 of 6 

 
 
 
 

Leeds City Council’s Corporate Risks as at 24 May 2011 
 
 

Appendix 1: Corporate Risk Map 
 

Risk Management Unit 

PROBABILITY 

I
M
P
A
C

T 

Safeguarding 
children 

Equal 
 pay 

Flooding 

Universal 
credit 

Medium-term 
budget 

School 
places 

Children’s Social 
Care budget 

Streetscenes 
improvements 

Incident 
management 

Carbon 
emissions 

Transport 

Children’s Services 
Improvement Plan 

In-year 
budget 

Workforce 
planning 

Public sector 
cuts 

ICT failure 

Fraud & 
corruption 

Community 
engagement 

Capital 
programme 

Safeguarding 
adults 

Health 
inequalities 

Crime 
Self-directed 
support 

Teenage 
pregnancies 

Value for 
Money 

Decent 
homes 

Leeds 
economy 

Health & 
Safety 

NEET 

Industrial 
action 

Note 

The corporate risk register 
provides assurance to the 
citizens of Leeds, Council staff 
and elected members that we 
are aware of our biggest risks 
and that we have taken steps, 
as far as we can, to manage 
them.  This means that they 
both less likely to occur and also 
have less of an impact if they 
did.   
 
It is a live document and so the 
risk map shown here represents 
a snapshot in time and may not 
portray the risks at the time the 
report is presented.   

Adult Social 
Care budget 

P
a
g
e
 6

2



 
Report of the Director of Resources  
 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Date: 18th July 2011 
 
Subject: Decision Making Framework; Annual Assurance Report  
 

        
 
 
 1.0 Purpose of the Report  

1.1 This report provides an annual report to the committee, in respect of the the Council’s 
decision making arrangements.  The report does not consider delegated planning 
decisions (which were considered as part of the Chief Planning Officers report to the 
committee in June), nor does it address delegated Licensing decisions.    

 
1.2      The report also provides details of the results of a follow up audit undertaken by 

Internal Audit in 2010/11 with regard to decision making.   
 
1.3 The report concludes with an opinion from the Head of Governance Services with 

regard to overall compliance with the Council’s decision making arrangements.  
 
2.0 Background Information 

2.1 This report forms one of a series of annual reports to the committee that provide the 
basis for the committee to agree the Annual Governance Statement (scheduled for 
consideration by the committee in September 2011).   

 
 In previous years the committee has received a year end position with respect to; 
 

• Key Decisions Taken under Special Urgency provisions 

• The Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

• Key and Major decisions which have been designated as exempt from the Call-in 
process 

 
2.2      This year the annual report has been expanded in scope and coverage. 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Andy Hodson/Kevin 
Tomkinson 

Tel: 2243208/2474357 

Agenda Item 10

Page 63



3.0 The Decision Making Arrangements at Leeds City Council. 

3.1 The decision making framework at Leeds comprises the systems and processes 
through which decision making is directed and controlled.  The arrangements are 
comprised primarily of Constitutional provisions, namely; 

 
Articles of the Constitution:  
Article 1 (describing the powers and purpose of the Council and the purpose of the 
constitution), Article 3 describing the rights of Citizens (for example rights to attend 
meetings, rights in respect of the forward plan, access to information regarding 
decisions), Article 4 – the budget and policy framework of the Authority, Article 6 the 
role of function of Scrutiny Boards, Article 7 the role, form and composition of the 
Executive, Articles 8-10 describing the role, function and membership requirements of 
committees and Article 13 (which describes requirements relating to decision making); 
 

 Responsibility for Functions 
 Arrangements whereby the responsibility for various Council, Local Choice and 

Executive functions are delegated to committees and officers.  In addition there are 
arrangements to further document how these functions are discharged within 
directorates by way of a sub-delegation scheme. 

 
 Procedure Rules 
 Arrangements to govern the processes of decision making; specifically those relating 

to; 

• Full Council  

• The Executive 

• Scrutiny 

• Area Committees 

• Access to Information 
 

Codes and Protocols  

• Specifically, codes of conduct for members and officers (specifically 
arrangements for members and officers to register and declare relevant interests) 
and protocols describing the respective roles of members and officers in decision 
making. 

 
3.2 To support these arrangements training and advice is provided by the Governance 

Services staff.  Specifically this includes; 
  

• Training to officers regarding the decision making process; 

• Advice to officers regarding reports to committees and which support delegated 
decisions 

 
3.3 In addition the Head of Governance Services uses a number of mechanisms to review 

the effectiveness of the decision making process, particularly the extent to which the 
council has been able to demonstrate (as per Article 1 of the Constitution), clear, 
accountable and efficient decision making processes.  These include; 
 

• Delegation and Sub delegation arrangements; 

• Call In;  

• The Forward Plan; 

• The Use of Special Urgency Provisions; 

• Financial commitments; 

Page 64



• Publication of agendas (and reports), delegated decisions and committee 
minutes; 

• Publication of delegated decisions; 

• Training provision and attendance; 

• Opinion of Internal Audit. 
 
4.0 Review of the Effectiveness of the Decision Making Arrangements 
  
 Annual Review of the Constitution 
 
4.1 On an annual basis the various provisions of the constitution are reviewed.  As a 

result of this the Annual Council meeting approved amendments to committee terms 
of reference (specifically around scrutiny boards) and to Scrutiny Board Procedure 
Rules, specifically in relation to the arrangements whereby decisions can be called in, 
widening the facility for members to call in matters of concern.  In addition the Council 
Function delegation scheme for council officers was agreed.   

 
4.2 The Leader of Council has also reviewed the executive arrangements in year, 

specifically, following Executive Board agreement, further delegations have been 
made to Area Committees.   Amendments to the Executive arrangements were 
reported to full Council in accordance with our constitutional arrangements. 
 
Sub Delegation Arrangements 

 
4.3 Those officers with direct delegations from Full Council and the Leader have in place 

sub delegation schemes which document the scope of decision making authority of 
officers within directorates.  These have been reviewed on an annual basis following 
the Annual Council meeting and at other times during the year as the director (or 
relevant chief officer) feels appropriate.   

 
 Call In 
 
4.4 Key and Major decisions made by officers and decisions taken by the Executive 

Board are subject to Call-In by Scrutiny Boards and cannot be implemented until 
either the Call-In period has expired or, in the case of a decision that has been called 
in, the relevant Scrutiny Board has considered the decision, and where relevant the 
Scrutiny Board’s recommendations have been considered.  

 
4.5 The extent to which Key and Major decisions are available for Call In provides a proxy 

measure for the openness and transparency of decision making within the Council, 
particularly in respect of democratic accountability.  The higher the percentage of 
decisions available the greater the breadth of challenge which can be exercised by 
Members through the scrutiny process. 

 
4.6 Whilst Directors can identify a decision as being exempt from Call-In, this is only in 

cases where a Director considers that the decision is urgent and any delay in 
implementing the decision would seriously prejudice the Council’s or public interest.   
These reasons are included in reports and, where necessary, accompanying 
delegated decision notices.  

 
4.7 The authority has achieved its target of 95% of eligible decisions been available for 

Call-in for the year ending 31 March 2011 and more details are shown at appendix 1 
with additional commentary.    

 
 

Page 65



 
4.8 The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development has reported that the Call In facility 

was used on 10 separate occasions during 2010/11, seven of which related to 
Executive Board decisions.  Scrutiny of these 10 decisions led to six of them being 
referred back to the decision maker for reconsideration, primarily due to concerns 
raised around insufficient consultation and/or a lack of sufficient information on which 
the original decisions had been based.   

 
4.9 Following the Call In process, all six of the decisions were reaffirmed by the decision 

maker following consideration of additional supporting information and, where 
appropriate, improvements made to consultations.   

 
4.10 This perceived weakness in the control environment will be addressed during the 

forthcoming year specifically through specific cross council targets within the Council 
Business Plan and also through changes to the report writing template. 
 
Forward Plan 

 
4.11 The Forward Plan of Key Decisions1, detailing those Key decisions which are to be 

taken by the Executive Board and by Officers (under delegated powers), over a four 
month period is produced on an monthly basis.  The purpose being that pre-
notification of Key decisions is given, thus allowing representations to be received and 
pre-scrutiny of proposals to take place. 

 
4.12    Monitoring the proportion of Key decisions which are pre notified provides a proxy 

measure of the openness and transparency of the council’s decision making.  In 
particular this is because notification of decisions on the Forward Plan allows for 
representations to be made to decision makers in advance of decisions being taken.  

 
4.13 The authority has a target of no more than 11% of Key Decisions being taken by the 

Council which have not been notified on the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. For the 
year ending 31 March 2011, this target has not been achieved with some 16% of key 
decisions being taken with no prior notification on the Forward Plan.   Again more 
details are shown at appendix 1 along with additional commentary. 

 
4.14 Governance Services provides data for Corporate Performance Management 

purposes in respect of both Call in and the Forward Plan.  This information is 
considered by Corporate Leadership Team on a quarterly basis.  From quarter two 
this year, more detailed performance information, by directorate will be possible.  This 
will enable, where necessary and on an exception basis, further challenge to take 
place as part of regular appraisal and accountability meetings.  

 
Key Decisions Taken Under Special Urgency Provisions 

 
4.15    Paragraph 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules allows for ‘Special 

Urgency’ and states: “If by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken Rule 
14 (general exception) cannot be followed, then the decision can only be taken if the 
decision taker (if an individual) or the chair of the body making the decision, obtains 
the agreement of the chair of a relevant Scrutiny Board that the taking of the decision 
cannot be reasonably deferred and the decision is urgent.  If there is no chair of a 
relevant Scrutiny Board, or if the chair of the relevant Scrutiny Board is unable to act, 
then the agreement of the Lord Mayor of the Council, or in his/her absence the 
Deputy Lord Mayor will suffice”. 

 
                                                
1
 See Glossary at the end of this report. 

Page 66



4.16 Regular use of these provisions would negate a number of the decision making 
controls outlined in section 3 of this report.  However in the period under review there 
were no decisions taken under the ‘Special Urgency’ provisions.  
 
Financial Commitments  

 
4.17 A review of financial commitments over £100,000 for 2009/10 and 2010/11 was 

recently undertaken.  This threshold has been chosen as it equates to a Major 
Decision and therefore has relevance in terms of the Council’s existing controls.  The 
review identified a number of commitments which could not readily be referenced to a 
decision.    

 
4.18 As an outcome of this, further work is ongoing with the Chief Officer (Financial 

Management) to establish whether it might be proportionate to introduce an additional 
control into financial management processes to ensure that financial commitments 
over £100,000 can evidence an appropriate prior decision. 

 
Publication of agendas and committee minutes 

 
4.19 The Head of Governance Services considers monthly performance information in 

respect of the publication of committee agendas and committee minutes.  The 
performance information relating to the publication of agendas provides a measure of 
the extent to which the Council is providing advance notice of matters to be 
considered by committees (and thereby complying with Access to Information 
requirements of the Local Government Act 1972).  Whilst provisions exist for meetings 
to be called by way of special urgency, such arrangements should not be the norm 
and so the Head of Governance Services has established a target of 99% of agendas 
being issued and published within the 5 day statutory deadline. 

 
4.20 Of 314 meetings taking place in the 2010/11 Municipal Year 12 meeting agenda’s 

were published late – 96% (not published in the Democratic Services information 
system) of which 5 meetings were called at short notice – 98% overall.   

 
4.21 Although not meeting the target of 99% this represents a slight improvement in 

respect to performance in 2009/10, which was 95%, and in the opinion of the Head of 
Governance Services, does not indicate a concern in respect of the control 
environment. 

 
4.22 Whilst there is no statutory requirement in respect of the timeliness of minute 

publication, the Head of Governance Services also measure the timeliness of 
committee decisions being reported and put in the public domain. The measures for 
this are twofold, firstly publishing a record of executive decisions taken by Executive 
Board and Area Committees in the public domain within 48 hours of the meeting.  
This is done to enable the various Call In processes to commence as soon after a 
meeting takes place as possible.  All but one set of decisions (that relating to an Area 
Committee) were notified within this timescale. 

 
4.23 Secondly the timeliness of minutes being published across all committees is 

measured.  The Head of Governance Services has established a target of 100% of 
minutes being published within ten working days.  Of the 314 meetings taking place in 
the 2010/11 Municipal Year 302 sets were published within this timescale, equating to  
96%.  Of those: 

 
 3 related to Licensing Sub Committees 

3 related to Scrutiny Boards 

Page 67



3 related to Plans Panels 
2 related to Development Plans Panels 
1 related to an Area Committee  

 
4.24 Although not meeting the target of 100% this represents consistent performance when 

compared to in 2009/10, which was 96%, and in the opinion of the Head of 
Governance Services, does not indicate a concern in respect of the control 
environment.  However the Head of Governance Services is in the process of 
reinforcing the importance of prompt publication via appraisal and one-to-one 
meetings. 

 
 Publication of Delegated Decisions 
 
4.25 Governance Services publishes on the Council’s all delegated Key, Major, Significant 

Operational and Council decisions which are notified to them.  As an integral part of 
the administration of these decisions Governance Services; 

 

• Check that delegated/sub delegated authority exists for the decision taker; 

• Ensure relevant public interest test arguments are contained in reports which 
contain exempt information; 

• Advise on compliance issues regarding publication and notice requirements and 
Call In; 

• Inform members of all notified Key and Major decisions taken for the purposes of 
Call in 

• Inform members on a monthly basis of all notified significant operation decisions 
on  

 
4.26 During 2010/11 the following number of delegated decisions were notified to 

Governance Services; 
 
Key Decisions – 263 
Major Decisions – 288 
Significant Operational Decisions – 1424 
Council Decisions - 89 
 

4.27 The number of decisions being notified indicates that a large volume of decisions are 
taken in a clear and accountable way.  However anecdotally, there appears to be 
concerns as to the efficiency of some aspects of the decision making process.  In this 
respect the there may well be scope for the decision making process to be reviewed, 
particularly to consider the extent to which decision making framework is aligned with 
financial and contracts procedure rules and the existing thresholds for Key and Major 
decisions and reporting requirements for Significant Operational decisions. 

 
 Internal Audit Opinion 
 
4.28 Internal Audit undertook a follow up audit in respect of delegated decision making in 

early 2011 and issued their on their findings in May 2011.   The Internal Audit opinion 
was that; 

 
‘Good assurance has been provided for the Control Environment as Governance 
Services has substantially implemented the recommendations made in the audit of 
2008/09.  
 
The Organisational Impact has been assessed as Minor as the weakness identified 
during the review have left the council open to low risk.’  

Page 68



 
4.29 The Internal Audit report, and recommended areas for improvement, is attached to at 

Appendix 2. 
 
Training Provision and Attendance 
 

4.30 To help embed the decision making framework the Head of Governance Services has 
provided a training programme and supporting guidance. The sessions were primarily 
targeted at those officers having delegated or sub delegated authority for decision 
taking.   

 
4.31 The training session comprises 4 parts;  

• the need for and benefit of a Decision Making Framework,  

• the differentiation between Council and Executive Functions and the various decision 
making routes which apply to each type, 

• the controls which apply to decision making (largely in relation to executive decision 
making, but with some reference to Council decisions), and  

• practical application of those controls to case studies. 
 

Each session is supported by a pack of materials, all of which are available on the 
‘decision making – corporate governance’ intranet site.  Delegates are signposted to 
this site and invited to share the contents with their colleagues. 

 

4.32 However given the scale of demand 11 sessions have been delivered reaching 218 
delegates. response to the course was very good in terms of feed back received on 
the day, there is a need to measure the benefit accrued from the course.  The first 
real measurement will be in terms of the decisions which are made by officers 
complying with the decision making framework.  This should be reflected in the 
Performance Indicators, for example around key decisions being made which are not 
on the Forward Plan.  Secondly a set of Decision Making Skills Criteria has been 
prepared and forwarded to all course delegates in order that they can identify and 
feed back any gaps in their knowledge and practice.  These criteria have also been 
included on the intranet page for more general use by officers and their managers to 
identify future training needs. 

 

4.33 There remain a number of officers on the waiting list who asked for but were not able 
to attend the first round of training and a number of people have come forward 
following circulation of the Decision Making Skills Criteria.  It is also known that a 
number of recruitment processes and restructures are underway which will result in 
the appointment of people who are new to Leeds City Council or new to decision 
making responsibility, all of whom could benefit from the training.  It is therefore 
intended that a further series of sessions will be scheduled, followed by the periodic 
delivery of this training.   
 
Summary of Areas for Improvement 
 

4.34 The following areas will be progressed during the forthcoming year;  
 

• A review of the extent to which decision making framework is aligned with financial 
and contracts procedure rules;  

• Changes to the corporate report writing template to require incorporation of 
consultation planned or undertaken; equalities considerations; and other corporate 
considerations such as value for money.  

• A review of the existing thresholds for Key and Major decisions and reporting 
requirements for Significant Operational decisions; 

Page 69



• A review to establish whether it might be proportionate to introduce an additional 
control into financial management processes to ensure that financial commitments 
over £100,000 can evidence an appropriate prior decision. 

• Further training sessions specifically targeted at addressing gaps identified from 
the review of delegation and sub delegation schemes and those that have not 
attended decision making training. 

 
5.0  Implications For Council Policy And Governance 
 
5.1      The Council’s Constitution sets out the framework for decision making within the    

Council; Directors and Chief Officers have established sub delegation schemes 
through which authority to take decisions is further sub delegated to officers of 
relevant seniority and  experience.   

 
5.2 To underpin these constitutional requirements, the Head of Governance Services has 

established processes through which decisions, notified to him, are challenged, for  
compliance with Constitutional requirements and then subsequently documented on 
the Council’s record system.  

5.3 On the basis of the review of the effectiveness described in section 4 the Head of 
Governance Services is satisfied that the systems are operating soundly and there 
have been no fundamental control weaknesses during the year.  

 
6.0       Recommendations 

6.1      Members of the Committee are asked to consider the issues explored in this report 
and the assurances provided by the Head of Governance Services and note the areas 
for further improvement. 

 
Background Documents 
 

Leeds City Council Constitution  

Democratic Services Performance Reports  

Reports to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee  

 
Glossary 
 
Key Decision 
 
A Key Decision as defined in the Constitution is a decision relating to an executive function 
which is likely to: 
  

• result in the Authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per 
annum, or 

• have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising 2 or 
more wards    

  
Major Decision 
 
A Major Decision as defined in the Constitution is a decision relating to an executive function 
which is likely to: 
 

• result in the Authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £100,000 per 
annum, or 

Page 70



• have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area (including one  
ward)    

 
Forward Plan 
 
The Forward Plan is prepared on a monthly basis and contains details of the Key Decisions 
to be made for the four month period following its publication.  This document provides 
details of what key decisions are to be taken, when they are to be taken ,who will take the 
decision, what consultation has been/will be undertaken and to whom representations can 
be  made. 
 
The Forward Plan is published at least 14 days before the start of the period covered 
and once a year a notice is published in at least one newspaper circulating in the area 
setting out publication dates for the year. 
 
Significant Operational Decision 
 
those decisions which: 
 

(a) do not fall within the definition of Administrative Decisions as set out in paragraph 4.6; 
 
(b) require an application to be made for planning permission, listed building, ancient 

monument or conservation area consent; 
 
(c) comprise or include the making, approval or publication of a draft or final scheme 

which may require, either directly or in the event of objection, the approval of the 
Secretary of State or of a Minister of the Crown; 

 
(d) require the passage of local legislation or the adoption by the Council of national 

legislation; 
 
(e) propose the payment of an ex-gratia payment of a sum in local settlement of a 

complaint, in excess of £1,000 or where that payment is not agreed with the Director of 
Resources; 

 
(f) propose a response on behalf of the Council to consultation by the Secretary of State 

or a Minister of the Crown; 
 

(g) propose an alteration in the standard charges which the Council makes for any of its 
services2; 

 
(h) gives rise to the need to appoint additional staff, redeploy or change the normal place 

of existing staff, materially change the terms of appointment of existing staff or result in 
any staff being redundant; 

 
(i) require the acquisition or disposal of any land or interest in land; 

 
(j) require a virement of funding within approved virement powers of  

officers;  
 

(k) approve a care plan which specifies residential or nursing care which the council has a 
duty to provide under Section 21 or Section 29(4) National Assistance Act 1948, 
Section 117 Mental Health Act 1983, Section 17 or 20 Children Act 1989 or Section 2 
Local Government Act 2000, where the expenditure is likely to be over £100,000;  

 
(l) purchase energy under the terms of an energy supply contract which has been 

awarded following the appropriate procurement process; 

                                                
2
 This paragraph refers only to those charges made in respect of executive functions. 

Page 71



 
(m) make, pay or borrow a loan in accordance with Treasury Management Procedures;  
 
(n) approve or change an officer sub-delegation scheme; or 
 
(o) are of such significance to the locality, the Council or services which it provides that 

the officer is of the opinion that it should be treated as a Significant Operational 
Decision. 

 

 
 
 

Page 72



Appendix1 

Execbopen.dot Last update 5/02/02 

 

 
Indicator: Percentage of eligible decisions available for Call-In 
 
Target: 95%  
 

 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Annual 

2008/09 98% 98% 99% 98% 98% 

2009/10 98% 99% 99% 98% 99% 

2010/11 98% 98% 99% 97% 98% 

 

 
Comments:  This internal Democratic Services indicator is measured on a monthly basis, 
the Head of Governance Services regularly monitors this indicator and raises any issues of 
concern with the relevant Director.  
 
In all cases reports accompanying decisions (whether they be by Executive Board or by an 
officer under delegated authority), have presented reasons for decisions to be exempted 
from call in.  These are considered with the decision to exempt being a matter for the 
decision taker.   
 
In general terms decisions to exempt from call in have been due to: 
 

• Potential financial liabilities should a decision be delayed by call in 

• Safeguarding issues 

• Urgent matters relating to contract/service delivery difficulties 

• Potential loss of income 
 
No issues have been raised in year with the Monitoring Officer or the Head of Governance 
Services regarding the Call In process 
 
The target was met for 2010/11 and will continue to be monitored throughout 2011/12. 
 

 

Page 73



Appendix1 

Execbopen.dot Last update 5/02/02 

 

 
Indicator: Percentage of Key Decisions which did not appear in the Forward Plan  
 
Target: 2008/09 -   15%        Target: 2009/10 – 13%      Target: 2010/11 – 11% 

 

 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Annual 

2008/09 27% 17% 14% 11% 15.6% 

2009/10 11% 16% 11% 8% 11.5% 

2010/11 14% 21% 12% 18% 15.9% 

 
 
Comments: This indicator is a Corporate Indicator and features in the Council Business 
Plan. The data is taken from both Delegated Decisions and Committee Decisions. 
 
This indicator is measured on a monthly basis and the Head of Governance Services has 
introduced a detailed Decision Monitoring arrangement which feeds Governance data which 
is supplied to the Corporate Leadership Team.  
 
In all cases reports accompanying decisions (whether they be by Executive Board or by an 
officer under delegated authority), have presented reasons for decisions needing to be taken 
in advance of the publication of the next Forward Plan entry.  These are considered with the 
decision to exempt being a matter for the decision taker.   
 
In general terms the reasons for decisions not being on the Forward Plan have been due to: 
 
Urgency (financial and contractual)  
Oversight/lack of awareness  
Slippage from previously notified Forward Plan entry 
 
The target was not met for 2010/11 and further training has been undertaken within 
Directorates in order that the requirements in respect of Key decisions are understood and 
cascaded to decision takers. 
 
This indicator will continue to be monitored throughout 2011/12 with additional escalation 
processes being introduced via the Director of Resources 
  
 

 

Page 74



Confidential Internal Audit Report 

Office of the Chief Executive 
Key and Major Decisions Follow Up Audit 2010/11  

Issued to Alan Gay, Director of Resources 

Copies to Andy Hodson, Head of Governance Services 
Tim Pouncey, Chief Officer (Audit & Risk) 

Date May 2011

Report Status Final

Principal Audit 
Manager

Katherine Johnson 

Control Environment GOOD ASSURANCE  Internal Audit 
Opinion

(see reverse for 
details)

Organisational Impact MINOR

Page 1 of 9 

appendix 2

Page 75



Definitions of Audit Assurance 

Control Environment Assurance 

Level Definitions

1 SUBSTANTIAL There are minimal control weaknesses that present very 
low risk to the control environment. 

2 GOOD There are minor control weaknesses that present low risk 
to the control environment. 

3 ACCEPTABLE There are some control weaknesses that present a 
medium risk to the control environment. 

4 LIMITED
ASSURANCE

There are significant control weaknesses that present a 
high risk to the control environment 

5 NO ASSURANCE There are fundamental control weaknesses that present 
an unacceptable level of risk to the control environment. 

Organisational Impact 

Level Definitions

1 MAJOR The weaknesses identified during the review have left the 
council open to significant risk. If the risk materialises it 
would have a major impact upon the organisation as a 
whole.

2 MODERATE The weaknesses identified during the review have left the 
council open to medium risk. If the risk materialises it 
would have a moderate impact upon the organisation as 
a whole. 

3 MINOR The weaknesses identified during the review have left the 
council open to low risk. This could have a minor impact 
on the organisation as a whole. 

Page 2 of 9 

Page 76



INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 

Freedom of Information Rider 

STATUS OF THIS REPORT 

Whilst this report is directed primarily to the recipients named in the report, Audit 
Reports are subject to the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act and, as 
such, may be required to be made publicly available upon request. 

However, there are several Freedom of Information Act exemptions to which parts, 
or all, of this report may be subject.  Primarily, but not exclusively these are : 

personal information whose release would contravene the data protection legislation 

information held for the purpose of criminal investigations or proceedings 

information whose disclosure would be likely to prejudice the enforcement of the law 

information whose release is certified by the Monitoring Officer as likely to prejudice 
the conduct of public affairs 

information which is subject to a legal duty of confidentiality 

information whose disclosure would prejudice the commercial interests of the 
Council or some other person. 

Before responding to any request to make this report publicly available, or otherwise 
making it publicly available, you should consult the Senior Audit Manager named in 
the report. 

Similarly, this Audit Report, or extracts from it, should not be included in, or 
appended to, any City Council Committee Report, nor should it be quoted as a 
background paper to any City Council Committee Report without firstly consulting the 
Senior Audit Manager. 

Page 3 of 9 

Page 77



Contents

1 Introduction  

2 Risks and Audit Objectives 

3 Scope and Work Completed 

4 Key Findings and Recommendations 

5 Internal Audit Opinion 

Appendix A:  Follow up Action Plan 

Page 4 of 9 

Page 78



1. Introduction 

1.1 Leeds City Council’s Constitution provides the framework within which the 
Council conducts its business and makes decisions. It describes who is 
responsible for the various functions of the Authority and how decisions are 
taken.

1.2 Governance Services provide guidance and support to directorates in relation 
to decision making. They also perform a role in monitoring decisions to ensure 
that decisions are compliant with the requirements detailed within the 
Constitution.

1.3 Internal Audit completed a review of Key and Major decisions taken by 
officers under delegated or sub-delegated authority in 2008/09. The audit also 
included a review of the central monitoring processes and the governance 
arrangements in place to ensure that decision makers are aware of current 
constitutional requirements and that there is compliance with the constitution 
in relation to decision making. Internal Audit made a number of key 
recommendations at the time and these were reported to the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

2. Risks and Audit Objectives 

2.1 Key Risks 

2.1.1 Decision making is not explicitly referenced within the Corporate Risk 
Register. However, the risk is identified in the service level risk register and 
compliance with the Constitution is necessary to avoid the following key risks: 

 Judicial review proceedings 

 Findings of maladministration by the local government ombudsman 

 Reputation damage 

 Absence of democratic oversight of decision making 

 Ineffective decision making 

2.2 Audit Objectives 

2.2.1 The objective of the audit is to provide assurance that the recommendations 
made in the Key and Major decisions taken by officers under delegated or 
sub-delegated authority audit report of 2008/09 have been implemented in 
relation to the Central Governance Function.

2.2.2 The audit report of 2008/09 made recommendations in the following areas: 

 Communication and training of key staff; 

 Monitoring of compliance; 

 Raising of concerns in relation to non-compliance with the Constitution; 
and

 Monitoring the effectiveness of the controls within the Constitution. 

Page 5 of 9 

Page 79



3 Scope and Work Completed 

3.1  This follow up audit has been completed by: 

 discussions with key members of staff; and 

 reviewing documentation to support discussions and observations. 

3.2 It is anticipated that Internal Audit will undertake compliance audits of Key and 
Major decisions taken by officers under delegated or sub-delegated authority 
during 2011/12. This should identify whether the revised controls put in place 
since the 2008/09 audit have been effective. 

4 Key Findings 

4.1 Internal Audit has confirmed that Governance Services has substantially 
implemented the recommendations made in the audit of 2008/09. Appendix A 
provides details of the progress made for each of the recommendations. The 
key points are summarised below:

Communication and Training

4.2 The audit report of 2008/09 highlighted that awareness of the requirements of 
the Constitution was inconsistent across the Authority which led to a number 
of non-compliances. This issue was addressed by Governance Services by; 

 Developing a brief guide to decision making which was made available to 
all staff via the intranet; and 

 Developing and delivering training sessions targeted at key staff.

4.3 A review of the documentation to support these actions highlighted that whilst 
a record of training attendance is retained by Governance Services, which 
details those individuals that have been trained, no assessment has been 
made of those individuals that still require training.

4.4 The audit report of 2008/09 made the recommendation that a designated 
officer should be appropriately trained to coordinate the process. Initially the 
Chief Officers Resources and Strategy had been identified as the designated 
officers to co-ordinate the nomination process within each directorate. The 
Head of Governance Services advised that this has not been successful. For 
this to be effective, an officer should be nominated by the directorate. 

4.5 Whilst it is acknowledged that Governance Services is not responsible for 
ensuring the attendance of key staff at training sessions, the Head of 
Governance Services advised that there is an opportunity to link training 
attendance against the sub delegation schemes which operate in each 
directorate. By undertaking this gap analysis Governance Services will be 
able to feed back to directors where training needs may still exist which can 
be addressed as part of the appraisal process. 

Page 6 of 9 

Page 80



4.6 This information could be taken into account by the Head of Governance 
Services in reaching an assurance opinion on the council’s decision making 
arrangements.

Key Recommendation 1 

Existing controls would be enhanced by: 

 Undertaking a gap analysis in respect of officers that have sub 
delegated authority to take decisions and whether or not those 
officers have been trained. 

 Providing feedback to directors on the extent to which relevant 
officers have received appropriate training. 

 Guidance/support and training should be provided to the 
nominated officers in the directorates.

The implementation of these recommendations should increase 
compliance with the Constitution by ensuring that training is 
appropriately targeted and effective. 

Monitoring of Compliance and Escalation

4.7 The 2008/09 audit found that some good procedures for challenging notified 
decisions existed within Governance Services but there was no central 
monitoring undertaken to ensure that all decisions were correctly defined 
within directorates and subsequently taken in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. Following the audit, Governance Services has implemented 
monitoring and performance management processes, the results of which 
have been reported to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
(CGAC).

4.8 Governance Services has introduced quality checks to provide assurance on 
the completeness of the decision reports that are received from Directorates. 
Internal Audit was advised by the Assistant Corporate Governance Officer 
that the reports are returned by email to the sender with a covering note when 
errors are identified.

4.9 In the report to CGAC entitled Monitoring of Key and Major Decisions, dated 
February 2010, the Head of Governance Services provided an updated 
position on the progress made against the Internal Audit recommendations 
and the exercises being undertaken for monitoring purposes.  

4.10 The Head of Governance Services advised that: 

 From May 2009 escalation processes have been introduced (on a monthly 
basis) to Directors: 

Page 7 of 9 

Page 81



 Serious or consistent non-compliance will be referred to the Monitoring 
Officer;

 Performance on decision making will be reported as part of corporate 
performance management arrangements. 

4.11 The Governance Services review identified some issues which were reported 
to CGAC, in particular a key issue was that a review be undertaken in respect 
of existing controls and where opportunities might exist for those controls to 
be better aligned. A key exercise undertaken by Governance Services was a 
review of all financial commitments over £100,000 in 2008/09 to provide 
assurance that decisions have been appropriately notified. However, this work 
has not been completed for 2009/10. The absence of such exercises or a lack 
of control in this area increases the risk that financial commitments in excess 
of £100k will be made without going through the appropriate process and this 
will not be detected. 

4.12 This was discussed with the Head of Governance Services who suggested 
that it may be proportionate to introduce a simple additional control into 
financial management processes. The Head of Governance Services also 
suggested that his team could monitor the extent to which these 
arrangements are followed as well as the relevance of the supporting decision 
to the expenditure being made. 

Key Recommendation 2 

The Head of Governance Services should liaise with the Chief Officer 
(Financial Management) to assess the practicalities of establishing a 
process, for all financial commitments equating to a Key or Major 
decision, to gain assurance that those commitments have been subject 
to the appropriate decision making process 

The implementation of this recommendation should ensure that non 
compliances are identified and addressed, leading to improvements in 
the transparency and effectiveness of the decision making process. 

Driving Improvement

4.13 The 2008/09 audit report highlighted areas where existing processes could be 
enhanced and areas where clearer guidance from Governance Services 
would be useful to decision makers and other stakeholders. In response to 
these recommendations, Governance Services has drafted report writing 
guidance for those responsible for writing reports which underpin delegated 
decisions and reports to Council committees.  At the time of the audit, the 
Head of Governance Services advised that whilst there was no 
communication plan in place, this was being developed to ensure all relevant 
staff were aware of changes and key messages. 

Page 8 of 9 

Page 82



5 Internal Audit Opinion

INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

Good assurance has been provided for the Control Environment as
Governance Services has substantially implemented the recommendations 
made in the audit of 2008/09. The control environment could be further 
improved by: 

 Improving monitoring controls by embedding the proactive 
exercises as standard practice which are undertaken on a regular 
basis; and

 Ensuring that the training is delivered to key individuals and 
pitched at the right level. 

The Organisational Impact has been assessed as Minor as the 
weaknesses identified during the review have left the council open to low 
risk.

It is anticipated that Internal Audit will undertake compliance audits of Key 
and Major decisions taken by officers under delegated or sub-delegated 
authority during 2011/12. This should identify whether the revised controls 
put in place since the 2008/09 audit have been effective.

Appendix A:  Follow up Action Plan 

Page 9 of 9 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



K

R
e
f

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
  

(f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 r

e
p

o
rt

) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e
n

 
(a

s
s

e
s
s

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 F

o
ll
o

w
 U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
8

 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 /

 K
e
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
jo

r
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
/

 F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/

1
1

C
o

re
 P

ri
n
c
ip

le
: 
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 T
ra

in
in

g
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 i
ts

e
lf
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

. 

1
.1

C
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b

-d
e

le
g

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 e

x
te

n
t 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
d

 a
n

d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 
c
o

m
p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 
lis

t 
o
f 
a

ll 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

 t
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

T
h
e
 S

e
n
io

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
s
u

b
 d

e
le

g
a

ti
o
n

 s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 
fo

r 
e

a
c
h

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
re

q
u

ir
e

s
 o

n
e

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

s
e

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
tr

a
n
e
t.
  
A

 t
ra

c
k
e
r 

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
is

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

in
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
tw

o
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
F

o
r 

b
o
th

, 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b
-

d
e

le
g
a

ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
d

 b
e
e

n
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e

c
o
rd

e
d

 a
n
d

 
fo

llo
w

 u
p

 a
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

w
h

e
re

 a
p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
. 

N
o

 a
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

1
.2

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
fo

rm
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e

r 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 
m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n
d

 r
e

p
o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e

rs
to

o
d

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 a

re
 

c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h
. 
F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
s
e

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 

w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
fu

l 
in

 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d

ily
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

d
u

ri
n
g
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
 I
n
it
ia

lly
 i
t 
w

a
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

C
O

R
S

) 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
ra

in
e

d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
 t
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
w

a
s
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
a
lw

a
y
s
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l.
  

T
h

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

a
s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h
o

 
h

a
v
e

 d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 k
e

y
 /
 m

a
jo

r 
d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
 d

e
le

g
a

ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 
  

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 

b
y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

fu
tu

re
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
w

h
ils

t 
a
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

re
ta

in
e
d
 b

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 d

e
ta

ils
 t
h

o
s
e

 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
ra

in
e

d
, 
n

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 

A
 g

a
p

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e

c
t 
o

f 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 s

u
b
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

o
r 

n
o

t 
th

o
s
e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

tr
a

in
e

d
.

A
g
re

e
d
.

Page 85



K

R
e
f

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
  

(f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 r

e
p

o
rt

) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e
n

 
(a

s
s

e
s
s

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 F

o
ll
o

w
 U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
8

 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 /

 K
e
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
jo

r
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
/

 F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/

1
1

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 
s
ti
ll 

re
q
u
ir
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

 b
ri
e

f 
g

u
id

e
 t
o

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 v

ia
 

th
e
 i
n
tr

a
n
e
t.
 

C
o
re

 P
ri
n
c
ip

le
: 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

lly
 a

s
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

2
.1

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

d
 b

y
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

 
d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
to

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

T
h
is

 o
ff
ic

e
r 

w
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t,
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 a

re
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

d
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 t
o
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

h
e
re

 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

p
p
lie

d
. 
T

h
is

 o
ff
ic

e
r 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
b

le
 t
o

 d
ri
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

it
h

in
 h

is
/h

e
r 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
n
d
 g

iv
e
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
th

e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
. 

In
it
ia

lly
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
d
 

b
e

e
n

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t
o

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 
th

e
 n

o
m

in
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

it
h

in
 e

a
c
h

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
T

h
e

 H
e

a
d

 
o
f 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l.
 F

o
r 

th
is

 t
o

 b
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

, 
a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

/s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
to

 d
ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

n
 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

A
g
re

e
d
.

2
.2

T
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
ra

w
 a

n
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

p
in

io
n

 a
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 b
a
s
e
d

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 u
n
d
e
rp

in
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.
  

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 a

u
d

it
, 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o

rt
e
d

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

C
G

A
C

) 
a

n
d

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
a
m

 (
C

L
T

).
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
c
la

s
s
if
y
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

s
 

e
x
e

m
p

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 c

a
ll-

in
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
; 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

; 

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 

to
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

a
d

e
q
u

a
c
y
 o

f 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h
 

c
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

A
g
re

e
d
.

G
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 l
im

it
e
d
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

to
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 i
t 
is

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

, 
a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

w
h

ic
h

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 

H
e

a
d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
a

re
 

Page 86



K

R
e
f

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
  

(f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 r

e
p

o
rt

) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e
n

 
(a

s
s

e
s
s

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 F

o
ll
o

w
 U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
8

 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 /

 K
e
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
jo

r
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
/

 F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/

1
1

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
e
r 

h
a
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

T
h

e
 m

o
n

it
o
ri
n
g

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o

 d
ra

w
 

a
n

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
o

p
in

io
n

 a
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

C
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
, 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 f
ro

m
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 o

f 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n
d

 c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
a
re

n
t 
ri
s
k
s
. 

2
.3

P
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 

th
a
t:

 
A

ll 
d
e
ta

ils
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 c
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 f
a

c
tu

a
lly

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 
a

n
d
 

c
o

n
ta

in
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 

s
u

b
m

it
ti
n

g
 t
h
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 
m

a
k
e
r;

 
C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 

c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
; 

 
A

ll 
re

la
te

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 p

a
p

e
rs

 w
it
h

in
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

 
re

p
o
rt

s
; 

 
L

e
g

a
l 
a
d

v
ic

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

o
u
g

h
t 
to

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 
re

ta
in

e
d
;

T
h

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 e

m
p
h

a
s
is

 t
h

a
t 
re

p
o

rt
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
c
o
n
ta

in
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 a

u
d

it
, 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d

 
fr

o
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
. 
F

o
r 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 
tw

o
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
, 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
h
a

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
e

le
g

a
te

d
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 N
o

ti
c
e

 (
D

D
N

) 
a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

b
y
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
a
t:
 

 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 h
a
s
 a

 t
it
le

, 
 

 
a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
y
p

e
 i
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
, 
 

 
a
ll 

fi
e
ld

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
, 

 
a
n
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d

, 
a
n
d
; 

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

T
h
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
a
t 
th

e
 D

D
N

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
ri
g

in
a
to

r 
if
 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
/o

r:
  

N
o

 a
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

Page 87



K

R
e
f

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
  

(f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 r

e
p

o
rt

) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e
n

 
(a

s
s

e
s
s

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 F

o
ll
o

w
 U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
8

 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 /

 K
e
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
jo

r
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
/

 F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/

1
1

 
A

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 

b
a
s
e
d
.

 
W

h
e
re

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 g

a
p

s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
) 

a
n

d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
. 

 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
le

g
a
l 

a
d

v
ic

e
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

u
g
h

t 
a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

; 
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l,
 g

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
; 

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 e

x
e
m

p
t 
o
r 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l.
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 f
o
r 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 
o

f 
2

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
 w

h
e

re
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 

a
s
 e

x
e
m

p
t 
o
r 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
th

a
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
h
e
c
k
s
 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 b

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
. 
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 w

a
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
th

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 a

re
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 b

y
 e

m
a

il 
to

 t
h

e
 s

e
n

d
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g

 n
o

te
 w

h
e

n
 e

rr
o

rs
 a

re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

T
h

e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
m

a
in

ta
in

s
 a

 
s
p

re
a

d
s
h
e

e
t 
d

e
ta

ili
n

g
 a

ll 
d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 s
p

re
a

d
s
h
e

e
t 
w

a
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

a
n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 s

h
o
w

e
d

 2
3
8
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

4
8
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 q

u
e
ri
e
d
. 
 T

h
is

 l
is

ts
 t
h
e
 t
y
p
e

 o
f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

q
u

e
ri
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
w

s
 w

h
ic

h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
h
e

y
 b

e
lo

n
g

 t
o

. 
T

h
is

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
ra

in
in

g
 g

a
p
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 d

e
ta

il 
w

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

2
.4

R
e

p
o

rt
s
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 d

e
ta

il 
th

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 t
h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
ll 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 u

p
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 b

a
s
e
d
. 

T
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

th
e

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ri
ti
n

g
. 
 T

h
e

 
re

v
is

e
d

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 e

x
p
lic

it
ly

 

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
w

ri
ti
n

g
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
r 

re
p

o
rt

 
te

m
p
la

te
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 
d

e
ta

il 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

th
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 

b
e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 a

n
d
 i
t 
is

 
fe

lt
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 a
re

 

Page 88



K

R
e
f

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
  

(f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 r

e
p

o
rt

) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e
n

 
(a

s
s

e
s
s

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 F

o
ll
o

w
 U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 5
 o

f 
8

 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 /

 K
e
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
jo

r
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
/

 F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/

1
1

s
ta

te
s
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 o

f 
c
ru

c
ia

l 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

rs
 

a
re

 g
iv

e
n
 a

ll 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 m

a
y
 

m
a

k
e

 a
n

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 j
u

d
g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

a
s
o
n
e

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 d
e
ta

il 
th

e
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
. 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
. 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
to

 h
e
lp

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 a
n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
ju

d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
. 

2
.5

T
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
, 
th

e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 c

e
n
tr

a
lly

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

 
U

n
d
e

rt
a
k
in

g
 p

e
ri
o
d

ic
 d

a
ta

-m
a

tc
h

in
g

 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p
p

ro
v
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
.e

 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

m
a

tc
h

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e

 o
f 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
. 

 
C

o
lla

ti
n
g

 d
a
ta

 o
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 a

n
d
 M

a
jo

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 p
e
r 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 /
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 
a

p
p

e
a

rs
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

. 

 
C

e
n
tr

a
lly

 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

g
e
n
d
a

 i
te

m
s
 f
o
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
P

la
n

T
h

e
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

G
A

C
, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
 

w
a
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 i
n

 r
e
s
p
e

c
t 
o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 m

ig
h

t 
e
x
is

t 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 b

e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
lig

n
e
d
. 
A

 k
e
y
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

b
y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a
n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

a
s
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 

T
h

e
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 
s
u

c
h

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
s
 o

r 
a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
in

 t
h

is
 

a
re

a
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
£

1
0

0
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 w

it
h
o

u
t 
g
o

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b

e
 d

e
te

c
te

d
. 

D
a

ta
 i
s
 c

o
lla

te
d

 o
n

 k
e

y
 a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
. 
T

h
e

 H
e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 e

a
c
h

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a

b
le

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
e

m
a

ils
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
n

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o

r 
d

e
la

y
e

d
 o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 n
o

w
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
. 
 R

e
g
u

la
r 

re
m

in
d
e
rs

 
a
re

 s
e
n
t 
v
ia

 e
m

a
il 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

 t
o
 s

ta
ff
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

re
s
p

o
n
d

e
d

. 
 C

o
p

ie
s
 a

re
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
T

e
a
m

.

T
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t)
 t
o

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e

 
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

lit
ie

s
 o

f 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
fo

r 
a
ll 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
 e

q
u
a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a

 
K

e
y
 o

r 
M

a
jo

r 
d
e
c
is

io
n
, 
to

 g
a
in

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

A
g
re

e
d

. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 l
o
o
k
 

to
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 a
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
. 

It
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 t
o

 
in

tr
o

d
u
c
e

 a
 s

im
p

le
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o
n

tr
o

l 
in

to
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

s
. 
S

u
c
h

 a
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
m

ig
h
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
, 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 

s
p
e
n
d
, 
e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 t
o
 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
d

e
le

g
a

te
d

 
o
ff
ic

e
r 

o
r 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 t
h

e
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 t
o
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
.

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 t
h
e
n
 

Page 89



K

R
e
f

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
  

(f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 r

e
p

o
rt

) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e
n

 
(a

s
s

e
s
s

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 F

o
ll
o

w
 U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 6
 o

f 
8

 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 /

 K
e
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
jo

r
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
/

 F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/

1
1

T
h
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
d

v
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 

lia
is

o
n

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

o
n

 a
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 b
y
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 i
te

m
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t
o

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 i
te

m
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 n

o
ti
fi
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

F
o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
. 
 I
f 
a
n
 i
te

m
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
te

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

e
 i
te

m
 i
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 

in
 t
h

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

.

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
s
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 
fo

llo
w

e
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

th
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 
to

 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 
b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
. 

C
o

re
 P

ri
n
c
ip

le
: 
R

a
is

in
g

 o
f 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 t
a

k
e
n

 w
h
e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

3
.1

T
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

e
m

p
o
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 e

s
c
a

la
ti
o
n

 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

a
s
e

 o
f 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
 o

r 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 
 O

b
v
io

u
s
ly

, 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
re

s
p
o
n

s
e
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
d
e
liv

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
s
e
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 f
a
il,

 m
o
re

 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

m
u

s
t 
b

e
 t
a
k
e
n

. 

T
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t:

 

 
F

ro
m

 M
a

y
 2

0
0

9
 e

s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
in

tr
o

d
u
c
e
d

 (
o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
a

s
is

) 
to

 D
ir
e
c
to

rs
: 

 
S

e
ri
o

u
s
 o

r 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
n

o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r.

  
 

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
s
c
h
e

m
e
. 

N
o

 a
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

C
o
re

 P
ri
n
c
ip

le
: 
C

ri
ti
c
a
lly

 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 d
ic

ta
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
th

o
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

. 
F

e
e
d
in

g
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 i
te

ra
ti
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

4
.1

T
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 d

ic
ta

te
d

 b
y
 

th
e

 C
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

g
u

la
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

T
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e

 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

re
p

o
rt

 o
f 
2

0
0
8

/0
9

 t
o

 C
G

A
C

 a
n

d
 c

o
lla

te
s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 
 

N
o

 a
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

Page 90



K

R
e
f

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
  

(f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 r

e
p

o
rt

) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e
n

 
(a

s
s

e
s
s

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 F

o
ll
o

w
 U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 7
 o

f 
8

 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 /

 K
e
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
jo

r
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
/

 F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/

1
1

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 i
te

ra
ti
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 m

o
v
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 

4
.2

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 t
e
m

p
la

te
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 a

s
 a

n
 

a
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

. 
A

re
a

s
 w

h
e
re

 
c
le

a
re

r 
a

d
v
ic

e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e

fu
l 
in

c
lu

d
e

: 
 

 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
r 

in
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
p
o
p
 u

p
 b

o
x
e
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

r 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 
w

h
e
n
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

 
E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h
e

 a
u

th
o

r 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

o
s
e

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
to

 p
la

c
e

 r
e

lia
n

c
e

 o
n

 
p
re

v
io

u
s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
b
a

te
, 
a
v
o
id

 
d
u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
ff
o
rt

 a
n
d
 h

ig
h

lig
h
t 
a
n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
f 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
e

a
rl
ie

r 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
. 

 
A

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 c
le

a
rl
y
 

d
e

ta
ils

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
n

y
 e

x
p

e
n
d

it
u

re
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
s
 

d
is

c
re

ti
o
n

a
ry

 o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 u

s
e

fu
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
e
r 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
lim

a
te

 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
. 

E
x
p
lic

it
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 a

n
y
 f
u
tu

re
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
th

a
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 

T
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 w
a

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 o
n

 t
h

e
 9

th
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
e

m
p

la
te

 w
a
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 C

G
A

C
 i
n

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
. 
  

T
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
re

g
u

la
r 

re
p
o
rt

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 a

u
th

o
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 h

a
lf
 h

o
u
r 

b
ri

e
fi
n
g
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 M
a

y
 t
o

 b
e

 b
ri

e
fe

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

p
o

rt
 f
o

rm
a

t 
a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e
. 

A
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
, 
th

e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 n

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

, 
th

is
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
. 

N
o

 a
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

Page 91



K

R
e
f

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
  

(f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 r

e
p

o
rt

) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e
n

 
(a

s
s

e
s
s

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 F

o
ll
o

w
 U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 8
 o

f 
8

 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 /

 K
e
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
jo

r
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
/

 F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

0
/

1
1

d
e

c
is

io
n

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 
th

e
 d

e
le

g
a

te
d

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 m

a
y
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o

 
o

b
ta

in
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
to

 a
w

a
rd

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 o
n

ly
 a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
in

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
y
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

Page 92



 
Report of the City Solicitor 
 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Date: 18th July 2011 
 
Subject: Localism Bill – Outcome of initial consultation 
 

        
 
 
Executive Summary 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the proposals in the Localism Bill 

about ethical governance issues, and to outline the results of the first round of 

consultation with various stakeholders on the future of the ethical framework in Leeds. 

2. No final decisions can be made at this stage, as the provisions of the Localism Bill are 

subject to change until the Bill receives Royal Assent (which is expected to be in 

November or December 2011).  These results are therefore only being presented for 

information in advance of further dialogue with each Political Group.  

3. Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note; 

•••• and comment upon the outcome of the initial consultation exercise; 

•••• the timetable for further consultation contained in Appendix 2. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Andy Hodson 
 
Tel: 0113 22 43208 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 93



1.0 Purpose of this Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the proposals in the Localism Bill 
about ethical governance issues, and to outline the results of the first round of 
consultation with various stakeholders on the future of the ethical framework in Leeds.   

 
1.2 No final decisions can be made at this stage, as the provisions of the Localism Bill are 

subject to change until the Bill receives Royal Assent (which is expected to be in 
November or December 2011).  These results are therefore only being presented for 
information in advance of further dialogue with each Political Group.  

 
2.0 Background Information 

2.1 The Localism Bill proposes to abolish the ‘Standards Board regime’ in its entirety.  
The Government has made clear in the Bill that under the new arrangements Councils 
will be free to adopt their own voluntary Code of Conduct and set up a standards 
committee to consider complaints under this code.  Whilst unlikely, amendments 
considered during the passage of the Bill, and currently under consideration in the 
House of Lords, may also result in Local Authorities being compelled to adopt a code, 
possible one drafted nationally. 

 
2.2 In the event of the Bill remaining unchanged, i.e. with each local authority having 

discretion whether to adopt a local code of conduct, consultation took place prior to 
the local elections to establish whether there was any appetite to adopt a voluntary 
code of conduct in Leeds.  The consultation focussed upon the views of  the Leaders 
of each political group, the Group Whips, Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee, and the Standards Committee.  Each consultee  was asked for their 
opinion on the five questions listed in Appendix 1.  These same questions were also 
asked of the other West Yorkshire authorities in order to establish whether there was 
any possibility of introducing regional arrangements.  The results of this consultation 
are summarised in this report, along with a series of options to be explored. 

 
2.3 In January 2011, Communities and Local Government published a series of Impact 

Assessments on different aspects of the Localism Bill including on the subject of “The 
abolition of the Standards Board regime, clarification of the law on predetermination 
and the requirement to register and declare interests”.  

 
3.0 Main Issues 

Consultation response within Leeds City Council 

3.1 The general consensus at both the Standards Committee and Group Whips meetings 
was that it was too early to determine exactly what arrangements the Council might 
adopt as the Bill had not yet received Royal Assent.  However there was broad 
acceptance of a need to continue to explore the potential implications of the Bill for 
Leeds, and particularly that this process should be Member led.   

3.2 This report provides feedback to previous consultees on the views expressed during 
the initial consultation phase and proposes a method and timetable for further 
dialogue on the possible arrangements which Leeds City Council might adopt. 

 

 

Page 94



Option 1 – To withdraw the existing code of conduct without replacing it. 

3.3 Whilst none of the respondents to the consultation completely favoured this option a 
number of individual members (individual Whips and Standards Committee members) 
did favour this approach.   

3.4 Despite allowing for this possibility in the Localism Bill, the impact assessment 
published by the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has 
assumed authorities will retain at least some aspect of the local standards framework.  
This being because authorities will need to demonstrate and assure themselves that 
the new duty proposed by the Localism Bill to “promote and maintain high standards 
of conduct by members and co-opted members of the authority” is being complied 
with. 

3.5 DCLG has also identified that there may be a risk of standards of conduct amongst 
councillors worsening in those local authorities that decide not to adopt a code of 
conduct for their Councillors.  DCLG suggest that this may occur due to Councillors 
knowing that their conduct will not be investigated by the authority and therefore 
acting without fear of sanction.  

Possible mitigation of these risks 

Existing statutory framework 

3.6 It is argued that the above risks are mitigated, at least in part, by the existing statutory 
framework.  In the Impact Assessment the Government outlines that the most 
common breaches of the Code since May 2008 have related to failure to treat others 
with respect (30%),  followed by breaches related to the register of interests and using 
the position of Councillor for personal gain (28%), and acting in a manner which could 
bring their office or authority into disrepute (20%).  The Government believes that the 
risks of this behaviour continuing unchecked is mitigated in part where the cases are 
serious enough to involve slander or libel, by the laws of defamation enforced by the 
civil courts.  Those related to misuse of position and interests will be mitigated by the 
new regulations and the creation of a criminal offence. 

3.7 The Government believes that existing legal frameworks already provide remedies for 
the most serious types of misconduct.  In summary, the existing legal framework 
covers the following issues: 

• The fiduciary duty of Councillors – a Councillor is treated as a trustee of the 
Council’s assets, with a fiduciary duty to apply those assets in the public interest, 
and therefore when a Councillor abuses that trust they can be held personally 
liable for the resulting loss. 

• Libel and slander – an individual could claim that they have been libelled or 
defamed by a Councillor, but the Council itself cannot be libelled. 

• Misfeasance in public office – a Councillor can be accused of having misused or 
abused their power either through ‘targeted malice’ or ‘untargeted malice’.  
Targeted malice will occur when a Councillor intentionally abuses their position 
with the motive of inflicting damage on the claimant.  Untargeted malice would 
occur when a Councillor acts knowing that they have no power to undertake the 
act complained of. 

• Equalities and Discrimination law – this would prevent Councillors from treating 
anyone less favourably than others on grounds that include sex, race, religion, 
sexual orientation, age and disability.   

Page 95



• Criminal offences – a Councillor who is sentenced to a term of imprisonment of 
not less than 3 months is disqualified from office by virtue of section 80 of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  The Government has also stated that section 80 
may be revised in future to cover other aspects of misconduct.  The Fraud Act 
2006 would ensure that a Councillor could not use their position to support or 
influence a planning application that they have a financial interest in or otherwise 
use their position for self financial gain.  The Bribery Act 2010 prevents the 
offering, promising or giving of an advantage, or requesting, agreeing to receive or 
accepting an advantage in a public office.  Both offences under the Fraud Act or 
the Bribery Act could result in a penalty of 10 years imprisonment or an unlimited 
fine, or both.  The Malicious Communications Act 1998 covers the sending of 
letters or other communications (including electronic communications) which are 
grossly offensive or threatening and which are sent for the purpose of causing 
distress or anxiety.  Such an offence could result in imprisonment for no longer 
than 6 months or a fine of up to £5,000, or both.  

• Electoral offences – under the various acts governing the conduct of elections, 
Councillors are prevented from exerting (or intending to exert) undue influence on 
voters, using bribery, treating, personation, and providing false information in 
nomination papers or in relation to the registration of electors.  Under the Electoral 
Administration Act 2006 Councillors are also prevented from supplying false 
information to the electoral registration officer and making fraudulent applications 
for a postal vote.  The majority of electoral offences carry a maximum penalty of 1 
or 2 years imprisonment or an unlimited fine. 

• Maladministration – the Local Government Ombudsman has responsibility for 
investigating maladministration causing injustice.  This includes things that have 
gone wrong in the way a service has been given or the way a decision has been 
made, and individual or collective actions or failings of Councillors may amount to 
maladministration.  

• Bias and predetermination – the Localism Bill proposes to clarify the rules 
surrounding bias and predetermination.  These rules provide that a Councillor 
cannot take part in the decision making process where they have a closed mind on 
the matter.  This would make the decision itself unsafe, but would have no 
implications for the individual Councillor. 

3.8 There are also legal remedies available to anybody who is subject to intimidation or 
harassment, whether or not they are an employee.  The Protection from Harassment 
Act 1997 makes it an offence for a person to pursue a course of conduct which 
“amounts to harassment” or “which he knows or ought to know amounts to 
harassment”.  This Act gives people who are subject to harassment a right to go to 
the civil courts to obtain an injunction and damages.  A council, as an employer, could 
consider undertaking proceedings to support an employee under the Act, if it felt that 
it was an extreme case. 

New requirements relating to the registration and declaration of interests 

3.9 The Government intends to create a new criminal offence of a Councillor deliberately 
failing to comply with the Regulations regarding the registration and declaration of 
interests.  Complaints will be made either to the Monitoring Officer of the relevant 
authority or directly to the police.  However, the Government has assumed that the 
complaints which are made directly to the police would initially pass back to the 
Monitoring Officer to investigate and potentially resolve without having to launch a 
formal investigation.   

Page 96



3.10 The Monitoring Officer will therefore be treated as the first port of call for all 
complaints relating to the failure of Councillors to register or declare personal 
interests.  The Government has estimated that nationally there would be 750 
complaints of this nature per year. 

3.11 It has also been assumed that around 50% of such complaints will be dismissed by 
the Monitoring Officer without further action.  It is further assumed that around 30% 
will be resolved locally without police involvement, for example, the requirement could 
be satisfied if the Councillor agrees that in light of the complaint they do have an 
interest and agrees to register it immediately.  Indeed the Government is relying on 
local authorities to resolve as many complaints as possible in order to minimise the 
impact on the criminal justice system.  The Government anticipates that the remaining 
20% will be passed on to the police (nationally between 100 and 300 complaints per 
year). 

3.12 Such complaints will have to be received regardless of whether the Council chooses 
to adopt a code of conduct or not. 

Other remedies 

3.13 The Government believes that the risks arising from breaches related to bullying 
others or disclosing confidential information could be mitigated by local authorities 
putting procedures in place to minimise these risks, such as having a protocol for 
Member / officer relations and through training.  Similarly, possible breaches involving 
the misuse of Council resources could be dealt with by the temporary withdrawal of 
those resources or removing a Councillor as a member of a particular committee.   

3.14 Finally, Councillors are ultimately accountable to their electorate through local 
elections every four years.  However, the Public Bill Committee felt that elections are 
not an effective remedy for the public if their local authority decide not to adopt a 
code.  In particular, committee members felt that the ballot box was no guaranteed 
remedy for the public against misconduct if there was strong support for a particular 
party within an electoral area. 

Further considerations in relation to this option 

3.15 Whilst not adopting a code of conduct may be perceived as not providing sufficiently 
robust arrangements for codifying the expected conduct of councillors, the legal 
framework does provide a mechanism within which concerns can be addressed.  

3.16 In addition any complaints about the actions or inactions of a councillor could still be 
capable of being received within the Council’s Corporate complaints processes and 
referred to the relevant group for consideration and a response. Additionally, should 
an officer wish to complain about the way a Member has treated them they could use 
the grievance procedure provided through Human Resources. 

Option 2 – To revise the Code of Conduct or to replace the Code of Conduct 
with a new one 

3.17 Both the Leaders of the political groups and the Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee expressed the view that some form of code was needed in order to set out 
the standards expected of Councillors.  There were varying opinions as to whether the 
Council should choose to adopt something drafted by a national organisation (in 
particular the Local Government Association), whether the existing Code of Conduct 
should be revised, or whether the Code should be replaced with some form of 
guidance note produced locally. 

Page 97



3.18 Since the consultation took place the Chief Executive of the Local Government 
Association has written to all Chief Executives of local authorities in February to 
outline that “local government is generally supportive of the abolition of the current 
regime, seeing it as over-bureaucratic, burdensome and too prescriptive”, and that the 
meeting of the LGA Leadership Board had agreed not to seek to establish a 
replacement framework within which Councillors should operate.  Therefore the 
Council would need to adopt a code produced locally, or a code produced by a 
different organisation (such as the Association for Council Secretaries and Solicitors). 

3.19 An pragmatic way forward for Leeds, emerging from discussions with Leader 
Management Team, may be for Leeds to simply adopt the Nolan Principles of 
Conduct in Public Life as a framework of conduct and behaviour which could be 
equally applied to officers and members.  This approach will be further considered by 
members in the coming months. 

Complaints process 

3.20 The respondents to the consultation also generally agreed that the system for dealing 
with complaints would need to have a more rigorous filtering process so that more 
complaints could be resolved without having to be formally investigated, and would 
not need to be considered by a committee of Members unless it was potentially 
serious.   

3.21 There were also varied opinions as to whether the same process should be used for 
all complaints against Members, or whether there should be different procedures for 
dealing with complaints from other Councillors, officers, or members of the public.   

3.22 Again there appears scope for the Council’s corporate complaints system to be 
utilised for complaints against Members from members of the public.  Initial 
consideration and response to complaints would not need the involvement of a 
separate committee or sub committee as logically complaints would be referred to 
political groups to responded to, only escalating further, say to a Standards 
Committee, should a complainant wish to appeal or if say, the allegation related to the 
new provisions regarding registration and declaration of interests.   

Benefits of this proposal 

3.23 The Government has identified one key benefit of their proposed changes to the 
standards regime, which is that by making Councillors accountable for their conduct at 
a local level (rather than a national level), standards of conduct will more closely 
reflect the expectations of local citizens.  Adopting the Nolan Principles would also 
allow the Council to demonstrate that it will be fulfilling its new duty to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct amongst its Members. 

3.24 Additionally there would remain the new requirement and sanction proposed in the Bill 
for registration and declaration of interests by members, paragraphs 3.9 - 3.11  of this 
report refer. 

Further considerations relating to this option 

3.25 The consultees were asked various supplementary questions regarding this proposal, 
such as who should consider any complaints against Members and, if this was to be a 
Council committee, what form the committee should take. 

Page 98



Standards Committee 

3.26 Under the Localism Bill proposals a standards committee (or other committee or body 
with the similar functions) would not have the same powers to sanction Members as 
are currently available.  Instead powers would be restricted to taking administrative 
measures to ensure that it could continue to discharge its functions effectively.1  This 
may include barring a Councillor from particular resources or offices and from direct 
contact with certain officers.  It may also include censure, training, or removing 
Councillors from particular positions within the Council.  These powers are not 
punishments and cannot be exercised in a manner which prevents a Councillor from 
acting as a Councillor. 

3.27 The Leaders of the political groups and the Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee generally agreed that there may continue to be a legitimate role for a 
standards committee to consider complaints in some circumstances.   

3.28 The same respondents felt that independent members (co-opted members of the 
public)  could continue to provide a valuable input to a standards committee and that 
one of these members could also perform the role of Chair.  However, since the 
consultation took place officers have looked into this suggestion further and can 
confirm that any co-opted member on such a committee would not be able to vote on 
any matter (this includes the use of a casting vote), unless the new standards 
committee was an advisory committee only.2 

Declaration of acceptance 

3.29 Under the current regime Members must agree to abide by the Code of Conduct in 
place at the Council through their acceptance of office.  If the Council were to put local 
arrangements in place these declarations would no longer apply, and Councillors 
would need to indicate their acceptance of any local code.  Leaders commented that it 
would be advantageous to link the acceptance of office declaration to a declaration 
indicating an agreement to abide by any local code of conduct. 

Option 3 – To enter into regional arrangements with other West Yorkshire 
authorities 

3.30 Consultees were asked whether they would wish to pursue regional standards 
arrangements with other West Yorkshire authorities which could include a standards 
committee, a code of conduct and administrative support.  Some Leaders of the 
political groups in Leeds recognised that there may be some economies of scale in 
operating a regional system, however, generally speaking there has not been much 
support, particularly from the other West Yorkshire authorities. 

3.31 All West Yorkshire authorities have been carrying out their own consultations on the 
questions posed in Appendix 1.  As a result, the general consensus in each authority 
is as follows: 

• Kirklees – Members would like a simpler code of conduct than the current code.  
There is no appetite for having a separate standards committee.  Complaints will 
first be presented to an all party group advised by the Monitoring Officer, and if 
considered serious enough, will be forwarded to the Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee for action.  There will be no involvement from co-opted 

                                                
1
 These powers were confirmed by the Court of Appeal in R v Broadland District Council ex p Lashley (2000). 
2
 According to Section 13 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

Page 99



members of the public on the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee and 
Members do not wish to involve Parish Councils in their arrangements. 

• Wakefield – Members would like to adopt a code of conduct, but the complaints 
procedure needs to be streamlined, in particular the time taken to assess 
complaints and carry out investigations. 

• Bradford – Members do want to have local standards arrangements which 
involve co-opted members of the public.  However, they do not wish to involve 
Parish Councils in those arrangements.  Members did have some interest in the 
potential for a regional appeals sub-committee to consider appeals against local 
standards committee decisions. 

• Calderdale – No comments. 

 

Involvement of Parish and Town Councils 

3.32 Under the provisions of the Localism Bill, Parish Councils will be required to make 
their own arrangements for adopting a code of conduct and receiving and considering 
complaints against Members.  Previously Leeds City Council has had responsibility 
for all the Parish and Town Councils in its area. 

3.33 The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee and some of the Group Leaders felt 
that Parish and Town Councils should be offered the opportunity to ‘buy in’ to any 
arrangements Leeds City Council chooses to set up, if any.  This might include 
providing them with a model code of conduct to adopt and allowing any complaints 
against their Members to be processed using Leeds City Council’s system.  Some 
Leaders expressed the view that any delegation of functions to Parish and Town 
Council’s which the Council might contemplate should be conditional on that parish or 
town council adopting the local code of conduct arrangements of the City Council.  

Timescales for further consultation and final decision 

3.34 The Localism Bill has now entered the Committee Stage in the House of Lords, and 
after this will progress to the report stage and third reading.  Currently it is anticipated 
that Royal Assent might be gained in November or December 2011.  The present 
conduct regime will continue to function in a normal manner, considering, 
investigating and determining allegations of misconduct, until a fixed date (“the 
appointed day”), probably two months after the Bill receives Royal Assent. 

3.35 This means that until the appointed day, an allegation of misconduct can be made; 
after the appointed day, no further allegations of misconduct can be made under the 
present regime.  It also means that at the appointed day, allegations may be in the 
process of investigation and that appeals against sanctions will be pending. The 
Government intends to introduce transitional measures to address this. 

The Government’s Proposed transitional measures 

3.36 Any cases in the system at the appointed day will make their way through a 
transitional regime.  The Government propose that any investigations being 
undertaken by Standards for England transfer, on the appointed day, to the local 
authority that referred the investigation. It will be for that local authority to arrange for 
the conclusion of the investigation. The local authority’s standards committee will 
remain established until the last complaint it is considering, referred either internally or 
from Standards for England, has been dealt with. 

Page 100



3.37 Any cases with which the First-tier Tribunal (Local Government Standards in England) 
is dealing on the appointed day will be concluded by that tribunal. It will not receive 
any appeals against standards committee rulings after that date. The right of appeal 
will not exist for those cases standards committees deal with as they work their way 
through the transitional system. The Government considers that the risk of protracted 
proceedings justifies this approach. The sanctions available to standards committees 
are significantly less severe than the sanctions available to the First-tier Tribunal 
(Local Government Standards in England). 

3.38 Further, the Government propose that the suspension sanction is removed from 
standards committees for the transitional period. Hence the most a standards 
committee could do is, for instance, to issue a Councillor with a censure or a request 
that they undergo training. 

Timescales in Leeds 

3.39 In order for a final decision on any future standards arrangements to be made before 
the Localism Bill comes into force, a decision will need to be made by full Council in 
either January or early February 2012.  Prior to this the proposals will need to be 
considered by General Purposes Committee for the purposes of making a 
recommendation to full Council.  These arrangements will be agreed to come into 
force once any transitional period ends i.e. once the last complaint has been 
concluded.   

3.40 A timetable showing a further round of consultation and timescales for the 
implementation of the Bill is attached as Appendix 2 to this report. 

4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 
 
4.1 One of the principles in the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is good conduct 

and behaviour.  Members need to consider how good conduct can be ensured once 
the Localism Bill comes into force, and removes the current standards regime. 

 
4.2 It is also important that Members consider how the new duty for the Council to 

promote and maintain high standards of conduct by its Members can be fulfilled after 
the current standards regime ends. 

 
5.0 Legal And Resource Implications 

5.1 The legal and resource implications are clearly set out in the main issues section of 
this report. 

 
6.0 Recommendations 

6.1 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note; 

• and comment upon the outcome of the initial consultation exercise; 

• the timetable for further consultation contained in Appendix 2. 

Page 101



7.0 Background Documents 

• Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) to the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee, “Implications of the Localism Bill for the ethical 
framework in Leeds”, 14th February 2011 

• Minutes of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, 14th February 2011 

• Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) to the Standards 
Committee, “Implications of the Localism Bill for the ethical framework in Leeds”, 16th 
February 2011 

• Minutes of the Standards Committee, 16th February 2011 

• Localism Bill 2010-2011 

• “Localism Bill: the abolition of the Standards Board regime, clarification of the law on 
predetermination and the requirement to register and declare interests – Impact 
Assessment”, by Communities and Local Government 

• Letter from Bob Neill MP (Parliamentary Under Secretary of State) to Dr. Robert Chilton 
(Chair of Standards for England) on “Conduct of Local Authority Members”,15th October 
2010 

• Public Bill Committee Debate: Localism Bill – Session 2010-11, Thursday 3rd February 
2011 (morning session) 

 

Page 102



Appendix 1 

The Localism Bill and the future of the standards regime 
 
Consultation questions 
 
In order to help facilitate discussions around what local arrangements, if any, Members may wish to 
establish in Leeds, the following questions are posed to Members: 
 
1. Should Leeds City Council adopt a voluntary code of conduct? 
 

a. If yes, should the Council:  

• revise the existing code of conduct1; or 

• adopt a completely new code of conduct to be drafted locally? 
 

b. If the Council wishes to adopt a completely new code of conduct, what types of behaviour 
/ situations should this cover? 

 

2. If a code is to be introduced, should there be different processes for dealing with differing types of 
complaints, namely: 

• Member against Member; 

• officer against Member; and 

• member of the public against Member? 
 

a. If yes, how should these processes differ? 
 

3. Should the Council have a separate ‘Standards Committee’ (or another name) to carry out any of 
the above functions, or instead give the function to an existing committee exercising Council 
functions?  

 
a. If an existing committee is preferred, which committee would be the most appropriate? 

 
b. Alternatively, would the Council prefer to delegate some of these functions to an officer? 

 
4. Would there be value in retaining the facility to have a co-opted independent member(s)2 on any 

committee dealing with complaints of member misconduct and if so, might that co-opted 
members have a role in chairing consideration of complaints against Members under any of the 
options shown in Question 2 above? 

 

5. Is there an appetite for having a regional Standards Committee? 

                                                
1
 At the least the Council would need to remove the reference to the General Principles which will be revoked, 
and the requirements regarding the registration and declaration of interests as these will be covered in separate 
Regulations. 
2
 The position of Independent Member as it currently stands will be abolished, but the Council could choose to 
co-opt someone onto the committee to fulfil a similar function. 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Timeline for Leeds City Council 
Consultation and decision on the Localism Bill 

Event / meeting Date Purpose 

July 2011 – September 2011 

Standards Committee 6th July 2011 To receive feedback following 
consultation process and to outline 
further consultation and drafting 
timetable. 

Whips 12th July 2011  To receive feedback following 
consultation process and to outline 
further consultation and drafting 
timetable. 

Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee 

18th July 2011  To receive feedback following 
consultation process and to outline 
further consultation and drafting 
timetable. 

Group consultation process July 2011  – Mid 
September 2011 

For further consultation on 
proposals 

October 2011 

Leader Management Team 6th October 2011 
(tbc) 

To receive feedback from Group 
Consultation process and confirm 
preferred arrangements for review 
by Committees 

November / December 2011 

Standards Committee 1st November 2011 For final consultation on preferred 
arrangements 

Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee 

9th November 2011  For final consultation on preferred 
arrangements 

Whips 15th November 2011 
(tbc) 

For final consultation on preferred 
arrangements 

Localism Bill receives Royal 
Assent 

November / 
December 2011 

n/a 

Leader Management Team Mid December 2011 
(tbc) 

To consider final arrangements for 
recommendation to General 
Purposes Committee. 

January 2012 

General Purposes Committee to 
recommend local arrangements 
to full Council 

5th January 2012 Final recommendations for approval 

Full Council to approve local 
arrangements (to come into 
force on the Appointed Day) 

18th January 2012 Final approval of local 
arrangements 

tbc Mid January to 
February 2012 

Agreement of administrative 
arrangements to support any locally 

Appendix 2 

Page 105



Timeline for Leeds City Council 
Consultation and decision on the Localism Bill 

Event / meeting Date Purpose 

agreed arrangements  

February 2012 

Appointed Day (when the Act 
comes into force) 

February 2012 Local arrangements take effect from 
this date onwards (or transitional 
arrangements begin if complaints 
are in the system) 

April 2012 

Supplementary legislation and 
Regulations expected to come 
into force 

April 2012 Will provide details of the 
requirements for Members to 
register and declare interests 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 106



 1 

 

Report of the Chief Officer for Statutory Housing 
 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Date: 18 July 2011 
 
Subject: Council Housing Assurance Framework 
 

        
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Council’s relationship with the three Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMOs) 
and Belle Isle Management Organisation (BITMO) is one of partnership developed through a 
close working relationship and underpinned by a Performance Management Framework in 
which key performance indictors are monitored as well as a programme of audits undertaken 
to deliver assurance that services delegated to ALMOs/ BITMO are being appropriately 
managed. 
 
In 2010/11 to enhance the Councils’ Performance Management Framework for both the 
ALMOs and BITMO the Housing Partnerships team developed a process known as the 
Assurance Framework.  The Framework sets out a number of controls within which the 
housing management service is delivered, whilst at the same time providing assurance to all 
stakeholders that this is achieved within minimum risk.  The housing management objectives 
identified are governance, asset management, partnerships, lettings and tenancy 
enforcement, service improvement plans and customer /tenant satisfaction.  Internal Audit 
have undertaken audits on 11 services in each ALMO/ BITMO last year, whilst Housing 
Partnerships team undertook 5 reviews into services.  Internal audit provided at least an 
acceptable, or good control environment opinion in 20 of the 21 issued audits where controls 
were tested.  For audits where compliance was tested, acceptable or good compliance was 
found in 26 of the 32 issued audits.   No major organisational impacts were found in any of 
the audits.  
 
 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator: Simeon Perry 
 
Tel: x50503 

 

 

 
 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 107



 2 

1. Purpose Of This Report 
 
1.1 In September 2010 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee requested annual 

assurance that the delegated housing management services to the ALMOs and 
BITMO are appropriately managed.  This report provides the assurance through 
informing Corporate Governance and Audit Committee of the outturn of the 
Assurance Framework for Council housing management in 2010/11.   

2.0   Background Information 

2.1 The Council’s relationship with the three Arms Length Management Organisations 
(ALMOs) and Belle Isle Management Organisation (BITMO) is one of partnership in 
the delivery of excellent housing management services for tenants of the council.  
This partnership is underpinned through: 

••••  a close working relationship.  This relationship operates at a number of levels throughout 
all organisations, from regular meeting between the Executive member and the ALMO 
chairs, to meeting between officers at a range of levels. The recent creation of the 
Strategic Governance Board in February 2011 will provide increased joint working to 
deliver common approaches to the regeneration of communities and neighborhoods.  

•••• A Performance management framework.  This is an annex of the Management 
Agreement and has two parts: Performance monitoring and the Assurance Framework.  
Performance on key indicators, such as income generation, meeting the decent homes 
standard are reported by the council monthly, as well as financial monitoring.  Secondly, 
a programme of Internal Audits is developed annually in partnership with ALMOs/ BITMO 
to provide assurance that the risks of the delegation of housing management to ALMOs/ 
BITMO are being appropriately managed.   

2.2 The Assurance Framework was implemented in 2010/11 to set out a control 
environment within which the housing management service is delivered whilst at the 
same time providing assurance to all stakeholders that this is achieved with 
minimum risk.   

2.3 The spirit of the Framework is co-regulation.  The Framework will provide assurance 
that the ALMOs and BITMO have mitigated the risk areas through their own policy 
and procedures.  These will be objectively assessed by Internal Audit resulting in 
the development of the annual Assurance Framework audit programme.   

2.4 The greater the level of assurance that the ALMOs and BITMO provide through the 
annual assurance report, the smaller the audit plan for the subsequent year.  In 
2010/11 many audits were undertaken to ascertain a baseline.  In 2011/12 a 
reduced number of audits will be undertaken focusing on the areas of high risk. 

 
2.5 The Assurance Framework sets out the key objectives for the council in its 

delegation of the housing management functions to the ALMOs and BITMO.  These 
objectives are: 

 
o Governance 
o Asset management 
o Partnerships 
o Lettings and Tenancy Enforcement 
o Service Improvement Plans 
o Customer Tenant Satisfaction 

 

Page 108



 3 

2.6 Housing Partnerships team commissioned Internal Audit to undertake audits to 
provide objective assurance.  Internal Audit undertook audits in 11 services.  This 
included 4 audits on the Strategic Landlord.  In total 56 audits have been 
undertaken1. Two services were audited twice within the year: Procurement and 
Lettings.  Housing Partnerships team undertake a lot of the assurance through their 
day to day work, such as Performance target setting, Capital programme 
monitoring, quarterly financial monitoring.  In addition, officers from Housing 
Partnerships team undertook a number of reviews to gain assurance.  These 
included reviews on Fire Safety Assessments on multi story blocks, Customer 
Complaints, Areas Panels and Service Improvement Plans.    

 
3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 Internal audit provided at least an acceptable, or good control environment opinion 
for 20 of the 21 control audits undertaken.  In the 9 subjects where ALMOs and 
BITMO compliance was tested 26 (81%) audits were considered to have an 
acceptable or good compliance in place.  No audits were considered as having any 
major organisational impacts.  The key areas of weakness identified were 
Procurement, Lettings and Gas Servicing.  Procurement and Lettings had follow up 
audits in the second half of the year.  For both these services, improvements were 
identified and acceptable or good assurance has been reported in all 3 ALMOs and 
BITMO.  ENE will have a follow up Gas Servicing audit in 2011/12 to ensure that the 
recommendations are been undertaken as it had a limited audit opinion. 

3.2 One of the most in depth audits was the Corporate Governance Audit for each 
ALMO and BITMO.  This audit  was an in depth assessment to ensue that each 
organisation had good direction and control of the organisation.  Three audits have 
been published to-date, of these two organisations received good assurance and 
one acceptable.  The common findings of this audit were: 

• Minutes of Board meetings should be placed on their website 

• Publish a statement on the internal control arrangement annually 

• A list of Partnerships should be identified and there should be monitoring procedures 
to ensure that outputs can be measured and linked to the ALMO objectives and 
priorities. 

• Undertake an annual declaration of interest for the Board, and staff  

• Business Continuity plans should be more regularly updated 

3.3 Housing Partnerships team has undertaken the following reviews: Area Panels, 
Service Improvement Plans, Customer complaints, Fire safety in Multi Storey 
blocks, Asset management Service.  These reviews did not give ‘grades’ just 
recommendations, which Officers from Housing Partnerships team will follow up 6 
months after the review.  

3.4 The key findings of each review are: 

• Area panels:  Key common recommendations across the ALMOs were 

                                                
1
 Note 4 reports have yet to be issued 

Page 109



 4 

o  to ensure that there was greater consistency in adhering to the Memorandum 
and Articles  

o greater promotion of the Area Panel through the ALMO websites and customer 
literature 

o closer connection to the ALMO Board is made so that Area Panels can have a 
greater influence the ALMO Board  

o Area Panels have a greater understanding about how Board decisions may 
affect their localities 

o a training and development strategy is adopted for Panel members.   

•••• Service Improvement Plans: Recommendations differed for each ALMO.  Key 
recommendations were that  

o Service Improvement Plans should reflect a manageable number of key 
priorities 

o clear simple reports should be presented to the ALMO Board 

o priority given to actions that have a high level of risk to the organisation.  

•••• Customer Complaints:  Common recommendations made included  

o More use made of lessons learnt to improve processes as a result of 
complaints 

o More initial contact with customers  to address service requests before formal 
complaints are made  

•••• Fire Safety in Multi Storey blocks: This assessment included visits to a number of 
multi storey blocks to check.  Recommendations were that  

o all breaks in construction are sealed with a suitable fire resistant material 

o that there is full and appropriate fire signage 

o increased post inspection of all refurbishment works 

o an increased programme of spot checks by senior ALMO staff 

o that improvements are made to caretaker training programmes and there is 
closer supervision to ensure that they undertake greater fire safety measures 

o that support is made to vulnerable residents to remove rubbish where they 
can’t do so themselves.   

As a result of this review each ALMO has developed a detailed action plan.  
Implementation is being supported by Officers from Housing Partnerships.   

•••• Asset management service:  A review was undertaken of how ALMOs managed the 
asset related contracts.  The conclusion was that within the ALMOs there was limited 
overall capacity, skills, knowledge and different approaches.  As a result, through the 

Page 110



 5 

development of the ALMO Business Centre, the ALMOs are considering centralising 
the contract management functions. 

4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

4.1 The Assurance Framework provides the council with assurance that the key risks for 
the delegation of housing management are being appropriately managed by the 
ALMOs and BITMO.   

5.0  Legal And Resource Implications 

5.1 The 2010-11 Assurance Framework in part replaced the previous Internal Audit 
programme for Strategic Landlord and some of the ALMO commissioned 
programmes.  The evidence gathered by both Internal Audit and through the 
reviews undertaken by the Housing Partnerships team will provide evidence for the 
Annual Governance Statement that the risk for delegating housing management 
through the ALMOs and BITMO are appropriately managed. 

6.0  Conclusions 

6.1 The Council though its performance management framework can provide assurance 
that the ALMOs and BITMO are appropriately managing the risks derived from 
delegating the housing management functions to them.   

6.2 The audits and reviews undertaken in 2010/11 provide the Council with assurance 
against the risks of delegating housing management to the ALMOs and BITMO. 

6.3 The Audit reports demonstrate for the services inspected assurance is generally of 
an acceptable or good standard.  Where Limited assurance has been found, then 
follow up audits have been undertaken.  For Procurement and Lettings, these have 
seen improvements in service delivery.  Gas Servicing will be undertaken for ENE in 
2011/12. 

6.4 All Audit reports are reviewed by the Audit committee’s of each ALMO Board which 
meet quarterly and they review implementation of each recommendation made 
focusing on the high risk recommendations.  At BITMO the Audit reports are 
currently reviewed by the Board pending the establishment of an Audit Committee 
shortly in 2011/12. 

6.5 The 2010/11 programme creates a baseline from which to develop future years 
audit programme.  In 2011/12 the audit programme will be reduced by half, from 600 
to 310 days.  Greater focus will be placed on ALMO self assurance, whilst audits will 
focus on the risk areas identified this year 

7.0 Recommendations 

7.1 That Corporate Audit and Governance Committee receive assurance that the 
management of council housing in the city is being monitored by the Housing 
Partnerships team based within Housing Services. 

Background Documents 

15 June 2011 - Annual Internal Audit report to corporate Governance and Audit committee.  
The outturn of the audits undertaken in ALMOs/ BITMO are included in this report.  

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
Report of the Chief Procurement Officer 
 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Date: 18 July 2011 
 
Subject: Procurement & Commissioning Efficiency Savings 
 

        
 
 
Executive Summary 

This report outlines the requirements of the council to achieve the procurement and 
commissioning savings of £23.5m which contributes towards the council’s overall 
requirements to achieve savings.  The report explains that there are several strands of work 
taking place including the negotiation of reduced contract prices, amending the council’s 
financial management system and changing the way the council places orders with its 
suppliers. Further work is taking place on standardisation and control of demand 
management by challenging the need to spend.  Examples of areas where savings have 
been made are given and the report outlines the “open book” reviews being conducted by 
internal audit. Governance arrangements are in place to ensure that the contract price 
reductions will be reconciled with the council’s budget and to ensure that procurement and 
commissioning is carried out in a consistent manner across the council. The report refers to 
the responsibility of managers to carry out monthly predictions of annual spend and to 
manage the expenditure to meet the budget. Further progress reports will be brought back to 
the committee starting in September 2011.

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: M. J. Foster 
 
Tel: 24 74091 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 113



 2 

1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 This report is to inform Members of the actions and measures in place within the 
Council to achieve the required budget savings during 2011/12. 

1.2 The report specifically relates to procurement and commissioning efficiency savings. 

2.0   Background Information 

2.1 The Council was given a comprehensive spending review settlement that resulted in 
a requirement to reduce the Council’s budget. The revised budget was approved by 
Council in February 2011 and Directorates were given the task of preparing plans to 
ensure that the reductions were put into effect.  The procurement and 
commissioning functions were charged with facilitating reductions of £23.5m. 

2.1.1 Procurement and Commissioning will have some involvement, through the use of 
contracts, for several areas of efficiency, e.g. premises - building and highway 
maintenance; transport – vehicle hire & maintenance, and schemes within the 
capital programme.  However, this report concentrates on the procurement and 
commissioning element of £23.5m. 

2.1.2 Procurement and commissioning targets were set as part of the approved budget 
across all directorates and were as follows: 

General – supplies, works & 
services 

£10m All directorates 

External placements/providers £10m £7.3m Adults, £2.7m 
Children’s 

Home Care £2m Adults 

Grants to outside organisations £1.5m Mainly Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

TOTAL £23.5M  

 

2.2 The report now details the actions which are taking place to achieve the target 
savings. 

3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 To achieve these savings there have been several strands of work set up.  A 
presumption that the council’s contract prices could be reduced by 10% was made 
and showed that the general target of £10m would be achieved. However, this was 
a significant assumption based on the history of efficiency savings already made 
during the “Gershon” efficiency years (2004-2007) and the comprehensive 
spending review of 2007 (to cover 2008/9-2010/11). In effect, the council had been 
making year on year reductions in contract prices of about 3-4% since 2004 so a 
presumption of 10% in one year would be a challenge. 

3.2 This challenge has resulted in procurement staff undertaking training on negotiation 
techniques and preparing and organising post contract negotiation meetings. The 

Page 114



 3 

training has been funded by the regional improvement and efficiency programme 
and taken up by all the West Yorkshire authorities.  Initially, the council wrote to 
1000+ suppliers to inform them that we would be arranging meetings to discuss 
existing contracts and to see how they could help the council achieve the necessary 
reductions.   

3.3 Most contractors have been supportive of the council’s objectives. 121 negotiation 
meetings have taken place so far and resulted in 65% accepting a reduced price 
and 50% accepting 10% or more reduction. Some of these agreements have been 
based on contracts being extended rather than renewal. Agreement on an interim 
waste management contract (prior to PFI) resulted in over £1m per annum saving. 
The supply of frozen foods is now £250,000 per annum less and we have saved 
money by negotiating non-branded goods into our contracts for catering and 
maintenance of vehicles.  Negotiation meetings are continuing to take place. 

3.4 At the same time as the negotiation action is taking place, the council is also 
reviewing the way it places orders with the suppliers. Substantial developments of 
the council’s financial management system, FMS (Leeds), are being carried out to 
assist the orderers in making the correct purchase.  The system is not being 
fundamentally changed but is being redesigned to give category and contract 
information to the orderers and to steer them into using the council’s contracts.  It is 
anticipated that savings will be made by reducing the amount of “off contract” spend 
that takes place and informing the procurement unit where there is a need for 
additional contracts. The revised system will provide better procurement 
management information for the unit to determine category and contract strategies 
that will benefit the council. The revised system is due to take effect on 1 August 
2011. 

3.5 A review of the council’s orderers and authorisers has taken place and numbers 
have been reduced to a minimum.  Ordering hubs are being established where the 
orderers place orders on behalf of the directorates. This allows for more focused 
training and development of expertise and knowledge of the appropriate contracts. 
Additionally, the ordering experts will become accustomed to challenging the need 
for some orders and assist the council in its demand management. For example, by 
challenging rail ticket requests for 7 journeys, an officer from the ordering hub was 
able to reduce costs from £1,295 to £741.70, saving £533.30. On a basket of 
stationery goods, by searching for better deals with the contracted supplier, and in 
some cases, contacting her supplier representative, an officer from the ordering hub 
was able to negotiate a better deal for the authority, thereby reducing costs from 
£2,600.67 to £982.06, saving a total of £1618.61. 

 

3.6 All contracts are being reviewed with the intention of standardising the council’s 
requirements where it is possible to do so. This has been completed in areas like 
paper, stationery, travel and furniture and will be expanded out in as many areas as 
possible. The council will look to specify and purchase “industry standard” items 
rather than “custom made” for the council. “Off the shelf” purchases are often more 
competitive, less costly to make and result in a reduced price to the council. 

3.7 The success of the negotiation meetings has resulted in reduced contract costs. 
The total procurement contracts spend reductions registered so far suggested we 
are broadly on target to make the procurement savings.  However, the calculation is 
based on contract value which will not relate directly back to the budget.  Some 
areas of spend within the budget will be made up of many contracts whereas some 
expenditure will be from contracts arranged in previous years where the estimate 

Page 115



 4 

does not correlate to the budget.  To convert the procurement reductions into 
budget savings requires the directorate finance officers to review each budget vote 
and determine the impact on that vote. This area of work has just commenced and 
is being overseen at monthly meetings of the financial leadership team (FLT). 
Reconciliation will be completed in August 2011 and reviewed monthly from then 
on. Additionally, the FMS (Leeds) system requires managers to review their 
expenditure monthly and to make forecasts of end of year expenditure.  Budget 
holders are responsible for ensuring that predicted overspends is managed down 
throughout the year. 

3.8 The development of work practices for procurement and commissioning is being 
overseen by the corporate commissioning group which meets monthly and has 
attendees from each directorate.  This group is responsible for ensuring that 
procurement and commissioning is carried out in an efficient and consistent manner 
across the council. A new procurement strategy is being prepared. Overall 
governance regarding the achievement of procurement efficiency savings is being 
undertaken by the Executive Board at member level and by the CORS (Chief 
Officer Resources & Strategy) group at officer level.  Additional challenges will 
come from the various scrutiny boards. 

3.9 Improvements to category management have been made and discussions are 
being held to take this further organisationally. A comprehensive  spending analysis 
for 2010/11 has been completed by financial management and directorates are now 
using the results to analyse vote codes and review spending practices. 

3.10 Internal audit is working alongside adults social care to work with external 
residential care providers to understand the costs associated with providing the 
service.  This could enable reduced fees to be negotiated without undermining the 
financial stability of the provider. The role of internal audit is to undertake an open 
book analysis of the costs of the contract to support the introduction of reduced fees 
that are proposed, where invited to do so by the supplier. Internal Audit is also 
undertaking a piece of work to review contract monitoring procedures throughout 
the Authority. This review will aim to risk assess the major contracts that the council 
has in place to ensure that there are appropriate contract monitoring arrangements 
and undertake open book reviews as appropriate. This will aim to identify any 
overcharging that has occurred on the contracts and drive improvements in contract 
monitoring and identify opportunities to improve value for money. 

3.11 Internal Audit undertook a review of External Room hire during 2010/2011. The 
audit found that although general guidance on the use of Internal Providers was 
issued to Chief Officers in 2009, there is no policy in place relating to the use of 
external room hire/venues. In recognition of this, Internal Audit is currently 
producing a recommended Policy Statement on the use of External Room hire. This 
will look to limit the usage of external room hire through optimizing the use of 
internal facilities. 

4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

4.1 In order to achieve the procurement and commissioning related savings already 
taken from budgets, robust governance arrangements need to be in place.  The 
savings are challenging and require the coordination of various roles and functions 
across the authority e.g. budget holders, managers, order-placers, procurement, 
finance, FMS administration, etc. This report identifies the actions being taken to 
achieve the savings and the governance arrangements being implemented around 
those actions. 

Page 116



 5 

 
5.0 Legal and Resource Implications 

5.1 There is a risk that the calculated contract reductions will not reduce the 
expenditure level to the budget requirements. This is being managed by having 
monthly reports to the financial leadership team. This has only recently been set up 
and results of the first quarter will not be known until around August 2011 and 
monthly from then on. The monthly reports may result in revised target figures 
assessed against the rate of achievement. 

6.0 Conclusions 

6.1 There are several areas where actions are being taken to help the council buy more 
efficiently and effectively.  These actions will contribute towards achieving the 
procurement and commissioning savings target of £23.5m.  Current progress is 
good but until the reductions in contract price have been reconciled with the 
council’s budget, the actual budget savings is not known. This exercise will be 
completed in August 2011. 

7.0 Recommendations 

7.1 Members are asked to note the actions in place to create and measure the 
procurement and commissioning efficiency savings. 

7.2 Members are asked to note the governance arrangements in place to give 
assurance that the procurement efficiency savings will be monitored, recorded and 
achieved. 

7.3 Members are asked to agree to further progress reports commencing in September 
2011.  

 

Background Papers 

 

None Used 

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Director of Resources  
 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Date: 18th July 2011 
 
Subject:  Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to notify members of the Committee of the draft work. 
The draft work programme is attached at Appendix 1 to this report. 

2.0 Background Information 

2.1 The work programme provides information about future items for the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee agenda, when items will be presented and which 
officer will be responsible for the item.  

3.0  Main Issues 

3.1   The draft work programme is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
3.3 Members are requested to consider whether they wish to add any items to the work 

programme.    

4.0 Implications for Council Policy And Governance 

4.1 There are no implications for Council Policy and Governance. 

5.0  Legal And Resource Implications  

5.1  There are no legal or resource implications. 
 
6.0 Recommendations  

6.1 Members are asked to note the draft work programme and advise officers of any 
additional items they wish to add. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Phil Garnett 
 
Tel: 51632  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE                         

WORK PROGRAMME   
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

September 30th  – 2011 

Annual Governance 
Statement 

To receive the Annual Governance Statement. Director of Resources 
Alan Gay 

Small Claims Made 
Against the Council 

To receive a report detailing the amount and type of small claims and 
the actions taken to reduce them.  
 
(requested at the meeting held on 14th February 2011)  

Insurance Manager  
Frank Morrison 

KPMG Audit Report on 
2010/11 Statement of 
Accounts 

To receive KPMG’s Audit report of the findings in respect of the 
2010/11 Statement of Accounts, value for money conclusion and 
whole of government accounts conclusion. 
 
(part of the Committee’s Annual work programme) 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management) 
Doug Meeson 
 

Approval of audited 
Statement of Accounts 
2010/11 including an 
update on the audit fee 

To receive a report detailing the statement of accounts for 2010/11. 
 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management) 
Doug Meeson 

Local Government 
Ombudsman’s Annual 
Letter 
 

To receive the annual letter from the Local Government Ombudsman. 
 
(This report is on the agenda as part of the Committee’s Annual work 
programme) 
 

Corporate Customer Relations 
Manager 
Wendy Allinson 

 

Council IT Systems To receive a report detailing the extent of intruder attack on Council It 
systems; outlining progress made in agreeing and implementing 
policies which are still in development; explaining the arrangements 
that are in place for access to Members emails; and describing the 
assurance Members can gain from the Council’s arrangements for 
information security.  
 
(This report was requested by the Committee on the 21st March 2011)  

Chief Officer (Business 
Transformation) 
Lee Hemsworth 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
1



 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

Internal Audit Report  To receive a report presenting the Internal Audit report on current 
issues. 
 
(This is a report brought to the Committee on bi-monthly basis)  

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

Bribery Act  To receive a report detailing the implications of the Bribery Act  Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

November 9th -  2011  

6 Monthly Update Report 
on risk Management  
 

To receive a report updating members on the Council’s risk 
management arrangements. 
 
(This report is part of the Committee’s annual work programme)  

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 

Leeds Initiative and City 
Planning  

To receive a report updating the Committee on progress made with 
the review of the Leeds Initiative and Partnership Arrangements and 
the associated planning and performance arrangements in the City 
 
(This report was requested by the Committee on 18th April 2011) 

Chief Officer (Leeds Initiative 
and Partnerships) 
Kathy Kudelnitzky  

Local Enterprise 
Partnerships 

To receive a report on the governance arrangements for the new 
Local Enterprise Partnership specifically exploring governance issues 
contained within the partnership governance toolkit. 
 
(requested at the 14th December 2010 meeting following a discussion 
on the Leeds City Region) 

Chief Officer (Leeds Initiatives 
and Partnerships)  
Kathy Kudelnitzkey 

Localism Bill To receive a report updating the Committee on the Localism Bill Head of Governance Services 
Andy Hodson 

December 13th  -  2011 -  No items currently scheduled 

   

January 23rd -  2012  

P
a
g
e
 1

2
2



 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

KPMG Financial 
Statements Audit Plan 
and VFM Audit plan 

To receive a report detailing the financial statements audit plan. Value 
for Money Audit Plan and Financial Statement Audit Plan. 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 

February 27th  -  2012 -  No items currently scheduled 

   

 
 
March 28th  -  2012 

External Audit Planning To receive a report from the appointed External Auditor in respect of 
the audit fee for 2011/12 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 

Information Security 
Annual Report 

To receive a report on the Council’s Information Security  
arrangements. 

Chief Officer (Business 
Transformation) 
Lee Hemsworth 
 
 
 
 
 

April  23rd  -  2012   

Annual Report on 
Community Engagement 
 

To receive a report presenting the annual report on Community 
Engagement. 

Assistant Chief Executive 
(Planning, Policy and 
Improvement) 
James Rogers 
 

Annual Monitoring of Key 
and Major Decisions 
 

To receive a report presenting the outcome of the monitoring process 
relating to Key and Major decisions. 
 

Head of Governance Services 
Andy Hodson 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
3



 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

ALMO Annual Assurance 
Report  

To receive the Annual Assurance report from Strategic Landlord 
based on the assurances received from the ALMOs. 
 
(This report is part of the committee’s annual work programme) 
 

Strategic Landlord 
Liz Cooke 

Annual Report on Risk 
Management 
 

To receive a report regarding the Council’s risk management 
arrangements. 
 
(Part of the Committee’s annual work programme) 
 
 

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 
 

 
 
Un-scheduled items for 2011/12 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
4


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 KPMG Interim Audit Report
	LCC Interim Report 10-11 FINAL 110708

	8 2010/11 Statement of Accounts
	9 Annual Risk Management Report
	10 Annual Monitoring of Key and Major Decisions
	110630 Appendix to July 11 Delegated Decision report
	Appendix 2 Management Summary
	Appendix A of appendix 2 Final Follow up Action Plan

	11 Localism Bill - Outcome of initial consultation
	Appendix 1 - Briefing Note
	110624 Appendix 2 - Timeline for the Localism Bill

	12 Council Housing Assurance Framework
	13 Procurement & Commissioning Efficiency Savings
	14 Work Programme
	Live Work Programe


